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Redland City Council

Corporate Plan - A strategic document that

sets out Council’s plans over a five-year period. It
outlines the strategies to be undertaken to achieve
the vision and outcomes in the community plan. It
is a legal requirement under the Local Government
Act 2009 for Council to adopt a Corporate Plan.

External audit — Audit professional who performs
and audit on the accounts in accordance with the
Local Goverment Act 2009, Local Government
Regulation 2012 and the Australian Accountancy
standards, and who is independent of council.

Financial year — The 12 months between 1 July
of one year and 30 June of the next year. This
annual report is for the 2013-14 financial year,
which runs from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014.

Annual Report 2013-14

Glossary of common terms used in this annual report

Full-time equivalent (FTE) — The hours worked
by one or more staff members that are the
equivalent of a full-time employee. As an example,
this may involve a full-time employee working
36.25 hours per week or two part-time employees
each working 18.13 hours per week.

Governance — How decisions are made and
implemented and how organisations are managed
and controlled to achieve objectives. Governance
also describes the ways an organisation can be
held accountable.

Operational Plan — A one-year plan that sets out
activities to be undertaken in that particular year
to achieve the Corporate Plan. An Operational
Plan is a legal requirement for Queensland
councils under the Local Government Act 2009.

RCC - Redland City Council.

Statutory — Required under legislation.
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Introduction

What is an annual report?

Each year, Redland City Council publishes an annual report. This is a requirement of the Local
Government Act 2009. The report provides an update to our community about Council’s finances,
its performance and how we have delivered against our plans.

Some information within this plan is required under legislation. An index of these statutory
requirements, which shows where to find this information, is included on pages 77-80.

This annual report is the fourth to report against the Corporate Plan 2010-2015 (which reflects
the Redlands 2030 Community Plan).

It also includes a summary of performance against Council’s Operational Plan 2013-14.

About Redland City

Traditional (Aboriginal) Owners

Council acknowledges the Quandamooka People as the Traditional Owners of most of the lands and
waters of the Redlands. The Turbal and Yugara/Yugarapul Peoples also claim a connection to a small
portion of mainland Redlands.

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




Introduction continued

Brisbane @)

l Moreton B.
The Redlands (Quandaorrrligfa Cazuntry)

V)
Thornesi:je Wellington Peel s
~ Point’;
Birkdale !
Orriston
Alexandra ©.
Hills _+Cleveland.. Nt Sl
1 o radbroke
Capalaba P Island (Minjerribah)
f ). Coochiemudlo Is
| Thornlands |
xf‘ e \
Sheldon e~ Macleay Is

e VicTorial Val
“/ L Point =f
£ — :

—y |

| ! 7 Lamb Is
Mount Cotton | ¢ f
' Redland Bay
| by . Karragarra Is
1 ¢
¢ Russell
Logan City . Is

Y

Gold Coast City

Our city
Location: South-east of Brisbane, Queensland
Area: 537 square kilometres

Geography: Mainland, coast, hinterland and islands (North Stradbroke Island,
Coochiemudlo and Peel Islands and the Southern Moreton Bay Islands of
Karragarra, Lamb, Macleay and Russell)

Economy: Retail, health care and social assistance, construction, education and
training, manufacturing, and tourism

Population: 147,437

! Source — Australian Bureau of Statistics (June 2013 estimated residential population (ERP))




Introduction continued

July 2012 - Present

Redland City Council

Division 1 — Councillor Wendy Boglary
Wellington Point/Ormiston

Division 2 — Councillor Craig Ogilvie
Cleveland/North Stradbroke Island

Division 3 — Councillor Kim-Maree Hardman
Cleveland/Thornlands

Division 4 — Councillor Lance Hewlett
Victoria Point/Coochiemudlo Island

Division 5 — Councillor Mark Edwards
Redland Bay/Southern Moreton
Bay Islands
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Division 6 — Councillor Julie Talty
Mount Cotton/Sheldon/Capalaba/Thornlands/
Victoria Point/Redland Bay

Division 7 — Councillor Murray Elliott
Alexandra Hills/Capalaba

Division 8 — Councillor Alan Beard
(Deputy Mayor)
Birkdale South/Alexandra Hills

Division 9 — Councillor Paul Gleeson
Capalaba

Division 10 — Councillor Paul Bishop
Birkdale/Thorneside




3l . lam incredibly
proud that Redland City remains the benchmark for
South East Queensland councils in minimising rates
increases. Our headline rates have increased by a total
of below 7 per cent over the past three years.

Reducing cost-of-living pressures on residents has
been at the forefront. We have managed to keep
utility price rises for 2014-15 to a modest 3.3 per cent
despite a 14 per cent hike in state bulk water charges,
and we absorbed a 13 per cent increase in electricity
costs and 7 per cent hike in our fuel costs.

This was done while maintaining our generous rates
concessions for pensioners and returning savings from
the repeal of the carbon tax to ratepayers.

Through all of this, we managed to exceed targets
set out in the 2013-14 budget and returned a surplus
while continuing growth in community equity.

Major gains were made through a reduction in our
provisions and a greater focus on the management
of future costs and risks associated with maintaining
landfill sites.

astating bushfire on North
radbroke Island, showing again that this beautiful
part of the world is not immune from disaster. But
through the challenge we yet again showed great
community spirit and resilience, emerging from the
crisis without loss of life or homes.

This spirit is the essence of this City and there is

no doubt our great sense of community and the
dedication and professionalism of Council staff have
played a key part in Council’s positive position.

| would like to thank all those who hold the
Redlands dear in their hearts and look forward
to working with you as we build a City we all
can be proud to call the best place to live, work
and do business.

Councillor Karen Williams
Mayor of Redland City



A Message from our Mayor and CEO continued

CEO’s message

Council continued to consolidate
and focus on improving its
financial performance and
customer service in the past
year, as well as embed its new
operating structure. Our quest
for efficiencies and more
cost-effective ways of delivering
services and projects for the
community has seen our financial
results better our forecasts.

Major gains were made through
a reduction in provisions in this
financial year, much of this
through a greater focus on how
we manage the future costs and
risks associated with maintaining
our landfill sites.

This has allowed us to exceed
the targets set out in the
2013-14 budget and move from
a projected small deficit to a
significant surplus.

After the refocussing of our
attention on the customer and
resident, we continue to look for
ways to make the ratepayer dollar
stretch further, as well as improve
service quality.

Cost-cutting measures have
ranged from simple but tangible
changes, such as the type of
stationery we use, to innovative
thinking on how major projects
can be delivered cheaper

and faster. This is central to

our objective of achieving an
increasingly efficient operation
which is more responsive to
the needs of the community
we serve.

Redland City Council

That is reflected in the

2014-15 budget, which

includes a program of long-
term city-wide projects, while
easing cost-of-living pressures
for residents and setting a strong
financial direction for Council.

That this is being achieved in

the face of revenue constraints
and rising costs is a credit to all
involved. Council staff members
have risen to the challenge and |
have confidence that future issues
will also be embraced with resolve
and determination.

In 2014-15 we will continue
to develop our staff and look
to improve processes to make
dealing with Council as easy
as possible.

Throughout the year, we also
continued to implement our IT
strategy to make Redland City
Council an easier organisation
to do business with, as well

as improve our information
management internally. We are
now part way through the
five-year strategy.

Council continues to encourage
a culture of fresh thinking to
develop better ways of doing
business. As part of this, it

will embark on a review of

its procurement and project
management processes in a bid
to make them more streamlined
and efficient. These reviews will
help us respond to staff members
who continue to work tirelessly
to deliver services and facilities to
the community.

Importantly, we have seen the
organisation’s safety record
continue to improve and we are
injuring fewer of our people as
we strive for a safe, productive
and injury free workplace.

Annual Report 2013-14

We have also made significant
progress on our Priority
Development Areas and hope
to see that continue in 2014-15,
as well as begin the process of
delivering a new City Plan.

In this report last year, |
acknowledged Council’s capacity
to respond to natural crises had
been strengthened through the
development of a community-
specific disaster management
plan. Within weeks, that plan was
put to the test in the potentially
devastating bushfires which razed
much of North Stradbroke Island
—and it certainly proved its worth.

Despite it being at the height
of holiday season, the bushfire
emergency was handled
without loss of life or homes.
It underscored why this plan —
developed in recognition of the
City's responsibility to prepare
well for the safety of residents
- has since been held up as
the benchmark for other local
government areas.

Thank you to all staff, Councillors
and residents for your
contribution throughout the year
and | look forward to working
with you in the future.

L .

Bill Lyon
CEO of Redland City Council




Review of 2013-14

Developing our tourism

00 Redlands tourism providers
adbroke Island in May as

mit, an initiative of

om Tourism

Inity

otential
emergencies, was credited with helping ensure
the North Stradbroke Island fires were contained
without loss of life or property. The incident again
showed that the Redlands is not immune to
potential disaster and underscored the importance
of Council's emergency management strategy.
Council was also at the forefront of a campaign
to “help Straddie heal” in the wake of the fires,
including supporting the first-ever InTrust Super
Cup rugby league match at Dunwich.




Review of 2013-14 continued

New local laws process begins

The process of adopting a new set of local laws
for Redland City began with a focus on reducing
red tape and keeping the City safe and clean.

The draft laws accepted by Council align with the
State Government’s model local laws, providing
greater uniformity and streamlining administrative
processes. In the first step in the process, the draft
local laws must go through a State Government
interest check before being made available for
public comment.

Freedom of the City

Redland City celebrated its proud military history
by granting Freedom of Entry to the City to the
No. 95 Wing of the Royal Australian Air Force
(RAAF) in April. A contingent of 150 RAAF
personnel marched up Middle Street, Cleveland,
cheered on by residents and visitors. Redland City
can now look forward to a strong relationship with
No. 95 Wing, the largest wing in the Air Force
with more than 2600 personnel posted to every
Air Force base in Australia.

A commitment to Quandamooka

Council’s connection with and commitment to the
Quandamooka Peoples and the Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people of Redlands continued
through support for a range of events, Yarnin
Time, National Reconciliation Week, NAIDOC
Week and the International Day of the World's
Indigenous People. Council also participated

in the celebrations of the anniversary of the
historic native title consent determination that
acknowledges the Quandamooka Peoples as the
traditional owners of North Stradbroke, Peel,
Goat, Bird, Stingaree and Crab islands and the
surrounding waters of Moreton Bay.

Redland City Council

Community focus

The ribbon was cut on the $500,000 Macleay
Island community skate park in May, the result of
Council's commitment to the community and a
great deal of work by islanders. The park, designed
for beginners, intermediate and advanced users
and featuring ramps, steps and grind walls for
skaters, scooter and BMX riders, has proved
popular. Looking ahead, Cleveland’s Bloomfield
Street Park is set for a major

upgrade as part of plans to revitalise the CBD
and ensure residents have access to quality
community facilities.



Review of 2013-14 continued

Milestones and awards

Young Legends Award

Recognises positive environmental outcomes
which encourage and promote youth initiative and
environmental education and/or achievement.

This award was in recognition of Council's
encouragement and promotion of environmental
education with local youth.

In February 2012, Redland City Council initiated
the IndigiKids Club for youngsters aged 8-12
years who have an interest in the environment.
Kids get to participate a range of fun activities
and workshops based around learning about and
helping to care for the Redlands environment.
IndigiKids meet on the first Sunday of each month
and we encourage kids to come along and have
fun, make new friends and help our environment.

Redland City Council facilitates a ‘free trees for
schools’ program, operating from the Redlands
IndigiScapes Centre. Budget is allocated to provide
100 free, locally native plants to each school in
the Redlands. Free expert advice is also offered in
implementing planting programs and managing
the plants.

The Redland City Council Environmental Education
Unit delivered a free professional development
workshop on ‘Using Locally Native Plants in School
Grounds' to school grounds care staff in Redland
City. It was well attended, with 21 grounds care
staff attending.

The Redland City Council Environmental Education
Unit delivers programs for schools as well as for
kids and families during school holidays. Redlands
IndigiScapes Centre also facilitates a number of
family friendly events throughout the year that
cater to all age groups.

The RedSWAP schools pilot program currently
being implemented provides the opportunity

for schools to establish a ‘kids teaching kids’
program under the guidance of Council, related
to sustainability, waste reduction, litter prevention
and recycling.

The Redland Libraries Young People Services team
delivers a variety of programs and activities to a
diverse clientele throughout Redland City. Using

a range of storytelling, reading, craft making,
songs and action rhymes, the team inspires the
imagination of children to encourage a lifelong
passion for learning and literacy. Programs include:

e A new early literacy session entitled ‘Ready to
Read’, which is delivered by team members
monthly. ‘Ready to Read’ introduces children
to the alphabet, numeracy and basic sign
language through a mixture of songs, rhymes,
books and games. This program has been a
great success with very positive feedback and
an average participant rate of more than 30
children at each session.

e A new weekly craft program entitled
‘Crafternoon’, which was developed by Redland
City Libraries Young People Services team for
primary school aged children using the library
after 3:30pm. This craft is delivered three times
each month and is rotated through each of the
three mainland libraries. In addition to engaging
with the participants, it has been a great way
for the Young People Services team to fully
utilise a variety of recyclable materials.

11
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Review of 2013-14 continued

Environmental Innovation and
Protection Award

Recognises positive environmental outcomes
which encourage and promote youth initiative and
environmental education and/or achievement.

This award was in recognition of RCC's
encouragement and promotion of environmental
education with local youth. Activities include;

Collaborative Shorebird Project — Redland City
Council has partnered with Marine Parks and

the Queensland Wader Study Group to monitor
shorebirds. A Redland City Council Wildlife Officer
partnered with a Department of Environment

and Heritage Protection Marine Parks Officer

to undertake the monitoring of shorebirds, in
particular the migratory species at one of our

key feeding sites at Thorneside. This roost was
monitored once a month for four hours (two hours
on either side of the high tide) with numbers and
species of feeding birds recorded as well as any
signs of disturbance.

Redland City Council also undertakes a number of
annual fauna surveys to monitor our local wildlife.
These include:

Glossy Black Cockatoo Survey - conducted on
the mainland, North Stradbroke Island and the
Southern Moreton Bay Islands;

Coochiemudlo Curlew Count - held on the
second Saturday in February;

Community Koala Phone Survey - held on
the third weekend in October, both Saturday and
Sunday;

North Stradbroke Island Koala Survey - held
on the second Saturday in October; and

Redlands Koala Watch - residents are invited
to report koala sightings whenever they come
across them.

Annual Report 2013-14

Redland City Council continues to provide support
for the innovative IndigiScapes Centre at Capalaba
which was opened in 2000. This centre is an
environmental education hub for the Redlands
and showcases local native plants though its
landscaped botanic gardens and bushland tracks.
The intent of this is to promote locally indigenous
species, in a garden situation, as viable alternatives
for local gardeners and reduce reliance on non-
native species. Council spends hundreds of
thousands of dollars every year managing escaped
garden plants in its reserves and the provision of
these gardens represents a long-term vision to
overcome this. For nearly 14 years, visitors have
come to relax, enjoy and learn in a beautiful bush
setting with visitation growing every year from
8000 in 2001 to more than 45,500.

The centre is also home to a large and diverse
range of environmental education programs and
interpretive education, making the centre a hub
for knowledge. The programs run from the centre
include:

Community Bushcare Program — Partners with
members of the community who work together
to achieve coordinated conservation outcomes on
Council land;

Habitat Protection Programs — Encompassing
the delivery of six environmental extension
programs targeted at private landholders. Council
realises that the environment does not recognise
property borders and only through partnerships
with private landholders and businesses can

we aim to achieve our desired environmental
outcomes;

Wildlife Programs — Redland City Council
provides a number of programs and supports
many organisations in raising community
awareness of local wildlife, including koalas; and

Schools Environmental Education Program —
working with schools in the Redlands to provide
activities that complement the curriculum. A
growing number of child care centres also have
been involved in programs as their guidelines
require them to incorporate sustainability practices
in their centres.



Review of 2013-14 continued

Australia-Japan Environmental
Education Partnerships

The Redlands IndigiScapes Centre is undertaking
wildlife conservation training and education with
visiting Japanese university students (veterinary,
research and zoo keepers). These visits, which
occur four times a year, are in conjunction

with the Australia-Japan Wildlife Conservation
and Education Foundation. Students receive a
presentation on Redlands wildlife issues and
conservation actions, as well as an opportunity to
participate in tracking wild koalas and a visit to a
local flying-fox roost and a rehabilitation centre.

The Redlands IndigiScapes Centre has completed

a pilot two-way broadcasting education program
with students at Kani Technical High School.

This project is an environmental and social study
program using foreign languages for primary

and junior high school students via two-way live
internet broadcasting between Australia and
Japan. In this pilot study, Japanese primary and
junior high school students were connected via the
internet with Australian environmental and wildlife
conservation facilities and groups.

Episodes of a Japanese documentary TV program
titled "The Miracle Earth" were filmed in the
Redlands. This documentary is to be broadcast
by one of the major commercial television
networks in Japan. The segments that were
filmed in Australia introduced the unique biology
of Australian wildlife, focusing mainly on our
marsupials and monotremes.

Parks and Leisure Australia Planning
Award (State and National) — Redland
Open Space Strategy

The Redland City Council Open Space Strategy
was entered into the State and National Parks
and Leisure Australia Awards. The Strategy won
the state award but missed out on winning the
national award. Parks and Leisure Australia is the
peak industry body for the parks, sport, recreation
and leisure sector and the state and national
awards recognise best practice projects and
programs across the country.

The Open Space Strategy was recognised for
its uniqueness and innovation as well as its
consultation process that involved Walk and
Talk Days in several Redland neighbourhoods
and the use of the Heart Foundation Walkable
Neighbourhood Audit. The strategy is activity
based and aimed at aligning fit-for-purpose
open space with a range of recreation activities
in every neighbourhood in Redland City. The
strategy was written specifically to be used for
the Redland Planning Scheme and Open Space
Asset Management Plan however its uses have
proved to range far and wide and its detailed
recommendations are used to resolve many
local open space issues.

Award-winning commitment wins award
for excellence in teamwork

Council's commitment to informing and preparing
the community during the potentially devastating
North Stradbroke Island fires in December —
January earned the Communication, Engagement
and Tourism Group the state’s highest local
government accolade for teamwork.

The Local Government Managers’ Association
Queensland Award for Excellence recognised
the team’s 24/7 communication that included
the latest in social media and crowd sourcing
as well as more traditional methods of ensuring
community safety and preparedness.

The team also was a finalist in the prestigious
national Social Media Innovation for Government
and Public Sector Award 2014.
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4 continued

Mayor and CEO Employee

Excellence Awards
The Mayor's Award is

a formal award that

specifically aims to recognise outstanding
personal contribution by employees that directly
benefits the Redlands community. It is open to
all employees of Redland City Council both as

individuals or teams.

Winners and runners up for 2013

Winner Runner up

The CEO Awards are formal awards recognising
excellence in categories determined by the
Executive Leadership Group to drive performance
against organisational objectives. In 2013

these categories are Leadership, Collaboration,
Innovation and Efficiency, with winners selected
based on criteria against these categories.

Mayor's Award Lex Smith Peter Gould

CEO Award for Deborah Corbett-Hall Kym Banks

Leadership

CEO Award for Laurence Blacka Richard Smith, Dominic Newland,
Innovation David Katavic, Nigel Carroll and

Rob Walford

CEO Award for
Collaboration

Lisa Barry, Melissa Brooks,
Bev Cosgrove, Tim Goward
and Meredith Nestor

Carol Williams, Tim Mitchell, Giles Tyler,
Bradley Taylor, Matthew Ingerman,
Deluna Lawrence and Michael Holland

CEO Award for
Efficiency

Tammy Hyde and
Peter Coleman

Tasmin Young

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




number of community
organisations. She is a graduate
of and holds a Diploma with the
Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

chool, sporting and community
organisations. She is a graduate of
and holds a Diploma with
the Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

fu ompany. He speaks
Japanese, has tourism industry
experience, and has been a
professional skier, snowboarder
and scuba diver.




Redland City Council

Division 3

Councillor Kim-Maree
Hardman

Cleveland South/Thornlands
Elected: 2012

Kim-Maree has experience

in a variety of roles including
working as a legal secretary
in the United States, teaching
English in South Korea, and
managing a small business in
Capalaba before raising three
school-aged children. Kim-
Maree has studied dance for
14 years and achieved a high
level of success culminating in
dancing with the Australian
Ballet Company, Queensland
Ballet Company and the Royal
Ballet in England.

Division 4

Councillor Lance Hewlett
Victoria Point/
Coochiemudlo Island/
Thornlands/Redland Bay
Elected: 2012

Lance has experience across a
range of sectors including the
state government, where he
was the Procurement Officer/
Manager of the then State
Stores Board. He then moved
into sales and marketing in the
private sector with positions
including National Sales
Manager of one of Australia’s
leading paper merchants/
importers and Queensland State
Manager of a major distributor
in the graphic and signage
industry.

Annual Report 2013-14

Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Division 5

Councillor Mark Edwards
Redland Bay/

Southern Moreton Bay Islands
Elected: 2012

Mark has an association with
the Redlands spanning nearly
40 years. He started his working
life at a bank in Cleveland,

a career which spanned 20
years and saw him climb

the ranks through various
accountancy and manager
positions, culminating in a
regional management position
in Brisbane. He also engaged
in a number of business
activities outside banking,
primarily in tourism and small-
scale residential property
development.




Mayor and Councillors” information continued
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Division 6

Councillor Julie Talty
Mount Cotton/Sheldon/
Thornlands/Victoria Point/
Redland Bay

Elected: 2012

Julie holds academic
qualifications including a
Bachelor of Communication, a
Bachelor of Arts with Honours in
Media Studies, and a Graduate
Diploma in Teaching (Secondary
and Middle Years). She has
taught at local schools, owned
and operated small businesses,
and worked for large corporate
entities in publishing. Julie

has lived her whole life in

the Redlands and is involved

in a number of community
organisations.

Division 7

Councillor Murray Elliott
Alexandra Hills/Capalaba
Elected: 1997

Murray worked in the electricity
industry at a senior level before
running his own successful retail
businesses. He was elected to
Council in 1997 and has held
many chair positions as well as
the role of deputy mayor. He
has lived in Alexandra Hills for
26 years.

Division 8

Councillor Alan Beard
(Deputy Mayor)

Birkdale South/Alexandra Hills
Elected: 2012

Alan has been a professional
musician for more than

40 years, working as a writer, 17
arranger and manager in the
music industry. He worked as
community fundraising manager
for both the Spina Bifida
Association of Queensland

and the Leukaemia Foundation
of Queensland before being
elected to Council for the first
time in 1997. Before being
re-elected in 2012, he worked
as a professional musician.
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Division 9
Councillor Paul Gleeson
Capalaba

Elected: 2012

A Redlands resident for 20 years,
Paul’s work history varies from
senior retail management roles
to successfully running his own
company within the city for the
past nine years.

Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Division 10
Councillor Paul Bishop
Birkdale/Thorneside
Elected: 2012

Raised in Wynnum, Paul
graduated from QUT (Drama)

in 1986. He works in film,
television, radio and has
performed with every major
theatre company in Australia.

He has served on Actors Equity’s
National Performers Committee
and as an associate artist with the
Queensland Theatre Company.
Paul spent seven years acting in
the police drama Blue Heelers
and moved to Birkdale with

his four children in 2004. An
entrepreneur, presenter, MC,
teacher and media maker, Paul
founded Arts Evolution in 2005.
He is a trained cluster facilitator,
attended the UK'’s Skoll World
Forum on Social Entrepreneurship
in 2008 and opened The Red
Place, a co-working hub and
innovative space, in 2013.

Annual Report 2013-14



Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Councillors’ meeting attendance

Statutory meetings attended

Meeting

Cr Williams
Division 1

= CrBoglary
Division 2
Cr Ogilvie
Cr Hardman
Division 4
Cr Hewlett
Division 5
Cr Edwards
Division 6

W Cr Talty
Division 7
Cr Elliott
Division 8
Cr Beard
Division 9
Cr Gleeson
Division 10

Y Cr Bishop

Mayor
N -
o1 Total Meetings

~ Division 3

N
w
N
N
w
—
N
Ul
N
Ul
N
N
Ul
N
ul
N
w
N

General
and Special
Meetings
Coordination 12 11 10
Committee

Totals 35 35 33 30

Cleveland CBD Revitalisation Special Committee*
Meeting
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Cr Ogilvie
Division 6
Cr Talty
Division 7
Cr Elliott
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c
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=
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Cr Williams
Division 2
~ Total Meetings

N
N
—
N
—

* Note: the last meeting of Cleveland CBD Revitalisation Special Committee was held on 7 November 2013




Mayor and Councillors’” information continued

Councillors' remuneration

In accordance with the Local Government Requlation 2012, the Local Government Remuneration and
Discipline Tribunal is responsible for determining the maximum remuneration payable to the Mayor,
Deputy Mayor and Councillors. The remuneration for Redland City Council Councillors for the period

1 January 2013 to 30 June 2014, which was determined in the 2012 Local Government Remuneration
and Discipline Tribunal report, is detailed below.

Mayor $154,636
Deputy Mayor ~ $105,434
Councillor $91,376

Councillors, including the Mayor and Deputy Mayor, did not receive an increase to their remuneration
during the 2013/14 financial year.
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Expenses reimbursement and provision of facilities for Councillors?

Head of power

Section 250 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012
defines the requirements for
the reimbursement of expenses
and provision of facilities for
Councillors.

The objectives of this policy are to:

e ensure compliance with
community expectations
and statutory requirements
relating to the payment or
reimbursement of legitimate
expenses and provision of
facilities for Councillors while
carrying out their duties and
responsibilities as elected
representatives of the Redland
City Council, and

e ensure that all Councillors
have the facilities and other
support necessary to perform
their civic duties.

Policy Statement

The payment and/or reimbursement of expenses and provision
of facilities for Councillors must only be for the actual cost of
legitimate business use and only in accordance with the Local
Government Act 20009.

Council is committed to ensuring that Councillors are provided
with the facilities required to enable them to perform their duties.

Councillors should not be financially disadvantaged when carrying
out the requirements of the role of Councillor and should be
fairly and reasonably compensated in accordance with statutory
requirements and community expectations.

The payment and/or reimbursement of expenses and provision
of facilities for Councillors:

* isto be open and transparent, prudent, responsible,
acceptable to the community and in accordance with
statutory requirements

e based on ensuring economy and efficiency, and
e subject to budget provisions.

Council's annual report must contain a copy of the policy and a
copy of any resolution made during the year authorising payment
of expenses or provision of facilities to Councillors. The annual
report must also include particulars about the expenses incurred
by, and the facilities provided to each Councillor.

Spouses, partners and family members of Councillors are not
entitled to reimbursement of expenses or to have access to
facilities allocated to Councillors.

For details about entitlements in regard to the payment or
reimbursement of councillor expenses and the provision
of facilities for councillors, refer to GL-3076-001 Guideline
— Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for
Councillors.

Failure to comply with this policy and guidelines, or
misappropriation of expenses or facilities, may constitute
‘misconduct’ and/or be an offence under the Criminal
Code Act 1899.

2No amendments to this policy have been made since October 2012.
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued

SCOPE
This policy provides for:

e Payment of expenses
incurred, or to be
incurred, by the
Councillors in the
course of discharging
their duties and
responsibilities as
Councillors; and

e Provision of facilities to
the Councillors for that
purpose.

This policy does not
provide for salaries or
other forms of Councillor
remuneration, nor does
it provide reimbursement
for non-business related
expenses unless
specifically stated.

DEFINITIONS

Authorising person is the person with delegated authority to approve
expenditure or reimbursement for Councillor expenses and facilities.

Council business means official business conducted on behalf of, and/or
approved by Council, where a Councillor is required to undertake certain
tasks to satisfy legislative requirements or achieve business continuity for
the Council. Council business should result in a benefit being achieved
either for Council, the local government area or the community.
Council business includes functions and events that are a statutory
requirement of the Councillor’s role, or are officially recorded
in minutes or other public records. This might also include attending an
event or function to perform official duties or as an official Council
representative, such as:
e ceremonial openings of buildings or facilities
o fétes, festivals and carnivals
e annual or presentation dinners
e public meetings
e private meetings arranged through official Council channels (i.e.
documented in official records or diary) for the purpose of conducting
bonafide discussions relating to the business of Council
e any other meeting, event or function described in section 107(4) Local
Government Act 2009 under ‘Insurance of Councillors’, for example,
attendance at:
- meetings of the local government or its committees that the
Councillor is entitled or asked to attend
- meetings for a resident of the local government area
- conferences, deputations, inspections and meetings at which the
Councillor's attendance is permitted by the local government
- official functions organised for the local government.
e gathering of information by a Councillor necessary to inform him or
her of an incident of interest to Council or which properly falls within
the responsibility of Council.

Councillors means all Councillors, including the Mayor and
Deputy Mayor.

Civic duties means Council business.
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Mayor and Councillors” information continued

Discretionary training is any training that is not determined by Council as “mandatory”.
Expenses refers to expenses described in the Guidelines.

Facilities refers to the facilities deemed necessary to assist Councillors in their role as shown in the
Guidelines.

Mandatory training is any training in a list that Council resolves that all, or one or more Councillors
must attend.

Meal allowance is the daily amount allowed for meals while travelling on Council business.
Official capacity refers to activities undertaken while on Council business.
Public record is any record created, received or kept in an official capacity.

Representing Council a Councillor is representing Council when Council resolves that the Councillor
is to attend an event or function as a representative of Council.

Travel advance is a cash payment paid in advance for anticipated expenses associated with travelling
on Council business. A travel advance may include expenses for meals, accommodation and incidentals.
All expenses must be reconciled after the travel has occurred.

Related Policies/Legislation/Documents

e [ocal Government Act 2009
e [ocal Government Regqulation 2012

® GL-3076-001 Guideline — Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for Councillors

e Redland City Council Procurement Manual
® /ncome Tax Assessment Act 1997

e Taxation Rulings issued by the Australian Taxation Office

Reporting Requirements
¢ Disclosure of publicly funded overseas travel — Annual Report
e Domestic and international travel — Council reports and Annual Report (international only)

e Resolutions made during the year authorising the payment or provision of remuneration, including
expenses paid or facilities provided to Councillors or members of committees of the local
government — Annual Report

e Particulars of the total remuneration paid or provided, including expenses paid or facilities provided
to each Councillor during the year and the total superannuation contributions paid for each
Councillor during the year — Annual Report

e A copy of POL-3076 Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for Councillors — Annual
Report and Council’s website

e Changes to POL-3076 — advertised in local newspaper on the Council’s website.
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Mandatory Training for Councillors

The following is a list of training requirements
requiring mandatory attendance by at least one,
and in some cases all, Councillors. Guidance

is provided alongside each item. Payment of
expenses incurred in attending these events
does not affect each Councillor's discretionary
training budget:

1. Australian Local Government Association
- National General Assembly. (It is usual
for one or more Councillors to attend this
event. The most senior Councillor, usually
the Mayor, attending the event will be the
official voting delegate of Council.)

2. Local Government Association of
Queensland - State Conference. (It is usual
for one or more Councillors to attend this
event. Council will resolve prior to the
event which attendee/s will have delegated
voting authority as it is usual for Council to
have several votes on each motion before
the Conference.)

3. Local Government Association of
Queensland - Civic Leaders and Financial
Summit. (It is usual for the Mayor, Deputy
Mayor and CEO only to be invited to
attend this event.)

4. Local Government Association of
Queensland - Elected Member Professional
Development.

(All Councillors attend this training.)

5. Courses provided by providers other than
the Local Government Association of
Queensland (e.g. the Department of Local
Government), which relate to updating
Councillors with regard to their core
responsibilities - e.g. changes to legislation.
(All Councillors attend this training.)

6. Redland City Council training programs
which are required to enable Councillors
to fulfil their core responsibilities - e.g.
information technology, occupational
health and safety, Councillor induction,
code of conduct and meeting procedures.
(All Councillors attend this training.)

Mayor and Councillors” information continued

The following is a list of other training
opportunities which, while not mandatory in

the sense that one or more Councillors must
attend every event, are of sufficient relevance to
a Councillor's responsibilities to be of significant
potential benefit to each elected member, and it
is likely that a Councillor will wish to attend and
present their learnings back to the full Council. In
that regard, attendance, while not mandatory, will
not require the use of a Councillor’s discretionary
training budget to meet the associated costs:

7. Local Government Association of
Queensland - Infrastructure Summit

8. Local Government Association
of Queensland — Disaster Management
Conference

9. Local Government Association of
Queensland — Community Wellbeing
Symposium

10. Local Government Managers
Australia — National Congress

11. Local Government Managers Australia
(Queensland) — Queensland State
Conference

12. Planning Institute of Australia —
National Congress

13. Planning Institute of Australia —
Queensland State Conference

14. Institute of Public Works Engineering
Australia — National Conference

15. Institute of Public Works Engineering
Australia — Queensland State
Conference

16. Queensland Environmental Law
Association — State Conference

17. Australian Local Government Women's
Association — National Conference

18. Australian Local Government Women's
Association — Queensland State
Conference.
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Our organisation

Organisational chart

Human Resources Financial Services

Process & Performance ' General Counsel

Organisational v Infrastructure & Community &
Services Operations Customer Services
" .
e 8 Distribution & Community &
Treatment? Cultural Services
—
Communications ! Infrastructure & Environment &
Planning? Regulation
S

Information Project City Planning &
Management Delivery Assessment

Corporate City Planning Scheme
Governance Spaces Review

Priority .
Development ” City
Project nfrastuctiure

Note': Communications renamed Communication, Engagement & Tourism 28 November 2013
Note?: Distribution & Treatment renamed Water & Waste Operations 9 October 2013

Note®: Infrastructure & Planning renamed Water & Waste Infrastructure 9 October 2013
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Our organisation continued

Organisational chart
(from 17 March 2014)

CEO
Human Financial General Organisational | | Infrastructure Community
Resources Services Counsel Services & Operations e SIS
Services
" Water & Waste Community &
| Internal Audit | | : 1 Y
Operations | [lcultural Services
-CE?\?arg:mcear}’i[Og' | Water & Waste| || Environment
Tourism Infrastructure & Regulation
| Information ||| Project City Planning
Management Delivery | & Assessment
Corporate || City Spaces | || Planning
Governance Scheme Review
Priority City
| Development | Lo ctructure
Project
| Process &
Performance*

* The Group Manager Process & Performance moved to Organisational Services Department effective from 17 March 2014




Manager Process and
Performance®

Chris Taylor

Advanced Diploma of Project
Management - AdvDipPM,;

Lean Six Sigma (Membership
Lean Six Sigma Division) — MLSSD;
Personal Membership Australian
Quality Centre - AOQ-QLD

Andrew Ross
Bachelor of Law; Bachelor of
Theology; Masters in Health Science

3 Eleanor Noonan was Acting Head of Human Resources from 20 May 2013 to 23 May 2014. Amanda Daly returned to the position

on 24 May 2014

4 The Chief Financial Officer left Council on 25 April 2014 and the position filled by Linnet Batz on 16 June 2014

°To 27 June 2014

Redland City Council

Annual Report 2013-14




Corporate Plan.

Employee developme

Council continued with its commitment to
employee development with a strong focus
on coordinating and delivering the training
for workplace health and safety compliance
through the skills matrix and the safety
leadership program for managers and
SUPErVIsors.

Council also recognised the need for strong,
visible and capable leadership moving

into the future, to provide long-term
sustainable products and service delivery to
our community. It was highlighted that a
Leadership Development Program needed to
be designed to build capability at all leadership
levels. Consultation was conducted across the
business and tender documentation prepared.
Submissions were received from local and state
businesses. It is intended that 2014-15 will see
the design, development and implementation

of the Leadership Development Program.




Our people continued

A team of professionals across Council
participated in the Local Government Managers
Association Challenge. This enabled experiential
learning at a high level and was a valuable
component of leadership development.

Employee Satisfaction

The significant change agenda in the previous year
(2012-13) was followed by two staff surveys in
2013-14 to elicit feedback on how changes were
managed, the organisation’s ability to meet our
peoples needs and objectives, and any emerging
issues requiring consideration. The identified

issues and opportunities for improvement in both
surveys included the need to provide our people
with the right skills and resources, to directly
involve people in decisions that affect them, to
raise awareness of the drivers for change, and to
continue to establish better systems, processes
and procedures. Employees are generally confident
in the organisation’s leadership, particularly with
regard to their immediate supervisor and their
Group Manager.

E-learning continues as a focus to ensure
appropriate and relevant training is flexible and
adaptable to Council’s changing business needs.
These modules are rolled out to minimise class-
based training and enhance cost effectiveness.

Other effective training methods have been the
development of operational leadership forums to
discuss whole-of-council topics (i.e. Culture and
Leadership) delivered by the executive team guest
speakers and the development of ‘toolbox talks’,
which are delivered by managers to their staff

on relevant and site-specific topics for discussion
and engagement.

In addition, employees have access to the
education assistance scheme, receiving support
with tertiary studies. This year employees again
graduated with an accredited qualification
(Diploma or Certificate IV) in business-related
areas. These accredited qualifications were
supported through various local government
funding programs.

Equity, diversity and equal
opportunity
Council is committed to preventing discrimination

within our organisation. A number of strategies
and initiatives were delivered in 2013-14:

e ensuring the review of all guidelines and
procedures facilitates equity and diversity;

e delivering a new induction framework with
manuals and support materials for all new
employees (including our equal employment
opportunities program);

Traineeships

Our traineeship program continued to provide
opportunities to ‘earn and learn’ across a variety

of departments in a local government setting. * providing recruitment and selection training

Redland City Council

Council currently employs 14 full-time trainees,
one apprentice and hosts 10 indigenous school-
based trainees. Areas of study include certificates
in Business Administration, Horticulture,
Conversation and Land Management,
Information & Cultural Services, Automotive,
Water Operations, and Tourism. In 2014, Council
has received incentives from both the State

and Federal governments to assist with the
employment costs of our trainees. A graduation
was held in January this year to congratulate
and farewell our participants in the 2013

trainee program.

Annual Report 2013-14

for employees (including interviewing skills and
resume skills workshops);

ensuring a cross-gender Council team is
represented at the LGMA Management
Challenge;

ensuring mentoring, advice and support is
available from Human Resources Advisers;

supporting and promoting the Employee
Assistance Program;

investigating equity and diversity training needs
from the staff survey, feedback forms, and
performance appraisals;

promoting programs to support the personal,
professional and career development (of
women in particular, including Women in
Local Government).



Our people continued

Certified Agreement

The Industrial Relations (Fair Work Act
Harmonisation No. 2) and Other Legislation
Amendment Bill 2013 commenced on

1 December 2013 and provides for modernisation
of Queensland Awards with some aspects of the
Bill being retrospective to 17 October 2013. These
retrospective changes had an effect on the RCC
Officers” and Employees’ Certified Agreements
2013 which were submitted to the Queensland
Industrial Relations Commission (QIRC) for
certification on 7 November 2013.

To ensure clarity, the parties to Council's
agreements (i.e. Redland City Council and the
relevant unions) have agreed to embody the
terms and conditions of both agreements into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which
preserves the terms and conditions of these
instruments.

Our MOU was created, in conjunction with
unions, to honour a continuation of our current
2013 agreements that were bargained, in

good faith, but not legally honoured due to
retrospective legislation.

The Attorney-General and Minister for Industrial
Relations requested that the QIRC create a local
government modern award. A single modern
award will cover local government and is being
created to replace approximately 20 existing local
government awards. The current 2013 certified
agreements will remain in place until either the
expiry date or until such time Council is directed
to align to the new modern award.

Safety and wellbeing

The Safety First — Redland agenda is embedded
and driven by the development of the annual
Safety Management Plan. Through this, Council
has continued towards its goal of preventing
workplace-related injuries and illness by health
monitoring activities and wellness programs.

Building on the safety culture and introducing
safety leadership programs for frontline team
leaders and supervisors has contributed to a
very well-supported commitment to safety

in the workplace.

A health and safety skills matrix continues to
provide a learning pathway for individual
workplace health and safety training needs.

Council is audited externally every year and our

safety performance is monitored and reviewed

regularly by senior management. During the 2013

audit, further improvements in compliance and

continuous improvements were reported. 31

A series of internal Safety Element Audits
focussing on procedure compliance were
conducted across business units throughout
the year. The audits identified good levels of
compliance across the organisation.

The Competency to Operate Program for plant
and equipment continues to develop and manage
plant-related hazards effectively. This program
provides tools for our employees to conduct trade
training and testing on the job, without relying on
external providers.



Redland City Council

Our people continued

The wellbeing agenda continues to grow with
health assessments, health monitoring programs
and functional capacity assessments being
conducted on all manual task-related roles to
address the risk of musculoskeletal injuries and
encourage healthy ageing in our workforce.

The Work Conditioning Area at the South Street
Depot was opened after construction was made
possible through a Healthy Worker Funding
Initiative from Workplace Health and Safety
Queensland. The program provides a control to

Employees at a glance

Employees (total number of employees)

Permanent 749
Permanent part-time 79
Temporary contract of service full-time 67
Temporary contract of service part-time 12
Contract of service (executive) 21
Casual (based on hours worked) 60
Total 988

Corporate profile

Full-time equivalent employees 912
(includes contract of services and

elected members. FTE for full-time

and part-time based on hours of work

pattern and not actual hours worked)

Casual full-time equivalent employees 0.76
(based on hours worked)

Full-time permanent positions 883
Part-time permanent positions 55
Part-time temporary positions 87
Part-time temporary positions 13
New full-time permanent positions 36
New part-time permanent positions 1
New full-time temporary positions 37
New part-time temporary positions 8
New casual positions 24

Annual Report 2013-14

minimise the risk of musculoskeletal injuries to
Council workers who are involved in high-risk
occupations by ensuring they have a suitable level
of fitness to perform their job safely.

Further continuous improvements were
made to Council’s e-safety management
through refinements to the Vault electronic
safety management database system. These
improvements allow managers to monitor
compliance activities and see progress on
corrective actions and incidents.

Employees recruited

Internal (under Redland City Council 59
Officers’ Agreement)

External (under Redland City Council 31
Employees’ Agreement)

Total 920

Employee departures

Employee-initiated turnover rate 6.59%
Employer-initiated turnover rate 4.94%
Employees made redundant 27
Employees redeployed/retrained 6
due to redundancy
Gender balance

Female Male
Executive/Senior 27.27% 72.73%
Management Group
Elected representatives  36.36% 63.64%
Total employees 51.51% 48.49%

Executive Leadership Group

Number of Executive
Leadership Group

Remuneration range
(total package)

paid
$300,000 to $400,000 1
$200,000 to $300,000 5
$100,000 to $200,000 2
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Redland City Council

Right to Information and Privacy

During 2013-14, a total of 41 applications were
received requesting access to Council documents.
A total of 6880 pages were considered for
release to applicants, which is a 21% increase
on the number of pages considered the previous
year. A total of 37 decisions were issued to
applicants, all within legislative timeframes. Of
the 41 applications received, 3 applications were
withdrawn, leaving one application on hand as
at 30 June 2013. Applicants who are dissatisfied
with a decision under the Right to Information

Governance at Redland City Council continued

Act 2009 or the Information Privacy Act 2009
can request an internal or external review of the
decision. During 2013-14, there were no requests
received for internal or external reviews. One
internal review, carried over from the previous
year, was finalised with the original decision
upheld. One external review, also carried over
from the previous year, was finalised with the
original decision varied due to the applicant
amending their scope with the Office of the
Information Commissioner.

RTI/IP Applications Received 2013-14

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

I 2013-14 Applications Received

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

—a— 2013-14 Cumulative Total
—&— 2012-13 Cumulative Total
—&— 2011-12 Cumulative Total
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Risk Management

Council continues to be committed to enterprise-
wide risk management. All significant risks are
identified, managed and mitigated in accordance
with Council’s Enterprise Risk Management
Policy and Framework which conforms with the
Australia/New Zealand/ISO Standard 31000.

Risks identified are recorded in three major
categories: strategic, operational and activity.
Strategic risks are monitored and reviewed
annually and a formal review of the operational
risks, together with a sign-off by Group Managers,
takes place quarterly.

Council has an Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) which meets quarterly

and the risk registers are presented at this
meeting for endorsement. The risk registers are
periodically presented to the Audit Committee
for review and comment.

Claims statistics are also presented to the ORMC
in line with a commitment to keep executive
management informed about the nature and
number of claims being received and suggestions
are made in connection with the perceived
exposure.

A periodic review of the Risk Framework and the
Risk Assessment methodology was undertaken
during the 2013-14 year to ensure the documents
remain up to date with contemporary standards.

Governance at Redland City Council continued

Fraud and Misconduct Prevention

Council has a Fraud and Corruption Prevention
Policy (POL-3060) that outlines Council’s stance
on fraud and corruption. The policy informs all
Council officers, Councillors, consultants and
contractors of Council’s position regarding fraud
and corruption and the consequences of failing
to comply with the provisions of the policy.

Council is committed to:

e a3 zero-tolerance approach to fraud and
corruption;

e corruption and fraud control and management
as an integral component of effective corporate
governance;

e transparent and accountable processes
consistent with sound business practices and
organisational standards of compliance;

e preventing fraud and corruption and
investigating all suspected incidents and
taking appropriate action;

e maintaining an integrated Fraud and Corruption
Prevention Framework to minimise the impact
and reduce the risk of fraud and corruption
within the work environment.

The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Framework
is Council’s strategic guideline that:

¢ defines management and staff responsibilities;
and

e ensures the implementation of robust practices
for the effective detection, investigation and
prevention of fraud and corruption of any
description within Council.
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Administrative Action Complaints

Redland City Council is committed to fair Council received 119 new administrative action
and effective management of administrative complaints that were dealt with under the
complaints and has established a revised complaints process. There was one carried over

Complaints Management Process in line with the from 2008-09 and 18 carried over from 2012-13,
requirements of the Local Government Act 2009. giving a total of 138 complaints for 2013-14. Of
those 138, 126 were resolved under the process

During 2013-14, the following statistics are and 12 left unresolved as at 30 June 2014

reported in accordance with the requirements
of Section 187 (1)-(2) of the Local Government
Reqgulation 2012.

Complaints reported in accordance with section 186(f) of the

Local Government Regulation 2012

(@) Frivolous, vexatious or unsubstantiated 3

(b) Complaints about the Mayor or Deputy Mayor referred to the department’s 0
chief executive

(@ Councillors complaints referred to the Mayor 1

(d) Complaints referred to the department’s chief executive 2

(e) Complaints assessed by the Chief Executive Officer as being about corrupt conduct 1

under the Crime and Corruption Act 2001

(f) Complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel and/or tribunal 2

(9) Complaint is about another matter 0

Complaints reported in accordance with section 176C of the
Local Government Act 2009 (revised 2012)

(h) Regional Conduct Review Panel orders and recommendations 0
(i) Tribunal orders and recommendations 0
0) Mayor or departments Chief Executive Orders reprimanding a Councillor for 1

inappropriate conduct

Complaint Orders/Recommendations Summary Detail reported in accordance with

Section 186(e) of the Local Government Regulation 2012

(k) The name of each Councillor who was Councillor Craig Ogilvie
subject to an order under section 180 and
181
(1) Description of misconduct or inappropriate Inappropriate use of a Council iPad for
conduct engaged in by each of the personal use.
councillors
(m) Summary of Order or recommendation Order reprimanding the Councillor and

that any repeat inappropriate conduct be
referred to the Regional Conduct Review
Panel as misconduct.

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




~ information;

e use of public funds and assets
under Council’s control;

adequacy and accuracy of
accounting and computing
systems.

Internal Audit also:

e conducts special
investigations requested

by the CEO;

provides an advisory
function concerning business
improvement processes and
systems of internal controls.

In 2013-14, its findings
confirmed that a satisfactory
internal control environment
exists within Council.

ne p
Services portfolio and two
independent external members,
Mr Virendra Dua and Mr Peter
Dowling. The Audit Committee
was chaired by the spokesperson
of the Corporate Services
portfolio, Councillor Mark
Edwards.

The primary objective of the
Audit Committee is to help
Council fulfil its corporate
governance role and oversight
of financial management

and reporting responsibilities
imposed under sections

208 - 211 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012
and other relevant legislation.

the management
s strategic risks.

Under its charter, the committee
meets four times per year. The
external and internal auditors,
the CEO, General Managers and
Chief Financial Officer attend
each meeting.

External Audit

Council is audited annually by
the Queensland Audit Office,
which reports to Queensland
Parliament as part of its role

to enhance public sector
accountability. It continuously
reviews and assesses the internal
control environment surrounding
Council’s financial and related
systems and practices. This
provides a statutory mechanism
for external review of Council’s
financial operations and other
corporate matters affecting the
sound management of

the organisation.



Council performance

Delivering the Operational Plan 2013-14

The Operational Plan 2013-14 included 51 projects . At the end of the
financial year, 31 projects had been fully delivered. Projects which were
not completed at the end of the year continue to be monitored until
completion.

Completed 31
Ongoing monitoring until completion 20
Total 51

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Healthy natural environment

Number of people in the 5,000 5,180 8,816 7589
community involved in
environmental programs

In the 2013-14 financial year there were 7589 people involved in Council's environmental education
programs. This included our private property partnerships (habitat protection programs), Community
Bushcare Program and three main community plantings, wildlife rescue service, school education
programs (both in-school and at IndigiScapes), volunteers at IndigiScapes and the IndigiKids program.

38

There were a further 4600 people who attended the three main environmental events at IndigiScapes
for the year - Wonderful Wildlife (900), Good Gardening Expo (1400) and Indigi Day Out (2600).

Number of koalas sighted as part 28 31 52 64
of annual koala count on North
Stradbroke Island

The annual koala count at the North Stradbroke Island townships occurred in October 2014. There
were 64 koalas recorded in total with a particularly large increase at Amity. There were 15 koalas at
Dunwich (including three juveniles), 40 recorded at Amity (seven juveniles), five recorded at Point

Lookout (one juvenile) and four at Flinders Beach (one juvenile).

Redland City Council Annual Report 2013-14



Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Healthy natural environment
Total number of koala trees planted 7,465 5,318 5,855 6,991
During the 2013-14 financial year, 6991 koala food trees were planted by Council.

Healthy waterways data from F D+ F F
ecosystem health monitoring
program - freshwater creeks

Healthy waterways data from C+ C+ B- C+
ecosystem health monitoring
program - Tingalpa Creek

Healthy waterways data from C- C+ B- B
ecosystem health monitoring
program - Eprapah Creek

Waterway health rating in Redlands ~ Fair to Good Fair to Good Fair to Good  Fair to Good

Redlands' waterway recovery program delivers a comprehensive local assessment of waterway health

for each of our 11 major catchments and the Southern Moreton Bay Islands. In 2014 the overall water

quality trend for the mainland freshwater creeks was generally fair to good with 66% rating in fair to

good condition. These results suggests that there is an overall decline in many of our creeks since last

year primarily due to low rainfall and less flushing of our creeks as this has been our driest year yet since

this monitoring began. 39

Council will continue to monitor the creeks and focus on future management efforts for waterway
recovery. We have had major achievements in our Waterway Recovery program which was celebrated
at the IndigiScapes Centre earlier this year.

Total number of new plantings 58,950 67,402 77,086 91,268

Significant planting occurred at the following sites:
e Judy Holt batter — Alexandra Hills

e Crystal Waters — Thornlands

e Silvara Circuit — Capalaba

¢ Wellington Point foreshore — Wellington Point

e Unwin Road — Redland Bay

¢ Ney Road — Capalaba

Number of complaints regarding 1,075 830 593 454
overgrown allotments

There continues to be a steady decline in complaints due to proactive management of
the overgrown process.

Total area (hectares) treated for 2,693 3,525 4,013.3 6,425.9
mosquitoes

There was a significant increase in the area treated for mosquitoes, as well as the number of treatments
required. This was due to variations in weather and tides as well as mosquito breeding behaviour. An
average mortality rate of 96.6% was achieved over the year, which is an excellent result.




Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Green living

Annual energy consumption for 3,142,808 2,943,984 2,699,564 3,027,500
Council's occupied buildings kw kw kw kw

This year we started recording Toondah Harbour Business Centre (new site), and ceased recording two
vacated small sites (Oakland Street and Killara Place). There was an increase compared to last year when
compared to the base year measured in 2009-10, the saving is 15.8% and 499 tonnes of greenhouse
gas emissions.

Total creditor payments 37,911,543 44,890,607 43,987,564 37,355,965
to local businesses

From a total spend of $168,935,599 in 2013-14, $37,355,965 (22.12%) was paid to businesses with a
registered address in the Redlands. While Council purchasing is governed by strict legislative requirements
and the need to ensure best value for ratepayers, Council always strives to support local suppliers where they
can demonstrate that they are competitive on price and quality. This report reflects the payments made by
post code and does not capture the businesses that have a registered office in the Redlands but payment is
made to their head office either in Queensland or interstate (e.9.$958,326 for fuel paid to Melbourne and
Sydney offices).

Number of routine environmental 222 209 102 14
licence inspections for environmentally
relevant activities (ERASs)

Due to changes within the Environmental Protection Act 1994 and the Environmental Protection (Green
Tape Reduction) and Other Legislation Amendment Act 2012, the number of Environmentally Relevant
Activities that Council has licensed has decreased from 219 to 14. There were no compliance actions
against these licensed activities in 2013-14.

Percentage of recyclable material 21.93% 22.40% 25% 25.5%
diverted from kerbside collection

The overall percentage of recyclable material diverted from the kerbside collection was 25.5%, which met
the target for 2013-14 as stated in the RedWaste Annual Performance Plan. Overall kerbside waste remained
approximately the same as 2012-13, with an increase of only 15.15 tonnes. A total of 2094 tonnes of green
waste was collected by the kerbside green waste service. Total kerbside recycling contamination rate dropped
t0 8.3%, or 1082 tonnes of waste presented in the kerbside recycling bin.

Total domestic tonnage of waste sent to 437 409 391.55 377.29
landfill per capita/year tonnes tonnes tonnes tonnes

Total waste sent to landfill per capita for 2013-14 was 377.29kg (target 410kg). This continuing reduction
in per capita waste to landfill can be attributed to improved recycling and resource recovery at waste
transfer stations, the kerbside green waste collection service and overall reduced waste generation

in the community.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Embracing the bay
Capital spending on Southern $3,824,650 $3,244,934 $2,493,960 $1,634,933

Moreton Bay Islands

The road program for Southern Moreton Bay Islands completed in the 2013-14 financial year
included the following:

e Eastbourne Terrace, Macleay Island stage two

e Hastings Terrace, Macleay Island

® Ross and Regal Streets, Russell Island

e Browning Street, Russell Island

e Union Street, Russell Island

e Cooee Crescent, Macleay Island

e Tenanne Street, Russell Island - design only

* Beelong Street, Macleay Island - drainage extension

Number of new and upgraded 4 3 3 5
bay access points

e Orana Esplanade beach access ramp

e William Street South, Cleveland, ramp

e Yabby Street, Stradbroke Island, boat ramp upgrade (toe planks)
e Redland Bay jetty vehicle access upgrade

e Russell Island barge ramp upgrade
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Quandamooka Country

Level of community awareness on local 60.4% Unavailable 72.3% Unavailable
Aboriginal history and culture

This data is collected every two years. The next survey will be completed in 2014-15.

Wise planning and design
Total kilometres of cycleways constructed 2.6 km 1.2 km 0 km 2.2 km
Total extent of cycleways in the city 53 km 54 km 54 km 56.2 km

The strategic focus for Council continues to be completing and improving links of the Moreton Bay
Cycleway (MBC), which is part of the Cycleway Trunk Network. In 2013-14, three important sections
of the MBC were completed:

e Hilliards Creek Crossing;

e Masthead to Wharf;

e V/ictoria Point to Point O'Halloran

Further site assessment and planning were undertaken in 2013-14 for linkages in Thornlands,

Victoria Point and Redland Bay.

Total kilometres of footpaths constructed 3.645 km 2.8 km 2.1 km 4 km
Total extent of footpaths in the city 380 km 383 km 385 km 389 km

The new footpaths constructed in 2013-14 continue to add to the existing network, completing
missing links near schools, transport hubs and community facilities.

Number of new attached housing 308 102 60 152
approvals
Number of new detached housing 705 451 446 714
approvals

With another year of tighter global and local economic conditions, the dwelling approval statistics detail
a high level of dwelling approvals. Attached dwelling approvals have increased 153% and detached
dwelling approvals have increased 60% from last year. This increase is expected to continue in 2014-15
and is a good indication of efficient use of available land within the Redlands.

Number of bus shelters provided 27 4 9 3

In addition to the three new bus shelters installed across the City, a total of 52 minimum boarding
points were also installed to meet the requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 and
TransLink guidelines.

Land acquired for open space and nature 70.3 ha 38.33 ha 32.08 ha 6 ha
conservation

Two new public recreation parks (1.1ha) of new trustee land (both with drainage constraints) and nine
new open-space areas for conservation, waterway, foreshore or drainage purposes (4.9ha)
were acquired during 2013-14.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Supportive and vibrant economy
Total number of international students 114 82 78 81

Schools hosted 81 international students.

Total number of businesses assisted by 690 736 496 770
business support programs

Council’s business support programs undertook 770 activities; which included attending business
meetings and assisting businesses.

Number of visitors to the Visitor 6,891 10,100 27,113 31,083
Information Centre

More than 31,000 people visited the Visitor Information Centre in 2013-14.

Strong and connected communities

Percentage of generally compliant food 97.25% 97.5% 96% 98.5%
businesses

Council monitors food businesses and 98.5% of businesses are generally compliant with the requirements
of legislation, which is an excellent overall level of compliance.

Percentage of residents satisfied with safety 75% Unavailable 76.6%  Unavailable
in the City and their neighbourhood

Research is carried out every two years and is therefore not available for 2013-14.

Number of events managed 20 21 24 29

A total of 29 corporate events were managed by the Communication, Engagement and Tourism Group
during the financial year. These included Redlands Business Expo, Christmas by Starlight, Movie in the Park
and numerous citizenship ceremonies. The events engaged nearly 22,000 residents and stakeholders during
the financial year.

Value of grants committed to community $675,130 $625,103 $849,733  $575,311
from Council

Community Grants Program 2013-14 expenditure totalled $575,310.77. This consisted of the following:
e Organisational Support Grants - $59,945.30

e Project Support Grants - 167,463.60

e Conservation Grants - $67,112.96

e Regional Arts Development Fund - $93,678

e Capital Infrastructure Grants - $187,110.91
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Strong and connected communities

Number of sponsorships approved 38 42 24 29

A total of $126,000 in outgoing sponsorship for 2013-14 was expended at the end of June 2014.
The Sponsorship Program was significantly oversubscribed, with 57 applications received and only
21% of dollars sought being funded.

Inclusive and ethical governance
Total number of media liaisons 494 295 369 456
A total of 456 media releases and responses were prepared and issued during the 2013-14 financial

year. This is an increase of 23.6% compared to 2012-13. In addition, more than 88% of releases were
published in the media.

Monthly average number of visits to 53,000 54,904 65,423 62,540
Council's corporate home page

Website visitation has decreased 4.4% from 2012-13. This decrease may have resulted due to
news items being moved to a separate site. The average number of visits per month to our news site
was 4,328.

Number of community 58 51 29 121
engagements recorded by Council

A total of 44 community forums were held during 2013-14 which attracted more than 5,000
residents and stakeholders.

Total number of visits to Council's 7,475 4,105 6,725 3,995
consultation pages

The number of visits to our consultation pages has decreased by 40% compared to 2012-13 due
to a reduced number of on-line consultations during this period.

Percentage of the community who 41.4% Unavailable 47.3% Unavailable
agree they have the opportunity to

have a say on key decisions affecting

Redlands on important issues.

This indicator is only reported every two years because it relates to a question in the Community
Satisfaction Survey. The survey is carried out every two years and the next survey is planned for
October 2014
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Inclusive and ethical governance
Total number of full-time 690° 702 762 749

employees in the organisation
Slight reduction in the number of full-time employees due to organisational restructuring.

Community satisfaction with 47.7% Unavailable 52.5% Unavailable
Council leadership

This indicator is only reported every two years because it relates to a question in the Community
Satisfaction Survey. The survey is carried out every two years and the next survey is planned for October
2014.

Total revenue raised from rates, $95,535,567 $100,405,652 $190,294,552  $197,243,343
utilities, special charges and

separate charges, less discounts

and remissions

The increase in general rates realised from 2012-13 to 2013-14 is approximately 3.6%. This is as a
result of both price and growth increases and is across general rates, utility charges and special charges
as well as separate charges. The budget development process provided Council with price increases
across revenue categories as mentioned above. The total general rate price increase for 2013-14 from
2012-13 was 1.43% and water revenues were reduced from the prior year. During the year Council
revised its budgeted revenues to reflect the growth (water consumption and other growth factors),
resulting in a final favourable variance to the adopted budget of 0.36%.

An efficient and effective organisation

Number of part-time employees in 110 99 85 79
the organisation

There has been a slight decline in the number of part-time employees. This is due to organisational
redesign.

Cash capacity 6 7.2 4.98 6.51

For the year ended 30 June 2014 Council's cash capacity ratio of 6.51 exceeds the target range of 3 - 4
months and is consistent with prior years. The ratio provides an indication of the number of months
that recurrent expenses can be covered by the cash held at the end of the particular period. The 2013-
14 result confirms that Council is in a healthy cash position and is well placed to cover its payments to
suppliers and employees, as well as interest expense on borrowed funds.

°>The annual figure for 2010-11 of 888.09 reported in the Annual Report 2010-11 was incorrect. This figure was for full time equivalent
employees, including part time employees and contractors.
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Council performance continued

Activity 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
An efficient and effective organisation
Level of dependence on general rates 44% 47 % 34% 33.74%

The level of dependence on general rate revenue came in at 33.74% for the year ended 30 June
2014 and is consistent with the prior year. This ratio demonstrates Council's general rate revenue as a
percentage of total operating revenue. This result is within the target range of less than 37.5%.

Operating surplus ratio -11.90% -10.72% -6.71% 6.37%

Council achieved an operating surplus for the year ended 30 June 2014 of $14.3M compared to a
budgeted operating deficit of $2.3M per the Q3 revised budget for 2013-14. This result equates to
6.37% of total operating revenue.

Percentage of female employees in 27% 32% 23.81% 27.27%
management positions

This figure is based on the top three senior management tiers (CEO, General and Group Managers).

Percentage of male employees in 73% 68% 76.19% 72.73%
management positions

This figure is based on the top three senior management tiers (CEO, General and Group Managers).

Percentage of female employees 59% 58% 49.53% 51.51%

Council has a relatively even split of male and female employees.

Percentage of male employees 41% 42% 50.47% 48.49%

Council has a relatively even split of male and female employees.

Percentage of employee turnover 14% 13% 17.87% 11.53%

This figure demonstrates the number of employee and employer-initiated separations.

Percentage of overall absenteeism of 4.92% 4.62% 4.07% 4.98%
employees

There has been an increase in absenteeism and this is being monitored and actioned by management.
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Our statutory duties

This annual report, covering
the 2013-14 financial year,

has been provided to meet
the requirements of the Local
Government Act 2009 and the
Local Government Regulation
2012. This legislation requires

RedWaste to report annually on
its operations and performance

and includes information on:

¢ changes made to the annual

performance plan during
the year.

impacts of the annual

performance plan, including:

- financial position

- operating surplus or deficit

- prospects

e details of Council’s direction
to the unit.

the Island’s businesses,
community hall and waste
transfer station. RedWaste
will continue to market the
service and explore new
opportunities to expand
the service.

The kerbside green organics
collection service continued
to be rolled out across the
City as an optional service for
residential and commercial
properties. The service aims
to reduce the amount of
biodegradable organic green
waste sent to landfill each
year and diverted 2,094
tonnes of green waste to

30 June 2014. As at 30 June
2014, there were 7,244
properties participating in
the service. The material is
sent to a composting facility
where it is processed into soil
and mulch products.

 long

to achieve key targets
in waste reduction and
recycling.

St. Rita’s and Vienna Woods
schools have been awarded
2 star accreditation in the
Keep Queensland Beautiful
Cleaner Greener Schools
Program, with St. Rita’s
awarded most-improved
school in the state. Council’s
Waste Education Officer
undertook 95 school visits
and community extension
activities, including school
assemblies and presentations,
waste audits and open days.




RedWaste continued

e Electronic waste (e-waste) recycling at e A contract for the collection, transport
Council’s mainland waste transfer stations and recycling of cardboard at the Russell,
continued to perform well diverting Macleay and North Stradbroke Island waste
395 tonnes of televisions and computer transfer stations was awarded, which aims
equipment from landfill during 2013-14. to divert around 75 tonnes of cardboard

annually and provide much-needed
recycling facilities for the islands.

Key performance indicators

Number of domestic waste and recycling collections

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Waste 52,134 51,606 52,415 53,659
Recycle 51,977 51,539 52,415 53,712

Percentage growth in number of domestic waste and recycling collections

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Waste -2.76% -1.01% 1.57% 2.37%
Recycle -2.68% -0.84% 1.70% 2.47%

Net amount and type of commingled recyclable waste from kerbside recycling collection

(tonnes)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Aluminium 82 100 92 108
Glass 4,313 3,955 3,484 4,330
High density polyethylene/PET 555 907 806 824
Steel 189 202 182 223
Cardboard and paper 7,179 6,910 7,178 6,371
Total 12,318 12,074 11,742 11,856
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RedWaste continued

Change (percentage) in net amount and type of recyclable waste from kerbside recycling

collection (tonnes)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Aluminium 3.66% 18.00% -11.96% 17.39%
Glass -7.95% -9.05% -17.19% 24.28%
High density polyethylene/PET 3.96% 38.81% -15.01% 2.23%
Steel 0.00% 6.44% -14.84% 22.52%
Cardboard and paper -4.65% -3.89% 0.79% -11.24%
Total -5.29% -2.02% -5.97% 0.28%

Kilograms per household per week

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Mass of kerbside domestic waste 15.60 kg 14.76 kg 14.54 kg 14.25 kg
stream
Mass of kerbside domestic 4.50 kg 4.38 kg 4.30 kg 5.51 kg
recycling stream
Mass of contaminants in the 0.44 kg 0.46 kg 0.51 kg 0.47 kg
kerbside domestic recycling 49
stream

Recyclable material diverted from kerbside waste stream (tonnes)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2012-13
Total kerbside waste 54,379 54,013 54,895 54,790
Total kerbside recycling (including 12,971 12,073 13,750 13,950
green waste)
Percentage of kerbside material 22% 22% 25% 25.5%

diverted from landfill

Recoverable material diverted from landfill at waste transfer stations

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Total waste received at transfer 63,374 61,301 74,353° 65,471
stations
Materials diverted for recycling/reuse 28,469 33,435 42,785 39,138
at transfer stations
Percentage of recoverable material 45% 55% 58%’ 60%
diverted from landfill at transfer
stations

6 The figure provided in the 2012-13 Annual Report of 70,666 was incorrect. The figure has been changed to reflect the correct figure in this report.

7 The figure provided in the 2012-13 Annual Report of 61% was incorrect. The figure has been changed to reflect the correct figure in this report.



RedWaste continued

Performance Indicators

Program  Component Performance measure 2012-13 2013-14
Waste and  Domestic waste Percentage of missed 0.026% 0.028%
recycling services complaints
collections  General waste Percentage of other 0.003% 0.004%
complaints
Kerbside recycling Recycling rate per service 5.76 kg 5.51kg
Kerbside recycling Recycling rate per capita 2.15 kg 2.06kg
Kerbside recycling Total tonnage recycled 11,742 tonnes 11,856 tonnes
(tonnes)
Transfer station recycling Net financial returns from $623,602 $786,649
the sale of recyclables
Transfer station recycling Total tonnes recycled 5,832 tonnes 10,734 tonnes
Green waste recycling Total tonnes recycled 36,952 tonnes 30,543 tonnes
Total recycling statistics  Total recycling statistics 54,527 tonnes 53,133 tonnes
KPlI Key performance indicator Frequency APP* yearly Yearly KPI
target achieved
Community 1 Total kgs of domestic waste landfilled Monthly Max 410 kg 377 kg
and per capita per year
customers 2 % recyclable material diverted from Monthly Min 25% 25%

kerbside collection (recycling and
green waste bin only)

3 Total tonnes of waste transported to Monthly < 58,000 55,628
BCC facilities
4 Recoverable material diverted from Monthly > 50% 60%
landfill at RCC transfer stations
5 % compliance with waste DEHP Quarterly Min 98% 99%
licence requirement
Financial 6  Operating performance (actual to Monthly +/- 5% -1.35%
Internal budget operating expenditure)
processes 7  Earnings before interest, tax and Monthly +-5% 0.42%
depreciation (EBITD)
8  Operating cost per tonne of waste Monthly < $168 $137.35

* Annual Performance Plan
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RedWaste continued

All KPIs were met during the 2013-14 financial year:

RedWaste Business Unit Annual
Performance Plan

Council adopted the RedWaste Annual
Performance Plan (APP) at the General Meeting
held on 24 July 2013. The APP includes the:

unit's objectives

nature and extent of the significant business
RedWaste is to conduct

unit’s financial and non-financial performance
targets

nature, extent, cost of and funding for the
community service obligations the unit must
perform

unit's notional capital structure, and treatment
of surpluses

unit’s proposed major investments
unit's outstanding and proposed borrowings

unit's policy on the level and quality of service
consumers can expect

delegations necessary to allow the unit to
exercise autonomy in its commercial activities

type of information that the unit’s report to the
local government must contain.

Council decisions affecting the RedWaste
business unit during 2013-14

A tender submitted by Visy Recycling for the
collection and recycling of cardboard at RCC
mainland waste facilities was accepted.

A tender submitted by lolar Operational Services
for the collection and recycling of cardboard at
RCC island waste facilities was accepted.

e Fee exemptions for waste disposed by

registered not-for-profit organisations and
community groups under Council’s community
service obligations were provided.
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RedWaste continued

Other significant activities during 2013-14

The State Government embarked on a process for developing a

new industry-led waste strategy. The strategy has been developed
collaboratively with a steering committee comprising representatives
from business and industry, the waste and resource recovery sector,
local government, and community and environment groups.

The draft strategy proposes a high-level vision and direction for
Queensland over the next 10 years. Key features and targets include:

e reducing waste generation by 5% per capita;
e increasing total recycling and resource recovery to 55%;
e priority wastes and areas for action.

The draft strategy focuses on the waste management hierarchy:
avoid, reduce, reuse, recycle, recover energy, treat and dispose.
Other tools influencing the draft strategy are to drive cultural change
and avoid the generation of waste in the first instance. The guiding
principles include:

e protecting human and environmental health;

¢ sharing responsibility for resource management;
e recognising the cost of waste management;

e regional differences and opportunities; and

o full lifecycle management of resources.

Community service
obligations

As directed by Council,
RedWaste provided a range of
waste management services to
the community. These services,
known as community service
obligations, required Council
to reimburse RedWaste for
the cost of providing them

as they were contrary to

the commercial interests of
RedWaste.

Financial Performance in brief 2013-14

$000's
Revenue from ordinary activities $21,902
Expenses from ordinary activities $18,952
Borrowing costs $389
Result from ordinary activities (before tax and dividend) $2,560
Total assets $18,823
Capital works program $95
Debt outstanding $664
Dividend and tax to Redland City Council $1,665
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RedWaste continued

Financial Ratios 2012-13 2013-14 Variance

% % %
Economic rate of return 7.8% 7.7% -0.1%
Rate of return on operating assets 9.93% 13.60% 3.7%
Debt to total equity 29.69% 31.50% 1.8%

Full Cost Pricing (FCP) Waste 2012-13 2013-14 Variance
$000’s $000’s $000’s
Administration and operational $18,853 $18,331 -$252
overheads
Depreciation $545 $547 $2
Competitive neutrality $75 $74 $1
Rate of return (WACCQC) $1,383 $1,447 $65
Total FCP $20,585 $20,400 -$185
Volumes waste received from 129,248 120,332 -8,916
customers (tonnes)
Average cost per tonne (FCP) $159.27 $169.53 $10.26

Note: volumes of waste received has been updated using total tonnages of waste in 2013-14. This change to the tonnage received has
impacted the average cost per tonne calculation for 2012-13 and 2013-14
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Redland Water continued

Water Supply

Project Description Budget Expenditure
to date

Complete annual water A rolling program of replacing water meters $307,500 $204,215

meter replacement occurs each year.

program

5,292 meters were replaced as at 30 June 2014.

Taylor Road to Kinross Construction of new 300mm diameter water $667,634 $617,764
Road trunk water main main to provide network capacity for the

development of the Kinross Road structure plan

area.

Remaining expenditure will be taken up completing connection works in association with Seqwater.

Fire flow augmentation Construction of new water mains at the $490,038 $359,400
program following locations:

e Cnr Redland Bay Road and Windemere Road.
e Enterprise Street to Weippin Street.
e Mt Cotton Road (Ney Road to Tipuana Drive).

Fire flow augmentations designed to improve the availability of water for fire-fighting purposes within
the water supply network continued across the City this year. Cost-effective delivery mechanisms saw
outcomes delivered within budget.

Wastewater
Project Description Budget  Expenditure
to date
Pump station 6 upgrade — Upgrade capacity of existing pump station $1,430,560 $789,202
ensure adequate capacity through constructing an additional 450mm
exists for development rising main and upgrading of pump station.

Rising main constructed. All pumps, generator, switchboard, variable speed drive and harmonics have
arrived. Detailed design completed. Waiting on official approval from the Department of Natural
Resources. Programmed for January construction to suit stakeholders at showgrounds.

Sewering South East Construction of trunk rising main, pump Nil $425,495
Thornlands station and trunk gravity sewer to connect SE
Thornlands development to South Street sewer.

All work completed. Elected to not install pumps or switchboard until there was a development need in
South East Thornlands.
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Redland Water continued

Reservoirs

Length of water main 1254km
Water meters 53,262
Water connections including 58,806
multiple properties per meter

(MPPM), but excluding MPPM

boundary meter

Water purchased 13,999ML
Water supplied 12,371ML
Total assets $265m

(written-down value)

Wastewater

Treatment plants 7
Pumping stations 150
Length of sewer main 1,141km
Active services (excluding 47,890
vacant land)

Wastewater treated (effluent) 11,385ML
Sludge for re-use 100% (19,201T)
Recycled effluent for reuse 603.3ML
Trade waste generators 771
Trade waste discharged to 382ML
sewer

Total assets $412m

Annual Report 2013-14

Our Statutory Duties

Under the SEQ Water (Distribution and Retail
Restructuring) Act, Redland Water is required to
prepare a ‘Water Netserv Plan’. This plan is now
in place including the required endorsement
from the Deputy Premier that it is consistent
with the SEQ Regional Plan.

Currently, Redland Water is required to report
against its Drinking Water Quality Management
Plan which was reviewed on 27 May 2014 and
approved by the Regulator on 16 June 2014.
Further reviews are required to be completed
every two years. The first regular audit of the
plan must be conducted by 1 July 2016. Further
audits are required to be completed every four
years. Redland Water is required to provide

the Regulator with regular audit reports in
accordance with section 108 of the Act.

Redland Water is required to provide the
Regulator with an annual report, pursuant

to sections 141 and 142 of the Water Supply
(Safety & Reliability) Act 2008 in each financial
year and this report must be made available to
the public.

This report details Redland Water’s performance
for the 2013-14 financial year and fulfils

the business unit’s duties under the Local
Government Act 2009, the Water Act 2000
and the SEQ Water (Distribution and Retail
Restructuring) Act 2009.



Redland Water continued

Environmental Initiatives Trade waste policy
Redland Water continued its focus on improving development:
environmental performance of its wastewater treatment plants, The following trade waste
pump stations and water and wastewater reticulation mains. policies were approved at
Activities for 2013-14 included: the Council meeting on
7 May 2014,
Potable Water
_ _ e POL-1234 Trade Waste
e The _300mm diameter trunk water main from Taylor Road _ Policy (version 2).
to Kinross Road was constructed to provide network capacity
for the development of the Kinross Road structure plan area. * POL-1235 Trade Waste -
Project spend 2013-14: $617,764. discharge charge remission
_ . . for Concealed Water Leaks
* We completed the fifth year of our fire flow augmentation (version 1).
program which is designed to improve the availability of water o
for fire-fighting purposes within the water supply network. * POL-3027 Application
Project spend 2013-14: $359,400. of Wastewater Charges
(version 2).
Wastewater e Trade Waste Environmental
e Continued focus on preventative maintenance of wastewater I\/Ian_agement Plan
treatment plant assets, including preparation of asset management (version 4).

plans for wastewater treatment plants (WWTP).
Completion of new inlet screens for the Cleveland WWTP.

Refurbishment and capacity upgrade of pump station (PS) 134 at
Mt Cotton and pump station (PS) 49 at Victoria Point.

Installation of five generators at water boosters and key wastewater
pump stations.

Upgrade of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
system at Dunwich WWTP.

Upgrade of PS67 in terms of rising main, pump, switchboard,
generator and variable speed drive control.

Renewal of 12 pump stations.

100% reuse of all bio-solids produced from the wastewater
treatment plant via land application

Continued work on licence application for Cleveland wastewater
treatment plant, including commencement of soil and groundwater
monitoring programs and purchase of automatic sampler for event
monitoring on Hilliards Creek.

Design finalisation and tendering of the Dunwich sewer project.

DEHP compliance inspections at Thorneside and Pt Lookout
wastewater treatment plants.

Structuring of formal environmental management system procedures
and practices in accordance with ISO 14000.Continuation of
environmental due diligence training for all Redland Water staff.

Odour control improvements to Pt Lookout WWTP in respect to
chemical dosing.

Completion of inflow/infiltration pipe relining upgrades in the
Raby Bay catchment and also segments of Victoria Point.
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Redland Water continued

Delivering on customer service

Customer service standards

Customer service standards (CSSs) describe and
define the levels of service Redland Water commits
to provide its customers for water and wastewater

Below is a summary of Redland Water's water and
wastewater service standard key performance

indicators (KPIs), targets and performance for
2013-14, as adopted by Council in the Redland
Water annual performance plan for water and

services. wastewater services.
KPI Measure Target Actual Comment
Average residential water Litres/day/person Forecast 191 KPI achieved
consumption per person a day —target 200L  consumption
180
Nitrogen load from effluent Average kg Max 110kg  34.5-57.3 KPI achieved
discharge per day per day every month
Operating costs per megalitre of $ per megalitre $2,409 $2,743 KPI not
water treated achieved
Operating costs per property $ per month $342 $333  KPl achieved
serviced (wastewater)
Operating performance % +/-5% 2.89% KPI achieved
(expenditure to budget)
Earnings before interest, tax & % 0-5% -2.57% KPI not
depreciation (EBITD) achieved
% of water samples complying % Max 98% 100% KPI achieved
with ADWG every month
with 100%
result
Water main breaks and leaks # per year Max 96 42 KPI achieved
within distribution system
% of unplanned water % Max 97 98 KPI achieved
interruptions restored <5 hours
Average response time to water # Max 60 27 KPI achieved
main breaks every month
No. of poor pressure complaints # Max 36 15 KPI achieved
No. of water quality incidents # Max 144 95 KPI achieved
per month
Overall number of dry weather # Max 84 42 KPI achieved
overflows
Average response or reaction # Max 60 34 KPI achieved
time to wastewater incidents every month
% wastewater service interruptions % Min 95 100 KPI achieved
restored within 5 hours every month
with 100%
result
Odour complaints # Max 36 31 KPI achieved
No. of WWTP non-conformances # Max 6 6 KPI achieved

with EPA licence over compliance year

Annual Report 2013-14



Redland Water continued

Managing Our Assets

Operational performance 2013-14

In fulfilling the duties of its performance plan,
Redland Water provided all stated services and
roles for:

e water supply to customers
e \wastewater collection and treatment, and

e trade waste.

Redland Water also:

e reported monthly to Council on water and
effluent quality, financial and capital project
status; and

e complied with Council’s corporate plan, policies
and procedures, and integrated environmental
management system (IEMS).

Community service obligations

As required by Council, Redland Water provided
several services to the community. Council

paid back Redland Water the cost of providing
these services known as community service
obligations (CSOs).

For water and wastewater, this included:

e concealed water leak concessions and reduced
water access and consumption charges for
not-for-profit sporting and community
organisations $117,333.

e reduced pedestal charges for not-for-profit
sporting and community organisations
$327,519.

Total $444,852

Drinking water quality monitoring

Drinking water quality monitoring is undertaken
through a verification monitoring program
approved by the Regulator. Under the Water
Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 Section
102 and under the Public Health Act 2005
Redland Water must report to the Regulator

any non-compliance with health guidelines or
report an event that may impact public health.
100% compliance with Australian Drinking Water
Guidelines was achieved in 2013/14.

Redland Water is required to provide the
Department of Energy and Water Supply with
yearly reports within 120 business days of the
end of the financial year.
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Redland Water continued

Snapshot of our financial performance

Water and wastewater services

Financial performance 2013-14 $million
Revenue from ordinary activities 97
Expenses from ordinary activities 87
Borrowing costs 0
Result from ordinary activities 10
(before tax and dividend)

Total assets 677
Debt outstanding -
Dividend and tax to RCC 11

Water and wastewater services

Financial performance Actual 2013-14
Operating revenue $96,757,000
Operating expenses $86,567,000
Operating surplus/(deficit) $10,187,000
Capital works program $7,470,000

Financial ratios

Economic rate of return 4.4%
Rate of return on operating assets 1.50%
Debt to total equity 96.57%

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




Redland Water continued

Corporate Governance

Cross-subsidies

The Guidelines for Identification and Measurement of Cross-Subsidies issued by the Department
of Environmental Resources Management were applied to determine any cross-subsidies for water
and wastewater services for 2013-14.

Full cost pricing Water Wastewater
Administration and operational overheads $22,979,840 $16,428,700
Depreciation $6,016,511 $10,512,282
Competitive neutrality $27,703 $41,555
Return on assets (includes tax and dividend) $11,790,498 $18,244,332
Total Full Cost Pricing $40,814,552 $45,226,3869
Volume delivered to / wastewater received from customers kL 12,371,488 9,460,570
Average cost per kL (FCP) $3.30 $4.78

Cross-subsidy reflecting revenue-cost divergence water supply 2013-14

Revenue sources Domestic Commercial Other Consumers Total
Water charges 45,626,482  $7,385,699 $1,214,682  $54,226,862 63
Other revenues $2,897,624 $33,676 Nil $2,931,300
CSO Nil Nil $117,333 $117,333
Headworks $2,711,015 Nil Nil $2,711,015
Total revenue $51,235,121 $7,419,375 $1,332,015 $59,986,510
kL used 10,409,370 1,684,997 277,121 12,371,488
$/kL contribution $4.922 $4.403 $4.807 $4.849
Difference per kL from FCP $1.623 $1.104 $1.508 $1.550
Cross-subsidy received -$1.623 -$1.104 -$1.508 -$1.550

Cross-subsidy reflecting revenue-cost divergence wastewater supply 2013-14

Revenue sources Domestic Commercial Other Consumers Total
Wastewater charges $33,709,305  $3,346,463 $587,231  $37,642,998
Other revenues $1,123,507 $16,200 Nil $1,139,707
Community service obligations Nil Nil $327,519 $327,519
Headworks $4,098,473 Nil Nil $4,098,473
Total revenue $38,931,285  $3,362,663 $914,750  $43,208,697
kL used $8,136,090  $1,135,268 $189,211 $9,460,570
$/kL contribution $4.785 $2.962 $4.835 $4.567
Difference per kL from FCP $0.004 -$1.819 $0.054 -$0.213

Cross-subsidy received Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Annual Report 2013-14

(2) An annual operations repo si
is a document that contains the following information fo
the previous financial year:

(a) information that allows an informed assessment of the unit's
operations, including a comparison with the unit's annual
performance plan.

(b) particulars of any changes made to the unit’s annual
performance plan.

(c) particulars of the impact the changes had on the unit’s:
(i) financial position
(i) operating surplus or deficit
(iii) prospects
(d) particulars of directions the local government gave the unit.




Other statutory information continued

Overseas travel

Councillors and Mayor

Name Destination Purpose Cost
Mayor Karen Williams  Taiwan and China Eighth Asia Pacific Cities Summit and  $13,924.50
Business Development Mission excl GST
Staff

There was no overseas travel by staff in 2013-14.

Services supplied by another government

There were no services provided by another government in 2013-14.

Registers
Council maintains registers which make information available to the public.
e Adopted Committee and e Council Policies ¢ Regulatory Fees
Council meeting dates « Delegations o Roads
* Assets e Contact with Lobbyists e Statement of Interests for 65
* Authorised Persons e Local Laws and Subordinate - Councillors
* Beneficial Enterprise Local Laws - Chief Executive Officer

. e Mayor EO Direction .
e Business Activities ayor to CEQ Directions - senior contract employees

e Minutes of Local Government

* Catand Dog - a person who is related

Meetings . .
e Complaints 9 o to a Councillor, Chief
. * Personal Identification Executive Officer, officer
e Corporate Gift (in relation to animals) or senior contract
e Cost Recovery Fees e Regulated Dogs employee

Tenders
There were no changes to procurement tenders in 2013-14.

The Project Delivery Group made no changes to Civil Construction tenders during
the 2013-14 financial year.

Shareholder delegates

There were no shareholder delegates for corporate entities.




Other statutory information continued

Rates and concessions

The Local Government Regulation 2012 provides Council with the powers to grant concessions to
individuals and classes of landowners. Council provides concessions to pensioners on rates and various
other services Council provides to the community.

Pensioner concessions

Pensioner concessions on general rates are provided to eligible pensioner ratepayers on the basis of
Council’s Policy POL-2557 Council Pensioner Rebate Policy.

The concessions available to eligible pensioners on the general rate for the 2013-14 financial year are:

e for ratepayers in receipt of a maximum pension $330
e for ratepayers NOT in receipt of maximum pension $165
e 00
® 00
® 00
® 0000006060 06 06 00
o 000060600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o 0000000 0 0 0 00
o o0
o 00
e 00

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14




Community financial report

Purpose Summary of key financial performance and

The Community Financial sustainability indicators

Report is produced each Strategically, Council aims to operate within a set of conservative
year as part of Council’s guidelines to ensure it is financially viable in the short term, whilst
annual report to provide sustainable in the medium and long term. As part of its financial
members of the community, strategy, Council has adopted seven key financial stability indicators
customers, business to guide our financial health. In addition to these financial stability
partners and employees indicators, we have five sustainability indicators to help monitor the

with a better understanding  |ong-term sustainability of Council. Financial sustainability for Councils
of our f|_n_anC|aI performance is now the cornerstone of the Local Government Act 2009 and a core
osition over the last responsibility of individual Councils across Queensland.

Throughout the financial year, these indicators are calculated and
reported at monthly Council meetings, as part of a full suite of financial
orts. This means that should there be any deviation outside these
ers, the Executive Leadership and Council will be fully informed
imely, corrective action as required.

mmarises how Council performed against set targets
inancial stability indicators established in our financial
Council achieved or exceeded six of the seven
gets, performing well in our ability to generate cash
tions, meeting all financial commitments in the

r and keeping debt to conservative and manageable levels.
s was achieved while maintaining community services and making
ongoing investment in community infrastructure.

Financial Stability Indicators Target Actual Performance

Level Of Dependence On <37.5% 33.74% v
General Rate Revenue

Ability To Pay Our Bills - . 4
Current Ratio

Ability To Repay Our Debt - v
Debt Servicing Ratio

Cash Balance > $40M $96.24M 4

Cash Balance - 3 to 4 months 6.51 v
Cash Capacity In Months

Longer Term Financial Stability - v
Debt To Assets Ratio

Operating Performance >20% 19.45% x




Community financial report continued

The measures of sustainability are shown in the table below and demonstrate Council’s ability to maintain its
financial capital and infrastructure capital over the long term. Overall, the results indicate a very sound outlook,
with Council meeting four of the five targets. The operating surplus ratio, the net financial liabilities ratio and

the asset sustainability ratios have targets to be achieved on average over the long term (a period of at least 10
years) and are not necessarily expected to be met on a monthly or annual basis. Achieving the target for the asset
sustainability ratio continues to be challenging, however Council has committed to a long-term financial strategy
that works towards meeting this goal. Additionally, Council has adopted a Capital Works Prioritisation Policy
during 2014 to enable the prioritisation of ‘renewals’ of existing assets ahead of ‘upgrade’ and/or ‘new’ works.

Measures of Sustainability Actual Performance
Operating Surplus Ratio 0% to 10% 6.37%

Net Financial Liabilities* < 60% -2.22%

Interest Coverage Ratio** 0% to 5% -0.01%

Asset Sustainability Ratio > 90% 45.65%

Asset Consumption Ratio 40% to 80% 68.48%
About Council’s financial statements Overview of financial results
The audited financial statements of Council set out the Council’s net result was a $38.68M surplus
financial performance, financial position and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2014. The net
as well as changes in community equity for the financial year result is calculated as total income minus
ended 30 June 2014. total expenditure. The net result includes

revenue set aside for capital purposes such
as the value of physical assets handed to
Council, developer cash contributions, and
other government funding of a capital
nature, as well as expenses of a capital
nature e.g. losses on disposal of non-current

The financial statements have been endorsed by the Mayor

and the CEO as “presenting fairly” Council’s financial result for
the year and these financial statements have been adopted by
Council, demonstrating the responsibility and ownership thereof
by management and elected representatives.

Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by assets. The removal of capital items from
the Queensland Audit Office (QAQ). The audit of Queensland the net result shows Council’s Net Operating
Councils are contracted to audit firms which specialise in local Result, which is more indicative of Council’s

government. The 2013-14 Annual Financial Statements are final  day-to-day operations.
and have been certified by the QAO as at 23 October 2014 to
present a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards (i.e. an unqualified audit opinion).

Below are Council's key financial
performance highlights:

Information at a Glance 2013-14 2013-14 Restated
Revised Budget Actual 2012-13 Actual

$ Millions $ Millions $ Millions

Operating Income 227.77 224.61 221.00
Operating Expenditure (230.03) (210.31) (235.33)
Net Operating Result/(Deficit) (2.26) $14.30 (14.33)
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 18.17 27.75 20.68
Gain on Reintegration of Water Operations - - 200.49
Other Capital Income/(Expenditure) 1.92 (3.37) (2.76)

*This is calculated using net financial liabilities, i.e. total liabilities minus current assets. The negative number indicates that Council’s current
assets exceed the total liabilities. Therefore, Council has outperformed this target.

** This is calculated using net interest expense, i.e. interest expense minus interest revenue. The negative number indicates that Council has
earned more interest than it has spent on borrowings. Therefore, Council has outperformed this target.

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14



Community financial report continued

Council’s finances demonstrated "business as usual’ during
2013-14. The swing from a $14.33M operating deficit
(total operating expenses exceeding operating income)

in 2012-13 to $14.30M surplus (total operating revenue
exceeding total operating expenses) in 2013-14 is primarily
due to annual increases in rates and charges, higher
residential and commercial water consumption, reduction
in the closed landfill provision (which reduces the
operating expenditure), reduced depreciation expenditure
and lower employee costs.

Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions include
developer cash contributions received during the year
which increased as a result of growth in development
activity during the year.

The 2012-13 net result includes a $200.49M capital

gain on the re-integration of water operations on 1 July
2012.0On 1 July 2012, Allconnex Water ceased operations
and the water operations were returned to Redland
Water. The reversal of the investment in Allconnex and
the re-introduction of the water assets in Council books
gave rise to a non-cash gain of $200.49M because the
returning water assets were valued at fair value rather
than a regulated valuation used when they were part

of Allconnex. Although the transaction was non-cash,

it significantly increased community equity and was
recognised as income in the 2012-13 financial statements.

Income vs Expenses - 5 Year trend

(CPI adjusted)
300,000

N
(=3
o
[=3
(=3
o

100,000

0

Amount ($.000)

-100,000

I Operating Revenue M Operating Expenses [l Operating Result

I I
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Following is a series of tables and graphs that illustrate
Council’s key financial results. Where comparisons

are made between 2013-14 and prior years, the prior
year figures have been increased to take account of
price changes (CPI - Consumer Price Index) to ensure
comparisons are meaningful.

What were our major

sources of income?

(Statement of Comprehensive Income)
The graph below illustrates the breakdown

of income between the major sources of
income for 2013-14.

10

Sources of Income 2013-14

1 m $75.77M General Rates Net of Discount (30%)

2 m $11.01M Fees & Charges (4.4%)

3 m $18.10M Waste Disposal Charges (7.2%)

4 m $5.67M Developer Non-Cash Contributions (2.2%)
5 ®m $8.27M Environmental Levy (3.3%)

6 m $6.89M Operating Grants & Contributions (2.7 %)
7 m $22.08M Capital Grants & Subsidies (8.8%)

8 m $3.87M Interest Received (1.5%)

9 $91.87M Water & Wastewater Charges (36.4%)
10 m $8.83M Other Income (3.5%)

Total income received this year (operating
income plus capital grants, subsidies and
contributions) was $252.36M. Removing the
gain on re-integration of water operations, this
result was $3.93M (CPI adjusted), or 1.58%
greater than the 2012-13 financial year.

The major souces of income are general

rates, water and wastwater charges as well as
waste disposal fees. Income from these source
contributed 73.6% towards Council's total
income for the year. Also, the total grants,
subsidies and cash contibutions received during
the year were $28.97M, comprising operating
($6.89M) and capital ($22.08M) elements. This
is an increase of $6.20M from last year primarily
due to increased cash contributions received
from developers.

Council earned $3.87M, or 1.53% of total
income from interest on investments and
overdue rates during the financial year and the
total interest earned outweighed the interest
expense for the year. This result reflects sound
financial management of cash holdings.

69



Community financial report continued

What expenses Council’s expenses for the 2013-14 financial year totalled
did Council have $213.68M, which is a decrease of 12.69% compared to the
to meet? previous year's expenses of $244.74M (CPI adjusted).

(Statement of Materials and services expenditure includes the costs of all
Comprehensive Income) consultancies, contractors and other goods and materials consumed
in delivering projects and services to the community. This includes

The graph below illustrates the roads, parks, canals, footpaths, bikeways, marine infrastructure, car
breakdown of expenses between  parks, libraries, waste collection, water treatment, swimming pools,
the major components of showgrounds, sports fields, community halls and town planning.

expenditure for 2013-14. . ——
As part of the 10 year capital program, Council estimates the cost

1 of restoring landfill sites across the City. These program costs were
revised during 2013-14 and, together with a change in the funding
structure for this program, resulted in a significant decrease in the
landfill rehabilitation provision. This change decreased our materials
and services expenditure for the current year.

Employee costs include wages and salaries, annual leave, long
service leave, superannuation and allowances paid to all full-time,
part-time and casual staff. Overall, staff wages and salaries were
lower this year as well as costs associated with annual leave and
long service leave.

Depreciation expenses reflect the usage of Council’s assets and
refer to the estimated reduction in the value of our assets due to
wear and tear or becoming technically out of date. This includes
roads and stormwater drainage infrastructure, buildings, marine
infrastructure and plant and equipment.

Expenses 2013-14

1 m $3.37M Loss on Disposal of
Non-Current Assets (1.6%)
2 m $71.03M Employee Benefits (33.2%)

What is the value of the community’s
assets in our care?

3o f%-zst" Materials and Services (Statement of Financial Position)
40.4%
4 W $5.04M Finance Costs (2.4%) Value of Community  2013-14 Restated
5 M $47.97M Depreciation and Assets $ Millions 2012-13 Change
Amortisation (22.4%) $ Millions
Total Assets $2,208.20 $2,173.65 1.59%
Total Liabilities $119.71 $138.18 -13.37%

Net Community Assets

0,
(Net Community Equity) $2,088.49 $2,035.47 2.60%

See Financial Statements ‘Statement of Financial Position’ for more information

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14



Community financial report continued

Assets

The total value of all assets controlled by Council was $2.21B at 30 June 2014. This figure is broken down
between current assets of $124.69M (5.6%) and non-current assets of $2.08B (94.4%).

1 2 .
3 Assets In Council’s Care

= $4.52M Other Non-Current Assets (0.2%)
m $96.24M Cash & Cash Equivalents (4.4%)
m $27.25M Debtors & Other Current Assets (1.2%)
m $567.11M Roads (25.7 %)

m $397.34M Stormwater Drainage (18.0%)
m $257.54M Land (11.7%)

m $67.29M Other Infrastructure (3.0%)

m $62.95M Buildings (2.9%)

m $35.85M Parks (1.6%)

10 m $21.71M Plant & Equipment (1.0%)

11 m $9.48M Waste (0.4%)

12 m $25.92M Work in Progress (1.2%)

6 13 m $635.00M Water & Wastewaster (28.7%)

O 0 N O U1 A W N =

Current assets are those that are readily available to meet expenses and mainly include cash and
amounts owed from customers. Cash assets were $96.24M and receivables from customers were
$26.14M at the end of the 2013-14 financial year. Council’s cash balance improved since 2012-13 71
and moved from $82.60M to $96.24M. Additional capital grants, subsidies and cash contributions
received during the year and some delays in capital and operational projects contributed to the higher
cash balance. Any excess funds Council doesn't anticipate to use within 3 - 4 months are moved to an
interest-earning cash management fund.

Council’s property, plant and equipment assets of $2.08B include freehold land, buildings, roads,
stormwater drainage, water, wastewater, waste, parks infrastructure and plant and equipment. Land,
road assets and stormwater drainage assets were independently valued during the 2013-14 year.
The road and stormwater drainage assets were valued as at 1 July 2013 and revaluation adjustments
treated as corrections to prior year reported balances.

During the 2013-14 financial year Council's capital expenditure amounted to $49.55M on
work-in-progress and $41.95M on other asset categories (which includes transfers from work-in-
progress). Major capital projects during the 2013-14 year included road reseals and resurfacing, road
reconstruction, wastewater pump stations and wastewater treatment, Southern Moreton Bay Islands,
as well as computer projects works programs.

The graph below demonstrates Council’s total asset values over the last five years.

Total Assets 5 Year Trend

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

Liabilities

Liabilities are amounts owed by Council at 30 June 2014 and totalled $119.71M.

6

Council’s Liabilities

m $58.98M Borrowings (49.3%)

m $15.25M Trade Creditors (12.8%)

= $114.89M Employee Entitlements (12.4%)

m $0.76M Workers Compensation Provision (0.6%)
m $24.07M Landfill Rehabilitation Provision (20.1%)
m $5.76M Other Liabilities (4.8%)

o Ul W N =

The largest single debt Council owed at 30 June 2014 was to Queensland Treasury
Corporation (QTC). QTC is the state government-owned lending agency from which most
local government and state authorities borrow to finance their large-scale infrastructure
projects. At the end of the financial year, Council owed QTC a total of $58.98M, with
$4.38M payable in the next 12 months and $54.61M due in subsequent years. During the
year Council made a decision to utilise existing cash balances as a priority over borrowings.
As a result there were no drawdowns from loans during the current financial year.

As part of the 10 year capital program, Council estimates the cost of restoring landfill sites
across the City. These program costs were revised during 2013-14 and, together with a
change in the funding structure for this program, resulted in a significant decrease in the
landfill rehabilitation provision.

The following graph shows our total liabilities over the past five years.

Total Liabilities 5 Year Trend

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

The graph below illustrates the level Council's loan borrowings with QTC debt over
the past five years.

5 Year Analysis of Council’s QTC Debt

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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The graph below outlines the ratio of our total loans compared to total assets
over the past five years. At the end of the 2013-14 financial year, total debt
as a percentage of total assets was only 2.67%. This puts into perspective
the relatively low level of borrowings compared to total assets.

Debt to Assets Ratio
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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The following graph shows how much of Council’s revenue is consumed
in the repayment of interest and principal to QTC. In 2013-14, only 3.54%
of operating revenue was spent repaying interest and principal on our
borrowings. This is relatively low and sitting very comfortably within our
Financial Stability Ratio targets.

Ability to Meet Debt from Operating Revenue
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

What were the major sources of cash in and cash out?

(Statement of Cash Flows)

The table below compares the main sources of cash receipts and cash paid during the financial years
ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014,

Main Sources of Cash In and Out 2013-14 Restated
$ Millions 2012-13
$ Millions*
Net Cash Received from Operations 42.82 22.85 87.37%
(excluding interest and borrowing costs)
Purchase and Construction of Assets (50.00) (38.99) 28.24%
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 22.08 14.52 52.02%
New Loans Taken Out - 5.87 -100.00%
Repayment of Debt (4.12) (5.35) -22.97%

See Financial Statements ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ for more information
* CPl adjustment included to ensure comparability

The cash flow statement is summarised into three activities:

e Operating activities - our normal day-to-day functions. These include receipts of rates, fees and
charges and operating grants offset by payments for employee costs, materials and services and
interest costs.

¢ Investing activities - include payments for the purchase and construction of property, plant and
equipment and proceeds from the sale of surplus assets.

¢ Financing activities - are repayments of principal on our loans, as well as the inflows from new loans
drawn down in the year.

We started the 2013-14 financial year with $82.60M cash in the bank and ended the year with
$96.24M, exceeding the target for cash capacity in months.

The following graph shows our total cash holdings for the past five years. The increase of Council’s cash
balance reflects the higher capital grants, subsidies and contributions, as well as the lower payments to
suppliers and employees during the 2013-14 financial year.

5 Year Analysis of Cash Balances
(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)
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Community financial report continued

To maintain Council’s strong financial position on behalf of the
community, we must maintain and manage sufficient cash from our day-
to-day operations to fund purchases of property, plant and equipment,
repay interest and principal payments on loans and leave enough in
reserves for future requirements.

An essential requirement for any business, including Council, is its
ability to pay its bills as and when they fall due. A good benchmark for
measuring this capacity is called the current ratio, which is the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities.

The following diagram illustrates that the ratio has been greater than 2.00
for the past five years, remaining at a healthy level of 2.75 in 2013-14.

Ability to Pay Our Bills - Current Ratio

(All comparative year figures have been adjusted for CPI)

3.50
3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50
1.00
0.50
0.00

Ratio

2010-11 | 2011-12 | 2012-13 | 2013-14

2009-10

Summary

Council delivered a large program of operational and capital works during
the 2013-14 financial year and achieved this delivery while still exceeding six
of the seven key financial stability indicators.

On an annual basis, Council reviews its long-term financial strategy and key
financial policies to ensure it continues to travel in the right financial direction
and in 2013-14 Council continued to meet all financial commitments and
keep debt at low and very manageable levels. Council balances its long-
term strategies and outlook with in-year priorities and monitors its financial
position and performance on a monthly basis. It also formally revises its
budget each quarter, where required. The budget review process is under
review to achieve efficiencies and ensure timely changes can be made to the
budget in achieving Council’s capital and operational projects. These reviews
are complemented by regular credit reviews conducted by the Queensland
Treasury Corporation to ensure the short, medium and long-term financial
sustainability of your Council.

Redland City Council is once again in a strong financial position to deliver the
planned program of projects and services for the next financial year
and beyond.

P .
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Redland City Council

Definition of Ratios

Level of Dependence on General Rate Revenue:

Community financial report continued

General Rates - Pensioner Remissions

Target less than 37.5%

Current Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of
Developed Land

Current Assets

Target between 1.1 and 4.1

Debt Servicing Ratio:

Current Liabilities

Interest Expense + Loan Repayments

Target less than or equal to 10%

Cash Balance - $M

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of
Developed Land

Cash Held at Period End

Cash Capacity in Months:

Cash Held at Period End

Target 3 to 4 Months

Debt to Asset Ratio:

[[Cash Operating Costs + Interest Expense]/12]

Current and Non-current Loans

Target less than or equal to 10%

Operating Performance:

Total Assets

Net Cash from Operations + Interest Revenue and
Expense

Target greater than or equal to 20%

Operating Surplus Ratio:

Cash Operating Revenue + Interest Revenue

Net Operating Surplus

Target between 0% and 10% (on average over the long-term)

Net Financial Liabilities:

Total Operating Revenue

Total Liabilities - Current Assets

Target less than 60% (on average over the long-term)

Interest Cover Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue

Net Interest Expense on Debt Service

Target between 0% and 5%

Asset Sustainability Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue

Capital Expenditure on Replacement of Assets
(Renewals)

Target greater than 90% (on average over the long-term)

Asset Consumption Ratio:

Depreciation Expenditure

Written Down Value of Infrastructure Assets

Target between 40% and 80%

Annual Report 2013-14

Gross Current Replacement Cost of Infrastructure
Assets




Index — statutory information

State Government legislation requires councils to include specific information in an annual report each
year. The table below provides an index of where you can find that information throughout this 2013-14
report. In some instances, the ‘provision’ column summarises the Act requirements for the sake of space.
For the full wording for each provision, please refer to the source legislation.

Local Government Act 2009
Requirement Topic Provision

Section 41 Beneficial Must contain a list of all the beneficial enterprises that the
enterprises local government conducted during the financial year

Section 45 Significant Must:
business (a) contain a list of all the business activities that the local
activities government conducted during the financial year; and
(b) identify the business activities that are significant
business activities; and
(c) state whether or not the competitive neutrality principle
was applied to the significant business activities, and if
the principle was not applied, the reason why it was
not applied; and
(d) state whether any of the significant business activities
were not conducted in the preceding financial year,
i.e. whether there are any new significant business
activities

Section 201(1) Remuneration 1) Must state:

(a) The total of all remuneration packages that are
payable to the senior management of the local
government

(b) The number of employees in senior management
who are being paid each band of remuneration

Local Government Regulation 2012

Section 182 Preparation of 1) Prepare an annual report

annual report 2) Adopt within 1 month after the day the auditor-general’s

report on the financial statements is received

3) Annual Report placed on Council website within 2
weeks after council adopting the Annual Report

Section 183 Financial (a) General purpose financial statement, audited by the 81
statements auditor-general

(b) The current year financial sustainability statement for
the financial year, audited by the auditor-general

(c) The long term financial sustainability statement for the
financial year and

(d) Auditor-General’s report about the general purpose
financial statement and the current year financial
sustainability statement

Section 184 Community Provide community financial report for the financial year 67
financial
report

Section 185 Particular (a) Provide a copy of resolutions made under section 250(1) 22
resolutions (b) Provide a copy of resolutions made under section 206(2)




Index — statutory information continued

Section 186

Councillors

(a) For each councillor, total remuneration (including
superannuation contributions) paid to the councillor
for the year

(b) Expenses incurred by and facilities provided to each
councillor under the expenses reimbursement policy

21

(c) A copy of the local government’s expenses
reimbursement policy

22

(d) Number of local government meetings attended by
each councillor

19

(e) The number of:
i. orders and recommendations made under section
(180(2) or (4) of the Act
ii. orders made under section 181 of the Act
(f) Each of the following:

i.  name of each councillor for whom order or
recommendation made under Section 180 or 181
of the Act

ii. description of the misconduct in inappropriate
conduct for each councillor

ii. summary of order of recommendation made for
each councillor

(g9) The number of:

i. complaints about conduct or performance for
which no further action take under section 176C(2)
of the Act

ii. complaints referred to the CEO under section
176C(3)(a) (i) of the Act

ii. complaints referred to the Mayor under section
176C(3) (a)(ii) or (b)(i) of the Act

iv. complaints referred to the CEO under section
176C(4)(a) of the Act

v. complaints assessed by the CEO as being about
official misconduct

vi. complaints heard by a conduct review panel

vii. complaints heard by the tribunal

viii. complaints to which section 176C(6) of the
Act applied

36

Redland City Council

Annual Report 2013-14



Index — statutory information continued

Section 187 Administration
action
complaints

1) Must contain a statement about:
(a) dealing fairly with administrative action complaints
(b) how Council has implemented its complaints
management process and assessing its performance
in resolving complaints
(2) Must contain particulars of:
(a) The number of:
i. administrative action complaints made
ii. administrative action complaints resolved under
the complaints management process
iii. administration action complaints not resolved
(b) The number of administrative action complaints
under paragraph (a)(iii) that were made in a
previous financial year

36

Section 188 Overseas
travel

1) Must contain information about any overseas travel
during the financial year

(a) for a councillor — the name of the councillor

(b) for a local government employee — the name of,
position held

(c) destination

(d) purpose

(e) cost

(f) any other relevant information about the overseas
travel the local government considers relevant

65

Section 189 Expenditure
on grants to
community
organisations

Summary of:
(a) expenditure on grants to community organisations
(b) expenditure from each councillor's discretionary
fund, including
i. the name of each community organisation which
an amount was allocated from the fund
ii. the amount and purpose of the allocation

43

Section 190 Other
contents

1) The annual report must contain

(a) the Chief Executive Officer’s assessment of the progress
towards implemented its 5-year corporate plan and
annual operation plan

(b) particulars of other issues relevant to making an
informed assessment of the local government’s
operations and performance in the financial year

38-46

(c) an annual operations report for each commercial
business unit

47-63

(d) details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a
service, facility or activity:

i. supplied by another local government under an
agreement for conducting a joint government
activity; and

ii. for which the local government levied special rates
or charges for the financial year

65

79



Index — statutory information continued

(e) the number of invitation to change tenders under 65
section228(7) during the financial year

(f) a list of the registers kept by the local government 65

(g) a summary of all concessions for rates and charges 66
granted by the local government

(h) a report on the internal audit for the financial year 37

(i) a statement about the local government’s activities 29

during the financial year to implement its plan for
equal opportunity in employment

(j) a summary of investigation notices given in the financial 64
year under section 49 for competitive neutrality
complaints

(k) the local government's responses in the financial year N/A
of the QCA's recommendations on any competitive
neutrality complaints under section 52(3)

2) In this section — annual operations report, for a N/A
commercial business unit, means a document that
contains the following information for the previous
financial year —

a) information that allows an informed assessment of
the unit’s operations, including a comparison with
the unit’s annual performance plan;

b) particulars of any changes made to the unit’s annual
performance plan for the previous financial year;

¢) particulars of the impact the changes had on the
unit’s -

i) financial position; and
ii) operating surplus or deficit; and
i) prospects;

d) particulars of any directions the local government
gave the unit.

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994
Section 23 Reporting 29-32

Redland City Council  Annual Report 2013-14
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l REDLAND CITY COUMNCIL
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Restated
Note 2014 2013
3000 $000
Income
Recurrent revenue
Rates, levies and charges 4{a) 197,243 190,295
Fees and charges 4} 11,008 12,602
Rental income 4{c) £98 438
Interest received a4 3.868 4,250
Sales revenue &) 3.858 2 866
Dther incomea am 1,049 2112
Grants, subsidies and contributions (a) B,BB7 8,638
Total recurrent revenue 224812 221,001
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies and contributions 5(t) 22078 14,128
Non-gash contributlons 5(n) 5,669 6,547
Gain on reintegration of water pperations 1 : 200,485
Increase in investment property . .
Tatal eapital revenue 27747 221,161
Total income 252,359 442,162
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee banefits [ (71,026) (78,381)
Materials and services T (BE,282) (100.689)
Finance costs 8 {5.,038) (5.814)
Depreciation and amortisation g {47 B65) (50.438)
Total recurrent expenses (210,311} (235,320)

Capital expenses
Loss on disposal of non-current assets (3.373) [2,761)

Total capital expenses 13,373) [2,761)

Total expenses (213,684) (238,091)

Net result 28,675 204,071

Other comprehensive incomeiloss)

Itams that will not be reclassified to net result
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 3 128,661

Total comprehensive incomed(loss) for the year 53,022 333,732

The "Met result and Total comprehensive income’ for the 201 2-13 year was extraordinarily figh due to the one-off non-
cash gain cn retuming water operations (refer Nate 11).

The abowe slatement showld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounling Pabcias.

Page 3 of 50
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Annual Financial Statements

REDLAND QITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2014
Restated Restated
Mote 2014 2013 1 July 2012
$000 5000 3000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 96,2315 B2,595 84,804
Trade and cther receivables 13 25,139 20,930 15,502
Inverntories 14 B44 Yad 9491
KNon-current assets held-for-sale % e84 467 25
Other current assets 18 1,114 1,235 054
Total current assets 124,686 108,171 102,320
Non-current assats
Trade and other receivables - - g
Invastmant property 17 853 Ta7 B4B
Properly, plant and equipment 18 2,080,184 2,065,643 1,290,230
Intangible assets 18 2,360 953 . 353
Other financial assats 20 73 73 456,845
Total non-current assels 2,083,510 2,067 476 1,748,264
Total assats 2,208,196 2473847 1,850,604
i
C
(<)) Current liabilities
(]E.) Trace and other payahles 3] 15,248 10,980 2,010
] Borrowings 22a) 4,375 4,124 3,956
B Provisions 2wy 19,926 20,574 1741
v Other current liabilities N 5759 6,382 8.572
.© Total current liabllites 45,308 42,040 48 339
()
% Mon-current liabilities
R Borrowings 23v) 54,608 58,978 58583
L= Frovisions 23(b) 19,793 37,164 40,289
Total non-current labilities 74,401 96,142 98,882
Total lHabilithes 119,708 138,182 148,871

Net community assets 1,701,733

Community aquity

Asset revaluation surplus 668 685 654 338 525,754
Retained surplus 1,347 121 1,321,370 1,132,967
Constrained cash resenes 72,681 59,757 43.012
Total community aquity 2,088,487 2,035,485 1,701,733

Council has made a retrospactive restatement as a congequences of a correction of an emor and therefore, in accordance with
MAASE 101 has presented a Statemeant of Financial Position as at the baginning of the comparative period, ie. a5 al

1 July 2012. Refer o Note 32 for details.

The above statemen! showd be read in conjunclhion with the accompanying noles and Sigamicant Accounding Policies.

QAD
Page 4 of 50 certified statements
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REDLANC CITY COLNCH
STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Balance as at 30 June 2013
Correction to opening balance
Restated balance as at 1 July 2013

et result

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Increasal{decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfers to and from reserves:
Transfers lo raserves
Transfers from raserves

Total transfers to and from reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2014

Balance as at 30 Juna 2012
Coisraction to opening balance
Restated balance as al 1 July 2012

Met resull as stated in prige year

Corrections in year

Met rasul - restated

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Increasel{decraasa) in asset revaluation surplus
Camections in year

Othar comprehensive income - restated

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transters to and from reserves:
Transfers o reserves
Transfars from regerves

Total transfers to and from resarves

Derecognition of asset revalvation suplus

Balance as at 30 June 2013

Assel Retained Constraingd| Total
Revaluation Surplus]| Cash Reserves Community
Surplus Equity
000, 5000
Mote 25

654,138 1.3:1.:.11 59,757 2,038,485|
554,338 1,321,370} 59,757 2,035,465
- 38,675 - IBETS
14,347 - - 14,347
14,347 38,575 N 53,022
- {47.703) 47,703 -
- 34.779 {34775 .
. (12,824) 12,924 -
£68,685( 1,347,121 TZ,681 2,088 487
Ass Relained]  Constraned Total
Ravaluatio Surplus| Cash Reserves Community
Surplus Equity
Y 5000 | 3000

Mot 25 | |
526,588] T.'I-l-ﬁ.iﬁ!l 43,012 1,715,583
3z (834) (13,018) . {13,850)
525,754 1,132,967 43,012 1,701,733
203,574 - 203,574
a2 - 487 497
204,071 204,071
41,242 - 41,242
3z BB 418 - BO,418
128,651 . 120,661
129,661 204,0M - 133,732

{34, 831)4 34,631

17,688 [17.B86)

(16,745} 16,745

(1,077) 1,077 -

654,338 1,321,370] 59,757

The above statemen! showld be read in corgunclion with the accompanying ncles and Significant Accounting Policies.
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REDLAND CITY COLNCIL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 Jure 2014
Restated
Nate 2014 2013
5000 S000
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 210,211 207,953
Payments to suppBers and employees (173,641) {184, T56)
36,570 13,197
Interest recaived a4 3.868 4,250
Naon-capital grants and contnbutons 6,253 9,036
Borrowing costs (3,839) {3,887}
MNet cash inflow/(outllow) from operating activities n 42,862 22,696
Cash flows from investing activities
Faymenis for proparty, plant and equipment (48.233) (36,931)
Payment for invesiment property 17 - (17)
= Payments for infangible assels 19 (1,764} [982)
-E MNet movemeant in [oans to community groups 9 16
) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and aquipmeant 2813 1,312
& Capital grants, subsidies and contributions 22.078 14,127
g Allconnex Water debt allocation - [2.843)
O
a Net cash inflowl{outflow] from investing activities {25,083) (25,318)
©
E Cash Rows from financing activities
g Proceeds from bomowings . 5715
= Repaymant of borrowings 2 (4,119 (3,202)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) fram financing activities (4,118) E12

Mat increasa/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 13,840

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 82,595

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financlal year 98,2356

The above statement should be read in corjunction with the accompanying noles and Significant Accounting Folicies,

QAQ
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REDLAMD CITY COUNCIL
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

L

1b

14

1.0

1’

g

1h

Easis of preparation and compliance

Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements of Council are for the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and have been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Governmen! Regulalion 2042 Consequently,
these financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with all Australlan Accounting Standards. Australian Accounting
Intarpretations and other authortatve proncuncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Whers the AASE
provides a For Profit and Mol for Probt version, Councd reders to the Not for Profit accounting standard,

These financizl stalements have been prepared unoer the historical cost convention except for the revaleation of certaln non-current
assets,

Statement of compliance

These general purpese financial stalements comply with all accounting standards and Enterpredations issued by Ihe Austrafian
Accounting Standards Board that are relevant lo Councils operations and effective for the cument reporting period. As Council is a nol-
for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards inciude requiremants for not-for-profit enlities which are inconsistert with
International Financial Reponting Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsisiencies are applied, thase financial statements do net
comply with IFR'S. The main impacts are the offsefting of revaluation and smpairment gains and losses within a class of assets, and
thi Biming of the recognition of non-reciprocal grant revenue.

Basis of consolidation

Ag at 30 June 2014 the Council had control over Redheart Pty Lid (controlled enfity), a comparny whose princizal activity was lo acl as
tha holder of the mining leass pursuant to the Mineral Resowces Act 1989 in respect of the Councils Garman Church Road quary
oporations. As al 30 June 2014, the company had net assets of $2 and remainad domant throughout the Fnancial year.

Ceonsolidated financial statements have not baen prepared as the contralled entity's transactions ane not material

Constitution
Rediand City Coundal is constituted under the Cueensland Local Governmen! Act 2009 and s domiciled in Ausiraka.

Date of authorisation
The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-Genaral for final signatura. This is

the date the management certificate was signaed.

Currency
Councif uses the Australian dellar as & functional currency znd its presentation currency.

Reunding and comparatives
Amaunts included in the fnancial statements have been rounded to the nearast $1,000. Rounding adjusiments aré included in
Ireenlones in the Statement of Financial Position. Comparative information has bean resiated whers necessany to be consistent with

disclosures in the cument reporting period (refer Mole 32).

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

Ir the current year, Council adapted adl of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accournting
Standards Board that are relevant 10 s operalions and eMectiva for the current reporting period. The adopdion of the new and revised
Standards and Inerprelations has nol resulled in any material changes {0 Councils accounting policies excepd for the revised AASE
119 Employee Banefils whereby annual leave entiternents expectad to be taken after 12 months will now be accownted for as a long-
fterm employee tenefit a3 opposed Lo a short-term employee benefit (refer Nole 2.0). The change did not have a material impact to the
measurement of the Rabity. AASE 13 Fair Value Measuremant has introduced new disclosuras for the financial statemants but did not
affect Councils accounting policles or any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Al the date of authorisation of the financial stalemenis, the Standards and Inlerpredations Iisted below were in issue but not yet
effective.

Standard Description Effective dales
AASB S Financia! instrumenis 1 January 2018
AASB 10 Consolidated Flnancial Statements 1 January 2014
AASE 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2014
AASHE 12 Disclosure of inleres!s in Other Enfities 1 January 2014
AASH 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
AASE 127 Separate Financial Statements (replaces existing standard and AASE10) 1 January 2014
AASE 128 Investmeands in Associales and Joird Venlures (replaces existing standard) 1 January 2014
AASB 1055 Butfgetary Roporling 1 July 2014
AASE 2008-11 Amendmenis to AAS anzing from AASBS (Decembar 2009) 1 January 2015
AASB 2010-7 Amendmenis to AAS arising from AASE 8 (December 2010) 1 January 20185
AASE 2011-T Amandments o AAS from Consoldationd/ont Arangements Standands ! January 2014
AASE 2012-3 Amendments fo AAS - Offeetting Financizl Assofs and Financial Liabilities ! January 2014

[AASE 132]

Page 7 of 40
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REDLAMND CITY COUNCIL
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Basis of preparation and compliance - continued

1.h  Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards - continued

AASB 20131 Amendmonts (0 AASE 1040 - Refocation of budgetary reporting requine meits 1 July 2014

AASE 2013-3 Amendments (s AA33 136 = Recoverable Amoun! Disciosures for Non-Financial Assefs 1 January 2014

AASE 20134 Amendments (o AAS - Novalion of Derfvalives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014
(AL58 139)

AAMSE 20135 Amendments fo AAS - nvestmant Entifes (AA58 1, AASE 3, AASE 7, AASE 10, AASE 1 January 2014
1% AASH 107, AASB 112, AASH 124 AASE 127 AASS 132, AASHE 134 & AASE 139)

AASBE 2013-5 Amendments lo AASE 136 ansing from Reduced Disclosure Reguinermenls 1 January 2014

AASE 201 3-F Amendments io A48 1038 arising from AASE 10 in refation fo consoiidation and inferests 1 January 2014
of policyhoidars

AASHE 20132-2 Amendments to 445 - Australian Implemenfation Guidance for Nof-For-Profit Entifies - 1 January 2014
Confrof and Structured Enfities (AASE 10, AASE 12 & AASB 1043)

AASE 2013-8 Amendments lo AA45 - Conceplual Framework, Materality and Financial inslruments 1 January 2014

(Cperative dades. Par! A Conceplual Sramewcrk - 20 Dec 2013, Pant B Malerialily - 1 Jan
20714; Parl C Financial Insfruments - 1 Jan 2015

AASE 2014-1 Ammandments fo AAS - Part A Annual Improvements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cyclas 1 July 2014

AASH 20141 Amandmants fo AAS - Part B Defired Benef! Flans: Employee Confribiutions ! July 2014
[Amendments o AASE 113

Interpratation 21 Lavies ! January 2014

Those that may have an impact on Council are discussed below,

AASE 8 Finanzial Instruments {effective from 1 January 2018}

AMSE 8, which replaces AASBE 130 Financiz! insfruments - Recognition and Measwemsn!, is sffective for reporting periods beginning
on ar after 1 January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of AASE 8 Is to change the requiraments for the
classification, measurement, dereccgnition and disclosures associated with financial assats and financial Babilities. Under the new
requirements the four cument categories of financial assels stipulated in AASB 135 will be replaced with two measurement categonies:
fair value and amorlised cost. Measuremant at amortised cost will be allowed whera very specific conditions are met,

Tha changas n the classification are not expected to have a significant impact an the financial balancas currently reported as all of
Councils finantial assets are carried at amorised cost, fair value, or at a carrying value which approomates the far valie
Accordingly, management reposts that under the cument circumstances, thare will be no material impact on the financial statements
when AASE 9 Fnancial instruments s implemented at the effectve date of 1 January 2018

Consolidation Standards
The fellowing accownling standards apply o Council as from reporling pericds baginning on ar after 1 January 2014;

AASE 10 Consalidated Financial Slalements

AASE 11 Joint Arrangements

AASH 12 Disriosure of Inderasts in Othar Eniftias

AASH 127 Separate Financial Staterments

AASE 125 fnvestments in Azsociales and Jolal Ventures and

AASE 2011-F Amendmenis fo Australian Accownling Slandards avising from it Consolidalion and Joind
Arrangernants Standarcs

AASBE 2013-8 Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards - Australizn implementation Guidance for

MNat-For-Frofif Entities - Controd and Streclured Enditie s

These standards am lo improve the accountng requiréments for consobdaled hnancial staterments, joint arrangements and off balance
sheel whicles.

AASB 10 redefines and clarifies the concept of control over anoclhar entity, and is the basis for determining which antitiss should ba
consolidated info another entity’s financizl statéements. Counal will reassess the nature of its relabionships with other enities, including
entities that are not currently consolidated.

AASB 17 deals with tha concept of jaint control and sets out new principles for detarmining the typa of joint arangament that axists,
which in turn Jictates the accourting treatment. The new categories of joint arrangements under AASE 11 are more aligred fo the
actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. Council will assess the nature of any arrangements with othear entities
to determing whether a joint arrangement exists with reference to AASE 11.

AASE 12 contains the disclosure requirement for interasts in other entities including unconsolidated structured entities. While Council
is yet to complete 8 review of disclosure, no significant changes are anticipated, basad on those presantly mada.

QAD
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REDLAND CiTY COUMNCIL
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year anded 30 June 2014

Basis of preparation and compliance - continued

1.k Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards - continued

Ratated Parties

On 27 July 2012 the AASE decided to apply AASE 124 Related Parly Disclosures 1o nol-for-profit public seclor entibies, At the time of
compiling the financial staternants the standard had not been changed Lo give ffect to this decigion and the AASB has idenlifiad the
nead for quidanca to clarify how this proposal should be applied to not-for-profit puslic sector entiies. Councll has azsessed the
patential imgact and, based on the sxposure draft, dentified additional information that will need to be disclosed in the fulure. Tha

requirernants, whan Enalised, will apply o annual reperting penods peginning on or after 1 July 2015,

] from Contracts rs

Exposure Draft 222 has been issued ag IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Cusfomers during the financial year ended 30 June
2014, IFRS 15 will be applicable to annval reporiing periods commencing on or after 1 January 2017 and its requirements will
suparsede previous revenue guidance 1o the extent Council has contracts with customers to deliver goeds and sedvices as an output
of the entity's oxdEnary activiies,

The AASE is considering the development of an exposwre draft based on IFRS 15 Revenue from Cantracts with Cusiomers , modified
where necessary to address nol-for-profit specific issues, including accounting for income arising from non-customer sources [e.g.
taxes). It will include a propesed replacement of the income recognition reguirements in AASB 1004 Confribulions. Mo decisions have
been made by the AASB at the time thesa financial statements were compiled.

The reporied results and position of the Councl will not change on adoption of the other pronouncements as they o nof result in any
changes to the Councils existing accounting policies. Adoplion will, however, result in changes o miormation currently Sisclosed in
the finzncial stztements, Council does not infend to adopt any of these pronocuncements before their effective dates.

10  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Irn the apphcation of Councils accounting policies, managemant is required lo make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
carmying values of assets and liabiliies that are not readily apparent from othar sources, The estimates and associaled assumptions
are based on histarical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from thess
estimales. The astimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates ane
recognised in the period in which the esfimate is revisad and in fulure pariods as rélevant

Judgements. estimates and assumptions tha: have a petential slgnificant effect are outlined in the following financial statements notes:

Fair value of irvestment property (Note 2.i and Nofe 17)

Velustion and dJepreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 2. and Note 34)
Impa‘rment of assats (Mote 2.1)

Long-tarm empisves benefit chligations (Note 2 o and Note 23)

Restaration Provision (Note 2 g and Note 23)

Confingent liabilities and contingent assets (Mote 28}

Evenis aler the reporting period (Nole 38)

~ QAD
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REDLAND CITY COUNCL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended 30 June 2014

2 Significant accounting policies

2.4 Revenue
[ates, levies, grants and other revenue ane reccgnised as revenue on receipt of funds or sarller unconditional entitlemant 1o the funds.
Rewenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
Rates and levies
Where rate monies are recaived prior to the commencement of Ihe ratingevying peniod, the amount i3 recognsed as revenue in the
period in which they are received, otherwise rales are recognised al the commencement of the rating penod.

Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon lodgement of the relevant
applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the serice i provided,

Rental incoma
Rental incoma from invastment and other property is recognised as revenus on a pericdic straight-Ine basis ovar the lease term,

Ideresl recaied
Interest receivad from term deposits s accrued over the term of the invastment.

Salus revenue
Sale of goods i3 recognised when the significant risks and sewards of swhership are transfarred to the buyer, generally whan the

custorrer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.

Revenue is meazured at the fair vaive of consideration received or receivable in redation lo that activity. Where consideration s
received for the service in advance, it is included In other llabiliies and IS recognised as revenue in the period when the sendce s
performed. Amounts disclosad as revenua sre net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behal of third

parfies.

Other income
Other income [s racognised when the amount of revenue can be measured refiably and it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to Cownci.

Grants and subsidies
Grants, subsidizs and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognisad as revenue in the year in which Cauncil obtains
control over them. Unspant, non-reciprocal grants are heldd in the Constrained Cash Resarves.

Where grants are received thal are reciprocal in nalure, revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations under the
lunding agreemant are fulfilled.

lon-cash conlr belicns
MNon-cash contribations are recagnised as revenue and as nen-current assets,

Phyeiczl assels contributed to Councll by developers in the form of road works, stomwater and park equipment are recognised as
revanue whan it is probable that the assels will be racalved by Council Generally this i3 when the development beacomes 'on-
maintenance’, |.e. Council becomes responsible for the maintenance of the assaet. The reveanue is recognised when there |s sufficient
dzta in the form ef drawing and plans to determine the specificalions and values of such assels. AL year end, where plans are nol yel
available, an accrual is recognised based on an average rale per lot. All non-cash contributions are recognisad at the Tair value of the
contribution received on the date of acquisifion.

Cash conirigulicrs

Council recelves cash contributions from proparty developers to construct assets such as roads and footpaths for new property
dovelopments in accordance with Gouncil's planning scheme policies. These infrastruciure charges are not within the scope of AASB
Irferpretation 18 Transfer of Assels from Custorners because there is no performance obligation associated with them. Consequently,

these cash contribulions are recognised as income when recaved,

Financial assests and financial liabilites
Council recognises a financial assat er financial lisbility in its Statement of Financial Position when, and anly when, Council becomes a
party o the contractual provisions of the instrumeant, Le. the trade date.

Coundil has calegonsed and measured the financial agsels and fnancial liabilities held at balance date as lollows:

Einancial saels

Loans and advances - measured al amortised cost (Mote 2.4)

Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 2.c)

Trade and other recelvables - measwed at amontised cost (Mate 2.d)

Financia| liabilities
Trade and othar paysbles - measured al amortised cost (Mote 2.n)
Beorrowings and bomowing cosis - measured at amortised cost (Nole 2.p)

i QAOD
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2 Significant accounting policies - continued

2b Financial assets and financial liabilities - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilties sre presented separately from each other end offsetting has not been applied. except for
Goods and Services Tax (refer Nole 2.w).

The fair vakee of trade and other recenables and payables is assumed to approcmate the value of the onginal transaction, (258 any
allowance for impairment where relevant. The camying value of cash and cash equivalenis is a reasonable approximation of fair value
and therafore separate disclosures of the fair values are nol required.

The fair value of borrowings is based on the marked vakee of debt outstanding. The market vakee of a dett obligation is the discowunted
value of future cash flows based on prevailing markel rates and represents the amount required to be rapaid if this was 1o ocour at
balance date. The market value of debl is provided by Cueensland Treasury Corporation and is disclosed in Note 22 to the accounts,
As it is the intention of Council to hold its borrewings for their full term, no adjustiment provision is made in theses accounis,

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financlal risk management of inancial instruments are included in Note 33,

2.c  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivales includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques recaipted but nod banked at the year end, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-larm, highly liquid investments with orginal maturities of three menths or less that ane readily
convertible to known amaunts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value, and bank ovardrafts

2.d  Trade and other receivables
Trade reczivables are recognised at tha amounts due al the time of sale or service delivery, i.e. the agreed purchase prica/contract
price, at trada date. Sattiement of thesa amounts is ganarally within 30 days from the invaice data.

The colkectabiity of recevables is assessed pariodically and if there is objective evidence that Council will nol be able lo collect all
amounis dua, the canrying amount is reduced for impairmert. The loss is recognised in finance costs. The amount of the impairmn
is the diference between the asset's carrying amount and the prosent value of the estimated cash fiows discounted at the effective

interest rate

AR known bad debts were writlen-off or provided for al 30 June 2014, Subseguent recovenes of amounts previously written off in the
same period gre recogrised as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. IF an amount is recovered in a subsequent
period it is recognised as other income.

Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Govemnmen! Act 2009 to sell an owner's property to recover outstanding rate
debls, therefcre Council genaerally does not impalr rale receivables. However, in canain resiriclive circumstances Council will
recognise an imgairment of rate receivabies, although this valve tends to be immaterial due to the nature of the determining factors of
the impairment.

2o Inventories
Stores and raw materials are valued at the lower of cosl and net realisable value. Cosls are assigned on the basis of weighled average

oSl

inventaries held for distribution ars:
+ poods 1o be sizpied at ne, or nomingl, charge, and
+ poods 0 be vsas for the provision of services at no, or nominal, charge.

These goods are vaived gt cost, adjusted when applicable, for any less of service potential,

Other assets
Prepaid expenses for vehicle registration, insurances and cther material expenditure are recognised initially at cost and classifted as a
current asset. Once the benefits are receved, the amount is expensed.

Mon-current assets held-for-sale

Items of preperty, plant and equipment are reciassified as non-current assels held-for-sale when the carrying amount of these assets
will be recovered principally through a sales ransaction rather than continuing use. Mon-current assels classified as held-for-sale are
available for immediate sale in thelr present condition and management believe the sale is highly probable. Mon-current assels held-

for-sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair vaive less cost to sell and are not depreciated, On the eventual
sale of these assels a gain or losa is recognized,

Invastmants

Term deposits in excess of three months are reponied as investments, with deposiis of less than three monlhs being reported as cash
agquivalents. At 30 June 2014 Council did not have any term deposits in excess of three months.

QAD




(Y]
+
C
=
(<]
+
48}
+—
)
@
O
c
©
=
L

Annual Financial Statements

REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2 significant accounting policies - continued

2.1 Investment property
Investmant praperly is preparty hald for the primary purpose of saming rental incoma and/or capital appraciation.

Investment property is measured using the far value model This means all invesiment property s indtially recognised at cost
(including ransaction coste) and then subseguently revalied as reguired. Where investment property is acquired at no or nominal
cost it is recogniscd at fair value. Fair value will be determined In accordance with AASE 13 Falr Value Maasurement Refer to Nobe
17 and 34.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Incomea
for the period in which they anise, Investmant propery is not deprecialed and is not tested for impairment.

2] Property, piant and equipment :
Each class of properly, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation and
accumuylated impairment losses. Non-current assel thresheolds for recognition purposes are as follows:

Land (1]
Building {al
Flant & egquipment 5200 - 51,000
Roads §5,000
Stormwaler drainags 55,000
Watar & wastewalar 55,000
Parks 5500
Other infrastructure 55,000
Waste §5.000
Wark in progress. [EL]
s f

Acquisitions of assets are inttially recorded at cost. Cost is determined 25 the fair value of the assets given as consideration such as
cost of materials, direct labour and where relevant, the initial estimate of reslorirg the site on which the assels are localed, plus costs
incidental to the acquisition, including all costs incurmed in preparing the assets ‘or use.

Froperty, plant and equiprment received in the fom of contributions are recagnised as assets and reverus at fair vakee (by Council
valuation} where Ihal value excesds the recognition thresholds for the respectve assel class. Fair value is the price that would be
received o sefl an assel or paid bo ransfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwesn market parlicipants at the measurement date.

Capital and epersting expenditure

Viages and material costs incurrad in the acquisition or canstruction of assets ame treated as capital expenditure, Routine oparating
maintenance, rapair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of non-current assets are expensed as incurred.
Expenditure that ralates to the replacement of 2 major component of an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalisad,

Valuation
AN asset categories are measured on the revaiuation basis, at falr valua. In aczordance with AASE 118 Fropary, Plamt and Equipmant
and AASE 13 Fair Value Measuremend | sxcapt for plant and equipment and work in progress which are measured at cost.

MNon-current physical assels measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the camrying amount of each class of asset
does not materialty differ from Bs falr valus a1 the repoming date. This is achioved by comprahensivaly revaluing these assets at feast
once every five yeaars by engaging either indapendent external valuers or sultably qualified intemnal st2ff. [n intarim years, valustions
are performed using a sultable index where there has been a material variation in the index.

Ay revaluation increment arising on the revalualion of an assel is credited to the appropriate class of the assel revaluation surplus,
except ta the exent It reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense, A decrease in the carrying
amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, 1o the extent il exceeds the balance, f any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset
dlass,

On mvaliation, accumulated depreclation |3 restated propomtionately with the change in the camrying amount of the asset and any
changa in the estimate of remaining useful kfe '

Separately identified companents of assats are maasured on the same basis as the assets to which they ralate.

Detaids of valuers and methods of valualions are disdosed i Mole 34, Alko refer to Nole 2.0 Tor the treatment of assel revauabon
Movaments.

- QAO
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2

2j

ik

Significant accounting policies - continued

Property, plani and equipment - continued

Capital work in pregress

The cost of property, planl and equipment being constructed by Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials, direct
labour and an apgropriate proporion of abour ovarheads.

Deprediztion

Land, artwork and heritage assets ane not depreciated as thay have an unlimited useful [fe. Depraciation on cther property, plant and
aquipment assels is calculated on a straighl-line basis so as o write-off the net cost or revalued amaunt of each depreciabie assel,

lgss ils estimated residual vakie, progressively over e estimatad usehd life to Council. Management beBeve that the straight-fine
basis approprately reflects the pattern of consumptian of all Council assets

Assets are deprecialed from the date of acquisition, or in respect of internally constructed assels, from the date an asset is completed
and commissioned ready for use,

Whare assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacemeant, these components are assigned useful
lives distinct from the asset o which they relate, Any expendifure that increases the oniginally assessed capacity of service potential
of an assei is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the rernaining useful life of the asset to the Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assete that are above the assel recogniion threshold are capitabzed and
depreciated on the same basis as the assel to which they ralate.

Depreciation methods, estimaled usetul bves and resdual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the and of
each reporting period and acjusted, where necessary, 1o reflect any changes in the pattern of consumgtion, physical wear and tear,
fechnical or commercial cbsolescence, or management intantions. Assessments performed as part of the annual procass for assets
measyred at depreciated curent replacement cost are used to estimate the useful ives of thasa assats af each reporting date. Datads
of the range of axtimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in Note 18,

Laod ynder ropds
Lang under roads acquired tefore 30 Jure 2008 i3 recognised as a non-current asset where Council hokds titfe or a financial lease

ovar the asset. Council currently does nol have any such land holdings.

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use unger the Land Asf 1994 ar
the Lam? Title Act 1994 is not controlled by Council but 18 controlied By the State pursuant o the relevant legislation. Therefore this
lard is nod recognised in these financial statemants.

Intangibla assats
Intangible assets with a cost or other value excaeding $1,000 are recognised a3 intangible aszets in the financial statements, items

with & lesser value are expensed,

it has been datermined that there is nol an active markel for any of Councils Intangible assets. Therefore, the assels are recognised
and camied at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impalrmeant losses. Amonsation methods, estimated remaining
useful lives ard residual values are reviewed at the end of sach reparting perod and agjuated where appropriate. Detads of the
astimated usafui kves assigned to each class of intangible assels are shown in Note 19,

Impairment of assets

Al physical and intangible assets are assessed for incicators of impeirment annually. If an indicator of possible Impairment axists,
Council defermines the assel’s recowerable amount. Any amount by which the asset's camying amount exceeds the recoverabls
amount is recordad as an imgairment loss. The recoverable amount of an assel is the higher of is falr value less costs to sell and its
valug in usa.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expensa In the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the assat is camied al a revalued
amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairmant loss is offset against the assat revaluation surnius of the
relevant clags to the extent avaiabla.

Where an impaimnent loss subscquenly reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amaount, but so that the increased camying amount does not excead the carrying amaount that would have been determinad
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income urless
the asse! is camied at 2 revalwed amount, in which case the reversal of the impainment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus
INCIEasaE.

Leases
All Council leases are of an oparating nature wheare substantiafly all the risks and benefits remain with the fessor,

Payments made under operaling leases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting periods coverad by the lease femm,
except whess an aMamative basis s more reprasentative of the pattern of benafits to be derned from the leased property

Page 13 of 50 QAD
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year anded 30 June 2014

2 Elgnmcam a.u::nunl:ing policies - continued

Zn Trade and other payables
Trade creditars ane recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured al the agreed purchase/contract price.
Amounls owmng are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms.

2.0 Liabilities - employes bensfits
Lizbilties are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual lsave and long servica lezve in respect of sarvices
provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liabllities for employss benefits are assessed at each reporting date. The
liabilities are presented as curnent liabilibes in the Statement of Financial Position if the entity does not have an unconditional night to
defer seftiement Tor at leasl twelve months after the reponing dale. regardiess of when the aclual settlerment is expected o ocour,

Salaries and YWages
A liability for salares and wages is recognised and measured as the amounl unpaid at reporting dabte at cumrent pay rates in respect of
employees' services up to that date. This liakillty represents an accrued expansa and & reportad in Mate 21 as a payabla.

Superannuaton
The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution Council makes 1o the superannuation plan which

provides benefits to its employees, Details of these arrangements are set out in Nole 28,

Long-term employas banafit obigations

Lizbditias for [ang sendca lsave and annual lsave ame nol expacted to be seltled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in
which the employees render Lhe relaled service. They ame thevefore recognised in the provision for employes benefits and measured
a5 the present value of the estimated fulure cash outflows to be made in resped of services provided by employees up to the and aof
the reporting period.  Consideration is given to projected futune incraases in the cument pay rates and includes related amployes on-
cofls, The estmates are adjusted for the probabdlity of the employes reémaining in Council's employment or other associsted
employment which would result in Council being reguired to meet the lablity. Adustments are then made Lo allow for the proportion of
the benefit earned to date, and the payments are discounted using marke! yields al the end of the reporting period of government
bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outfiows. This llabiilty is repercd i
Mobte 23 as a prowvighon and re-measwements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions arne

recagnised in profit or loss

Sick Leave
Sick leave taken in the future will be met by fulure entitlements and hence no recegniion of sick leave has been made on these
financial statements.

ip Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributaile transaction costs, Subsequart 1o initial recognition thess
liabliities are measured at amortisad cost

In accordance with the Local Government Regwalion 2012, Council adopis an annual debt policy that seis oul Councils planned
bomrowings for the current financial year and the next nine years. Councils current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a
term ne longer than the expectad life of the assal. Council also aima to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corperation's (QTC's)
borrowing guidalines and ansura thal sustainability indicators remain within accepiable levels af all times

All bormowing costs ane expensed in the pericd in which thay are incurred. Mo berrowing costs are capitalised on qualifying assels.

2.9 Restoratlon provision
A provision is made for the cost of restaration in respect of landfills and quarries whens it s probable that GCouncil will be lable, or
required, fo incur such & cost on the cessation of use of these faciities, The provisions are measured at the expected cost of the work
required, discounted to cumrent day values using the market vields at the end of the reporting period of govennment bonds wilh terms
and cumencies that malch, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash ouiflows,

Langfill regtgration

The provision represents the present vaiue of the anticipated future casts associated with the clogure of the tandfill, decantam nation
and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites. The calculstion of this provision requires assumglions such as
apphlication of enwironrmental legislation, site closure dales, available lechnologes and enginesring cost estimales  These
uncertainties may resull in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currantly provided. Because of the long-lerm nalure of the
liability, the most significant unceriainty in aslimating the provision is the cost that will be Incurred, The provision recognised for landfil
sitas is reviewad at least annually and updated basad on the facts and circumstances availlable at the time.,

II; I [

Councal s tendenng for the long leem oparation of the German Church Quarry. At the eand of the tendered peniod of operation it is
anticipated thet there will be a level surface and therefore a orovision for closure costs is no longer required as al 30 June 2014 (reder

Mote 23).

QAD
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REDLAMND CITY COUMNCIL
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2 Significant accounting policies - continued

2r Asset revaluation surplus
The assa! revaluation surplus comprises acjustments relating to changes in vale of property, plant and equipment that do not result
from the use of thosa assels. Met incremental changes In the camying value of classes of non-current assels since their initial

recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluaton surplus.
Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assels.

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease (3 offset first against the amount remaining In the asset ravaluation
surplus in respect of that class Any excess is treated as an expense.

zs Retained surplus
This represants the amaint of Councils net funds not sat aside in reserves fo meat specific future needs

2t  Constrained cash reserves
The following reserves are cash-backed reserves and represent funds that are accumulated within Council to meel anticipated futune

needs. In each case the amount relgtes o a perceived fulure requirement which is not currently a liabiity. An identified amount is
transferred from retained surplus into the relevant reserve. As expenditure s incurred on specific projects, the equivalent amount is
transferred out of the relevant reserve and returned to refained surplus. Reserve groupings shown below are further datailed in Note
26, Council formally adopied a consbrained cash reserves policy in 2014 to ensure transparency and accourtability on the cash-
backed constrained funds.

Constra ned works reseryas

Thig reserve inchudes all contributions of manetary revenue received during the reported and previous periods which are constrained
for the purpose of funding specific axpendiuwe. The closing balance reported al the year end represants amounts not yel expanded
and must be retained until exgended in the manner specifisd by the contributor or redevant legislation.

This reserye holds funds identified for various projects and for funding specific expenditure, Included in this group is Councils self-
funded Rediard WorkCover Reserve.
This reserve hohd lunds set aside to meet future specific expenditure for the Water, Wastewater and Waste Management Unit

Separale charge iesenve - Envirpnment
This reserve was established to hold funds collected from the Emvironment Charge for ongoing maintenance and fulure capital
expendiure for conservation mainienance and envirenmental land acquisitions.

Special charge reserve - Other
This resarve was established to hold funds collected from the Rural Fire Levy Special Charge and these funds ane distributed to the

respective Southem Moreton Bay Islands Rural Fire Brigades

This reserve also holds funds collected for Southern Moreton Bay Island Translink Special Charge and these funds are distributed to
tha State Gavarnmant to assist with franspor service on the Bay !'slands.

I - Canals
This reserve was established to hold funds collected from the Canal Special Charges and the Sowarsign Waters Lake Special Charga
for ongoing and fulure mainlenance,

Mational Competition Policy
Council has reviewed s activites to identify its business activities, Detalls of these activities are disclosed in Note 35,

Trust funds held for outside partles

Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include proceeds in excess of rales and charges recovened through sake of
land for overdue rates and various security deposits lodged to guaraniee performance. Coundl pedforms only a custedial role in
respect of these monies and because they cannal be used for Council purposes, thay are not considared revenue nor brought lo
account in the financial statements. The maonies ame disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for information purposes only in

Mobe 30.

Taxation

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempld from Commonwealth taxation excepl for Fringe Benahts Tax and GST. The
net amount of GST recoveratle from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) or payable 1o the ATO is shown as an asset or hability
respadtively. Council pays Payroll Tax to the Queensiand Government on certain activities.

Cash fiows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows ansing from investing
ard financing activibes, which are recoverable from, or pavable to, the ATO, are dassified as operaling cash flows,

QAQ
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‘ REDLAMD CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Far tha year endad 30 June 2014

2 Significant accounting policies - continued

i.x  Carbon Pricing
In 20H 1, the Australian Govemnment intraduced a Clean Energy Legislation package. One aspect of this package which has impacted
Council directly and indiractly, was tha Introduction of a pricing mechanism for greenhouse gas emissions in the Ausiralian economy.
Cn 1 July 2012 the Federal Government infroduced a Carbon Pricing Mechanism and sel a fed price path far tha first three years
(%22 per tonne of CO2-equivalent emizsions adjusted in real terms by 2. 5% per annum) befare maving to a fexible price mechanism
from 1 July 2015

Tre mechanism applied ta antities with operating facilities that had emissions greater than 25,000 tonnes of carbon dicxide aquivakent
per yaar Redland City Councl does not operate a landflll or any other facility that exceeds this threshold and therefore did not have a
direct liability a5 part of Lhis scheme.

Council also did not recognise a iiability for the purchase of carbon permits for facilities at 30 June 2013 or 30 June 2014 as General
Mixed ¥/aste generatad in Redland City is currently transported cutside the city to landfilis operated by Brisbane City Council. Councl
will have the direct liability for the waste transported from Redland City, the cost of which will be passed back 12 Council. Therafore
Council wag Fiable for the future carbon hiabiity for each tonne of waste sent to Brisbane City Council landfills under Council's waste
disposal agreement. However, at 30 June 2013 the labdity was estimated as unlikely lo be the same as Council's actual liability in
201314 due to the nature of estmales and, in particular, the lkelihood that the pricing mechanism will change following the faderal
olection.

During the 201 2-13 and 2013-14 financial years, Council was charged an additional 320 per tonne for mixed waste disposed at

Brisbane Cily Council facilities. Following the repeal of the Carbon Price Mechanism, Brisbane City Council has confirmad the carbon
tax fiab®ty will no longer be applied to the waste disposal agreemant effective 1 July 2014, Refer to Nota 38 Events after the regorting

period.

QAQC
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REDLAND CITY COUNCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

3. Statement of functions and activities
{a) Components of Council functions
As at 30 June 2014, the activities relaling to Council's compenents reported on in Mote 3(b) are as fallows:

CEOQ Department
This deparimen! provides suppor functions (o Council and is responsible for assisting management of Council by providing
senvices in the following groups:
- Chief Executive Office
Legal Services
Human Resources
Financial Services

Crganisational Services Department
This depariment is responsible for providing additional support functions to Council in ferms of communications and
Infermalion systems, managing disaslers and civil emergencies and providing certain governance services. It performs these
functions through the following groups:
- Emargancy Management
= Priority Development
= Office of the Mayer and Councillors
- Internal Audit
Corporate Governance
- Portfolio Management
- Communicatons
- Informaticn Management
- Flaet Services
- Warehousing
- Office of tha General Manager

Community and Customer Services Department

This departmant is responsizla for managing operstional service delivery and emvironmental and regulatory compliance
sarvices. [t is aiso responsible for statutery and strategic planning functions and development assessment functions. |t
delivers thess responsibilities throwgh the following groups.

= Community and Cullurad Services

- City PRnning and Assessmaent

- Environment and Regulation
= Office of the General Manager

Infrastructure and Operations Department

This department is responsible for managing Coundl's water and wastlewater infrastructure and operations in order to provide
safe and reliable waler, wastewaler and waste services to lhe communily whilsl minimising envirenmental harm. The
department alse manages the cily's community services and is responsible for the delivery of capital and major operational
programs and projects. B delivers these responziblities thraugh the following groups:

- Financial Businaas

= City Infrastructy e

- Water and Wasle Infrastrecture

- Water and Waste Operations

- Chty Spaces

- Praject Dalivery

- Office of the General Manager

Council Restructure

Curing the financial year ended 30 June 2013 Councll undertock & two-phased restructure, the first phase involved the
realignment of the arganisation under three General Managers and was put in place by 8 April 2013, The second phasa
included the review and consulation within the departments and was fully implemented by 1 July 2013 The change in
functions resulied in significant changes 1o the summary of income, expenses and assets by funclion in comparison lo prior
years as demonsirated in Nole 3(b).

Page 17 of 50
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note

4 Revenue analysis

(a) Rates, levies and charges
General ralas

Special charges
Emvironment ey

Waler access

Waler consumplion
Wastewater

Trade wasle

Waste disposal

Total rabes and utlity changas
Less: Pensioner remissions

(b} Foos and charges

Fines and penghisg

Moaring and parking fees

Search faes

Builfing application fees
Development appication fees

Water and sewerage application fess
License fees

Commercial collection fees

Oiitver fees and charges

(e) Remtal lncome
Irvesimaent plopedy renlal
Dther renkal income

{d} Intorest recelved

Interest received from investments

Interest fom avemue rales and Uty chares
Other interest income

(v) Sales revenue

Sl of senvdcas:
Recoverable works
Evenls

Sabe of goods:
‘Wasle managament
Indigiscapes
Rediands Ferforming Arls Centre
Miscefaneous

{fy Othor Incoma
Other income
Commission received
Recoverable income
Insarance proceds

5 Grants, subsidies and contributions

|a) Recurrent

General purpase gevemment grants
Govermment subsidies and grants
Coniributions

{b) Capital

Governmen subsidies and grams
Contributions

Man-cash contributions

Page 19 of 50

Restatod

2014 013
$000 f -]
78,450 76,726
323 1,478
B.2T4 9,844
16.977 168,432
37250 28,770
35,232 40,339
1411 1,288
18,102 17,37
199,914 192,907
(2 ETE) [2 B12)
197,243 190,295
583 558
926 868
1,155 S04
1,876 1,184
2689 1,664
65 309
1,350 1.564
205 270
2,039 5.276
11,008 12,602
128 Ti
770 357
FEE] 438
3213 3,574
545 BBS
i0 11
3,868 4,250
232 1.513
155 158
B34 524
314 334
41 kL

3 4

4815
3812
211

8,836

505
9112

14,128

6,547
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REDLAND CiTY COUNCIL
NQOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014

5 Grants, subsidies and contributions - continwed

Conditions over contributions

Contributions and grants which were recogrised as income during the cumenl reporting period and which were obtained on lhe
candition that they be expended in a manner specified by the contributor buf had not been expanded &t the reporting date:

Trans podt inlrasiructure

Other infrastruciure

Water and wastewater infrastructure
Grants and conlributions

4,376 2,256
3614 778
6,809 4,353
2,793 4,867
17,592 12,254

Contribulions and grants which were recognised as income during a previous reporting perod and were expended during the current

reporting peniod in accordance with Coundil's obligations:

Road infragtructune

Other infrastructure

Waler and wastewaler infrastrciune
Grants and contributions

& Employes banefits

Total stafl wages and salares

Councillors’ remunaration

Annual leave and long service leave anfillements
Superannuation

Other employes related expenses

Less. Capilalised employee axpinses

Total fullime equivalenl Councl employees al the reporting date:
Elching s mibsers

Adrinistration and indoor staff

Quicoor staff

Tolal full Bme equivalent employess including electad members

Materials and servicas

Cantractors

Consultants

Other Council sulsourcing costs
Purchasa of materials

Office admiérisiralion costs

Electricity charges

Flam operations

Infarmation brchnology resources
Ganeral insurance

Communily assistance

Audit of annual financial statements by the Audior-General of Quesnsiand
Other material and sendce expenses
Remediation costs for landfill and quanry

-] Finance coSts

Finance costs charged by the Quaensland Treasury Comaration
Bank charges

Bad debls

Landfl and quarmy remediation
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Councillor rarmunsration represents splay and superannuation paid in respect of canmying oul their dutics.

1.743 1433
280 215
3046 1765
5.253 2.685
11,722 8,099
58,720 52,100
1217 1,183
5,268 063
7,100 7.268
72,301 77,542
3,324 5.266
75,627 82,808
{4.601) {4.417)
71,026 78,381
1 1

703 887
188 183
812 Ba1

32,803
2,787
10,854
30,758
6811
5435
6,387
1957
1483
1304
133
2,784
(17.274)

86,282
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HEDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014 Restated
Note 2014 2013
$000 fi L]
9 Dopreciation and amartisation
Depreciation of non-curment assets
Buildings 3,300 4468
Plant and equipmant 4994 5,161
Roads 11,688 11,831
Stormwater drairage 5,387 4,787
Water and wasiewater 16,512 16,584
Farks 322¢ 4,145
Qther infrastneciun 1,691 2567
WWasie 497 504
18 47,598 50,067
Amortisation of intangible assets
Software 18 ae7 369
Totdl depreciation and amaortisation at 47,965 50,436
10 Loss on disposal of non-current assels
Proceeds from sile of praperty. plant and eguipment (1,449} (743)
Less: book value of property, plart and equipment disposed 4,174 2497
2725 1.764
Proceeds from sale of land (1,0985) (524)
Less: book value of land dkposed 1,877 1.547
5az 1023
Proceeds fram szle of non-cument assels held-for-gale [275) {45)
Leas: book value of dispased non-cunen! assets held-for-sale 341 20
&6 (18}
£ 3373 2,761
11 Gain on reintegration of waler aperations
Agselts derecognised (#56,774)
Assels recognised 657,782
Liablithes recognised {10.52%)
- 200,486

Rediand Waler was reintegrated on 1 July 2012 fellowing the Distribution and Retail Water Refosm changes from 1 Juy 2012 which
resulted in e dissclution of Allconnex Waler, Assels and Rabilities were recognised al fair value on inilial recognilion as al 1 July
2012 and the investment in Allconnex was de-recognised al the carmying value (fair value). The difference was recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended 30 June 2013 as a "Gain on reintegralion of water operations”

Cash and cash oguivalonis

Cash af bank
Cash on hand
Depasits at cal

1.465
17

94.752

1.241
17
81,337

Total cash and cash equivalents

96,235

82,595

Council's cash and cash equivalents ar subject to a numbar of nternal and extemal restrictions that limit amounis available for

discretionary or fulure use. These include:

Restricted funds:
Unspent govemment grants and contibutions
Unspent developer contibutions
Conslrained mcome for fubure use

5,308
26423
40,950

T.768
17.583
34,396

72581
23,554

58,757
22,838

Unrestricled funds

96,235

B2 595

Cash is held with the Ausiralia and New Zealand Banking Growp in a nofmal business cheque account

shor-temm credit rating of A-1+ and & long-term credit rating of AA-_ Deposils at call are held with Queenstand Treasury

Corporation which has a short-tarm credit rating of A-1+ and a long-term credit rating of AA+.
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AEDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014 Restated
Hole 2014 213
000 E300

12 Cash and cash equivalents - continued

Councl bokis theee faciities with the Austradiz and New Zealand Banking Group to faciltate its oparational monetary requirements.
These facilities and thelr assoclated values are:

Commercial Card F325 000
Electronic Payway §5,000,000
Varied Faciily £5,050.000

Unrestricled access wae available al balance date to the lacilites listed abowve.

13 Trade and other receivables

Ratles and ulility charges 22,743 17,308
Trade dabtors 1,304 1,625
Othér debtors 459 412
Infringemeni debiors 752 574
GST recoverable 954 1.093
Loans and advances o communily ciganisalions - |
Leas: Alowance for impairment [73) (91}

26,139 20,930

interest s charged on oulstanding rates at 11% (2013 11%} per annum. No interesl is charged on other debltors. There i no
concentration of credit risk for rates and ubdity charges. fees and other receivatles.

49 Movement in accumulated impairment losses is as follows:
ClCJ Openng balarce 8l 1 Juy w1} {83)
E Impalrmant debts written off during the year 20 18
< Addtional mpairments recognised i2) {24}
= Cloging balanca at 30 J e (73] (81)
(40]
=) 14 | Atorio
A nventorios
TU Inventories held for distribution
'O Gravel stockpiles 261 ira
() Flant and equipment stores 51 5mM
(q0) Indigtacapes stock 52 -
< [I7] G4
L= All invantosies heid by Gouncil thrawghout the financial year were heid for distribution. AN inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.
15 Mon-current sssets classified as hold-Tor-sale
Plari ang equipment 354 467

it CREE T

Prepaid registratian
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid other expenses

17 Investment proparty

Opening balance at 1 July 797 4G
Acquisition of investment propery 17
Transfer (lo)Trom othes nen-current assel class 96 {85}
Cloging balance at 30 June 393 787

The invesiment progerty relatas to the smestment portion of the Tosndah Harbour Business Centra. The Toondah Harbour Business
Cenbre was valued at fair value by Camdne {21d) Pty Lid, an ndepandent professianally quakfied valuation firm, &s at

30 June 2012, Cardno [Qid) Fiy Lid have extansive experence in valuing properties of this nature In the Rediand City Councl district
and surmounding areas,

Fair vakee was detenmincd by reference o market based evidence including cbservable hislorical sales dala in the relevant markel for
properies of similar nabure and specilication.

Income from invasiment propearty is shown in Note 4(c). Direct oparating expenses arising from investment property that gencraled
rental income dusng (18 year was $27,575 (2013 §24,265). Direct operaling expenses ansing from investment prapey that did not
generate renlal during the year was $97,766 (2013 $86,136).

Al repodting date there was no properly being constructed or developed for fulure use as invesiment property.
QAD
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Raatated
Note 2014 2013
$200 a0
18 Inungihle AL
Software - gross camying value
Opening balance at 1 July 9,525 8,546
Additicns 1. 764 a2
Carrection in year 32 3
Wiilten ofl amounls [ -
Cloging balance sl 20 June 11,286 5,528
Accumulated smortisation
Opening balance at 1 July (8,562) (8.183)
Amaortisation for tha year - {387} (365)
Withen off amounts 3 -
Closing balance at 30 June 18,928) 18,862)
Mel carmying vaiue al end of financial year __2.380 —_— B3
The software has a finde iie astimated al J years, Straight-line amortisation has been used with no residual value.
20 Other financial assots
Irvestment in SEQ Recreational Facility Pty Lid i 73
T3 73
Councll does nol have control ar significant influence over the financial or ogeraling policies through valing rights or boand membership.
Insufficient evidence exists to detenming a marke! Dasad fair value for this inves'ment and therefore cost ia eonsidered 1o be an
appropriate measure of fair value, Councll does nol anticipate changes to the carying value,
21 Trade and other pays bles
Craditors and ascruals 16,248 10,580
15,248 10,580
il Bomowings
{a) Cumrent
Loans - Cueensland Treasury Corporation 4,375 4,124
4,375 4,124
¥} Mon-curmert
Loans - Queansland Treasury Corporation 54 BOB 58 978
54,608 58,978
Movemant In loans - Quesnsiand Treatury Carporation (QTC)
Opening balarce al 1 July 63,102 52,081
Loans raisad 4.500
Principal repayments {4.119) (3.488)
Closing balance at 30 June 56 883 63.102

The market value of QTC loans at the reporting date was $88,724 465 (2013. $69.305m). This iepresents the value of debl il Council
repaid it al thalt date. As it is the intention of Councll 1o hold the debt for #s term, no provision is required lo be made in these accounts.

Mo assels have been pledged as security by the Coundl for any abilities, however all loans are ukimately guaranbeed by the
Queensiand Govamment

Borrowings are in $AUD denoménated amounts and carmicd al amortised cost. interes! i expensed a5 it accrues. Mo interest has Deen
capitalised durng the cument or com paralive raporting period.

Expected final repaymaont dales vary from 22 July 2022 to 17 January 2027, There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan
agreement during the year, Principal and interes! repayments were made quareny in advance and interest applied a1 end of each
quariar.

Movement in loans - Other
Opening balance a; 1 July - 458
Loans raised = 1,215
Principal repaymenis - (1.713)
Interast accried - =
Chosing balance al 30 Juna

i QAQ
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Restated
Mote 2014 2013
floi s [ Jes]
23 Provisions
|8) Current
Quarmy mhabildaton i}
Landfill rehabiatian 6,451 5,747
Wiorkers compensation 278 62T
Long sendce leave T8 8283
Arnual eave 5 8T8 5926
19,9286 20,574
{b) Mon-GCurrent
CQuasmy rahabditation - T2
Landfill rehabiltation 17.578 33,026
Workers compensation 478 an3
Long service leave 1,737 1,818
19,793 37,164
Movements in provisions wore as follows:
Luary rehasliladicen
Opening balanca at 1 July 820 1.001
Increase in provision - boirowing cosl (43) 45
Increasefdecrease) in provision due to change in discount rate and costs {775} (23
Closing balance al 30 Jure - B20
ﬂ A3 Council s tendering for the [ong farm ogeration of the German Cherch Quarry and doasn’l anticipale a requirement for rehabiitation,
[ the provision hes besn reverses in 2013-14.
(D) _—
E Landfil bilitation
) Crpening balance al 1 July 39,673 40,870
"rB’ Inzreass in prowvsion - bavrowing cost 824 1.212
+= FPravision utiisatian 4,431} (T.275)
W Increasef{decrease] in provision due lo change in fiscount rate and costs {12,087 4 756
“© Closing balance at 30 June 24,069 39,673
g This is the presen value of the estimated cost of restaring closed landfill sies dcross the city is based on Councls ten year capdal
o program. The signiicant decrease in the closing balance is Jue Lo Ihe revigion of program cosls in addition to thé remaoval of exlamal
- debt to fund the remediation pregram, The program is now funded by a separate charge and inlernal shorl term loans from Council,
Opening balance al 1 July 1.320 1.470
Adjustment for period s (150}
Closing balance at 30 Juna 156 1,320
Long senvice |eave
Qpenmg balance at 1 July 10,099 @130
Lang service leave entilement raised {103} 2.517
Long senvice enliemant wsedfextinguished {574} (543)
Loing service entillement pad {504} {1,005}
Cissing balanca at 30 June 8918 10,083

Of the tolal current fang sensce keave balance, $500,000 is expected to be settied within 12 months rom balance date and $8,580, 870 s
expected o be setiled afler more than 12 months after 30 June 2014, The non-cument portion refates to em ployees who have nol yel
reached the required years of service b be enlitied o take long service eave, Phior year results have been adusied following a
clazsification movemant batwean cumant and non-cument for employeas who have reached seven years of service in accordance with
AASH 101 Fresentalion of Financia) Stefemants, reder Nobe 33

Snnual legve

Qpening balance at 1 July 5828 5,754
Annual leave anlillemeni raised 5332 5.801
Annual leave anfitement usediedtinguished (4,702} (5,08
Annual leave enlittement paid {480] (B13)
Closing balance al 30 June 5978 5828

OF the total curment annual leave balance, 54,225,207 is expected o be sellled within 12 months from balance date and $1.761.233 is
wsxpected io be sottled afler mora than 12 manths. ¥With the recent changes in AASE 119 Employee Banafifs, annual leave is now
conskdened to be 8 long term beneft and is thersfore subject 1o the same acluaral sssumptions as long sendes leave. Annual leave
balances have been reclassified from trade and other payables to current provisicns in the current and previous financial year,

Page 26 of 50 QA0
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
KWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

24  Other current llabiitles

Inearned ravenue
Unexpended granta

Restated

2014 2013
000 205
G4 853
4775 5.400
5,759 6,262

The unexgended granls amound relales o a deed of agreement between the State Government of Queenstand [acting through the
Oepartment of Transpod and Main Roads) and Council for the dredging of Fison Channel and Toondah Harbour, Thie estimated time of

eompletan has besn ravisad b 31 Decamber 2014
25 Asset revaluation sunplus

Asset rovaluation surpius analysis:

The closing balanca of the assel revafuation surplus comprises the following assel calegories:

Land

Bulidings

Flant and eguipment
Roads

Slormwater dranage
Waler and wastewater
Parks

Cther infrastructure
VWasle

Movemenis in the assol revaluation surplus were as follows:

Dpening balance at 1 July

Aaant cormactions

Met adjustment to non-current assals at end of year to reflect a change i cument fair value:

LLand
Roads
Met incraasel{dacreasa) in fair value

Transfer to refained eamings - revalued component of disposed gasels

Clasing balance at 30 June

827 586 68,339
27142 27142
1085 105
27T 109 277169
203,013 203,013
35 544 35,944
35,809 35,800
6 E8T 587
[ 854,338
654,338 525,754
88415

14,347 142
_AH

o 14,347 - 41,242
(1,077)

668,685 654,338

QAO
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

26 Constrained cash resarves

Reserves held for future expenditure:
Spedal Projects Rosense

LMilities Resarva

Constrained Werks Resenve

Separats Charge Resarve - Enviranment
Special Charge Reserve - Other

Special Charge Resenve - Canals

Movements in resarves ane analysed as follows:

Special Projecls Resena

Opening halance at 1 July

Transfers from retained surphes for feture expendilure
Transfers to retzined surplus, funds expended during year
Closing balence at 30 Juna

Liiiies Fesarve

Opening balance al 1 July

Transters from retained surplus for future expenditure
Translers 1o relzined surplus, funds expanded during year
Clising balances al 3 June

Conatrained Works Resenve

Opening bakinoe al 1 July

Transters fram retained surplus far future sxpanditure
Transfors to ratalned supics, funds pended during year
Clgsing balance at 30 June

Sepprale Chame Reseres - Environmen]

Opaning baiance at 1 July

Trangfers from retained surplus for fulure expendijure
Transfers to retained surpius, funds expanded during year
Closing belance at 30 June

Special Charge Regerve - Other

Opening balance at 1 July

Transfers from retained sumpdus for fulure expenditure
Transfers o retained surplus, funds expended dusing year
Clasing baiance at 30 June

Special Chargs Regonm - CAngls
Dpening balance at 1 July
Tranafers from refained surplus for future expenciture

Transfers to retained surplus, funds expended during year
Closing balance af 30 June

Fage 18 of 50
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Rostated
014 2013
$000 5000
11,688 13.545
13,018 2,487
31,7 25,341
8,440 14,027
3
: 7,830 4,547
Iaeh1  ___ seT67
13,545 11,798
2,255 3.455
{4,141} (1.708)
11,889 13,546
2497 2,143
10,758 £61
S - N .. /i §
13,018 2 497
25,341 16,481
19.565 18.570
(13,575) (8,710}
31,731 25,341
14,027 9,563
4,302 9,952
[0, B88) {5, 488)
8440 14,027
aTE 114
(975} (114}
3 -
4,347 J.087
3,444 1.879
{5,961) {559)
7,830 4,347

QAD
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AREDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Restated
For the year ended 30 June 2014 2014 2013

0 000

27 Commitments
Operating leases
Minimum kass payments in relation ba non-cancellable aparating leases are payatle as follows:
Within 1 year 1,088 1,540
1o 5 years 2872 3308
Greater than 5 years 5152 5825

9,112 10,753

Operating contractual commitments
Contrachsal commiimenis at end of financial year but nof recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Romdwarks 390 649

Water and wastewaler 3122 3,269

Waste 40,340 53,380

Other 10,503 5728
5 755 53 026

These cxpenditures are payaiie:

Wikhin 1 year 27,667 24.T9E

1 to § years 23,267 3445

Graater than § years 3821 8,782
54,755 63.028

Capital contractual commitments

Commitments for the construction of the fallowing assels contracted for at year end bul nol recognised as labilities

Roadworks 45 94

Water and wastewaber 1,505 1,347

Waste 18 10

Other 5,502 4,865

7,071 6,320
These expenditures are payabie:
Within 1 year 7,071 6,320
7,071 6320

Note: All commitments are inclusve of GST. Prior year disclosures have been restated fo include commitments previously omitted.

28  Contingent liabilities and contingenl assets

Contingent liabRities:

Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabfies are as follows:

ok it bR

The estimated claims dability for Council as a sell-insurer under the Workers Compensation amd Rehabiitation Act 2003 (the Act) as
at 30 June 2014 is $897,000 (2013: $1,253,000) where estimated claims liability is defined in Section 84 of the Act. The Actuary has
recommended that a provision be recognised for $758,000 (2013: 51,319,000) for the total estimated claims Kabiity. Councl has in
place a bank guarantee with the ANZ Banking Group Lid for 5,000,000 (2013 §5,000,000).

Qiher claims

The Quandamooka-Rediand City Council Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILLIA) sets oul broad principles and mechanisms for how
parties will work together and meet their respective responsibiities for mulual benefits in accordance with the Native Title Act 19584,
The ILUA establishes native litke validation and consultation for Councl's projects and a framework for olher policies, programmes
and initiatives for the mutual benafit of paries and local community,

Landfill Remadiation

Counci has historically recognisec, and continues to recognise, a provision for the remediation of former landfill sites throughoul the
city o ensure compliance with legal cbligations, The legal obligation is broad and covered in a range of legisliation such as the
Ervironmental Profection Act 1994, Pefrofewn and Gas Act 2004, Sustainable Planning Act 2003 and Work Hoalth and Safety Act
2011 plus subsrginate legislation (such as various regulations and codes of practice) and other industry guidelines.

Council /5 taking a risk-bassd approach ta justify and priodtise supenditee for managing these landlils with aftercars managemsnt
plans under development for each site. In 2014-15 there will be substantial expanditure to finalise the closure of Councifs largest
landfill sile at Birkdale, which was also the most recently closed landfill. 1t should ba nofed that hislonc landfils are unprediclable and
risks will conlinue to be reviewed and updated in Bne wilh relevant information from site inspections, detalled investigations,
emaronmental manifonng results, asset owner feedback, sibe master plans and other service standards. Costs will therefore change
over ime and al beas! annually, this programme will be reviewed (o reflect the dynamic carcumstances againsi Councll prudency and
efficiency measunes .

Contingent assets:

Council has no contingent assets at the date of this repant
QAO
- certified statements
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REDLAMD CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 30 June 2014

29 Superannuation

Rexdland City Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Schame (id) (the scheme). The schame is a Multl-Emplayer
Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 118 Employee Denefils .

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local govemment superannualion
scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purposa of the Commornweallh Superannuation Indusiry {Supendision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements, referred to as:

+ City Defined Benefits Fund [CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund
* Regional Defined Benefita Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefil fund members warking for regional incal goverrmenis
+ Accurmuiation Benafits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASE 119. Council has no liability to or interast in, the ABF cther than the payment
of the statulory contributions as required by the Local Governmant At 2009

The Regional DBF iz a defired benefit plan 35 defined in AASE 118, Councll is not able 1o account for the Regional DEF as a defined
banefit plan in accordance with AASE 119 because the scheme i3 unable to account to Council for s proporionate shara of the defined

benefit ooligation, plan assets and costs,

Any amount by which zither fund is over gor under funded would only affect future benefits and conlributions (o the Regional DBF, and is not
an asgset or Babllity of Council. Accordingly thera s no recognition in the financial statermeants of any over or undar funding of the scheme.

The audited genecal purpose financial raport of the schame as at 30 June 2013 {the most recent avallable) which was not subject to any
audit gualfication, indicates fhat the assats of the schema are sutficiant to meat the vested barefits,

The most recent achrarial assessment of the scheme was undertzken as at 1 July 2012, The aciuary indicated that the Regional DBF is
currently in a satisfactory bul modest financial position and remains vulnerable to adverse short and mediem lerm experence.”

Fellowing the previous actuarial assessment in 2008, counciis were advised by the trustes of the schema, following advice from tha
schema's acluary, that addiional confributions may be imposed in the future at a level necessary o protect the enfitlements of Regionai
DBF members. In the 2012 actuarial report the actuary kas recommended no change (o the employer contribution levals al Lhis lime

(Y]
+
C
=
(<]
+
48}
+—
(Y2
@
O
c
©
=
L

Under the Local Government Azt 2009 the trustze of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions on councils which have
employeas in the Regional DEF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF

The next actirarial valuation will ba conducted as at 1 July 2015,

2014 20M3
500 5300
The amount of superannuatian contributions paid by Council 1o the scheme in this
period for the benefit of amployess was: 7,070 7,286
The amaunt of superannuation contributions paid by Council to the scheme In this
pericd for the benefit of counciliors was: 130 124

Fage 30 of 50 QaD
certified stalements

Redland City Council Annual Report 2013-14



REDLAND CITY COUMNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Restated
Hote 2014 2013
f 2] GO
30 Trust funds
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities 7578 T.828

These funds relate to monies yet to be paid o1 10 or an behall of those entities and Councll performs only a custodial role in respect of
thesa mondes. Council separately accounds for all trust funds through a dedicated trust ledger and within a separalo account whergby
balances are excluded from the Statement of Financial Position.

3 Reconciliation of net result tor the yoar to net cash flows trom operating activites

Met result 3,675 204,071
Hon-cash gperaling iems
Depreciation and amortization 9 47,065 50,435
Non-cash conlributions 5 (5.669) (B, 54T}
Bad and doubtful debts 13 (18} 8
Land acquired in lieu of rates (&1) (48)
Non-cash gain on minlegralion of waber cperations - (203.128)
42217 {159,273]
} i { actil
Met logs on dispasal of non-currant assats 10 3373 2,761
apital grants, subsidies and contributions (o) (22 078 (14.126)
Alleonnex Water debl allocation s 2842
{18, 705) 18.524)
Changes in oparating asssts and iabiities
{Increase)/decrease in rade and olher receivables {5,200} 5,385
{Increass)/decrease in cther cumend assets and invenlories 219 (123)
Increased(decrease) in rade and ather payables 4,267 [16.62%)
Incresse/(decraase) in provisions (18,018 1,841}
Increasal(decreass) in other currant kabdlitias {503 (384)
[19,335) {13,672)
Mot cash inflow/{outfiow) from operating activities 42,852 22,895

: QAC
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Annual Financial Statements

REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the pericd ended 30 June 2014
32 Cosrection of errors - continued
A restated Statement of Financial Posiion and Slatement of Comprehensive Income has been included in the
financial statements as at 1 July 2012 and 30 Juna 2012 to reflact these adjusiments:
Previcusly Adjustment Restated
stated
$000 $000 B
1 July 2012
Property, plant and equipment 1,304,080 [13.850) 1,280,230
Intangible assets 353 | 3
Total Non-Current Assels 1,762,134 (13,850 ____g,;u,zagl
TOTAL ASSETS 1 _[13,850)] 1,850,504
Provisions 10653 5,758 17411
Total Current Liabilities i 43,231 6,758 49,989
Provisions 47 047 (6.758) 40, 288
Total Non-current Liabilities 105,640 {6,758} 5B, 882
TOTAL LIABILITIES T 1aeET| - 148,871
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS I 1,715,583) {13,850)] 1,701,733
Retained surplus 1,145 083 {13,0156)] 1.132 56T
Aszet revaluation surplus B 526, 588 (834} 525,754
wn TOTAL COMMURNITY EQUITY 1,715,583 113,850) 1,701,733}
-+
5 30 June 2013
c Property, plant and equipment 1,580,574 75,068 2,085,843
Intangibde assets 56/ {3 963
9 Total Non-Current Assets 1,992,410 75,066 2,087,478
_"E TOTAL ASSETS 2,098,580| 75,068 2,173,645
(V)
= Provisions 12,874 7.700 20,574
© Total Current Liabilites 34.340 TA00p 42,040
‘O Provisions 44 884 {7,700} 37164
(- Totzl Non-current Liabilities 103,842 (7,700} 96,942
g TOTAL LIASILITIES 138,182 e | 138,182
[ MET COMMUNITY ASSETS 1,960,398 75,068 1,035,464
_ |
Retained surplus 1,333.888] (12.519) 1,321,370
Asset revaluation surpius 566,753] 87,585 654,338
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 1,;5_«9&@'_____ 75,066 2,035,464

The depreciation charge for the period ended 30 June 2014 was calculated afier adjustments were mace and
therefore did not need correction. The imaact 1o the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the prior year s a5
Tollows:

Preslausy
stata
T | $000 3300

Adjustmant Restated

30 June 2013 1

Materials and services 100 887)] {100.689)
Depreciation and amodisalion (50,735)] 208 {50.436))
Total recurrent expenses 1235.827)| 457 [235,330)|
TOTAL EXPENSES {238 588)| ___(238,081)]

NET RESULT ; 203,574, 497 204,071

Revaluation of property, plant and eguipment 41,242 126,861
Other comprehansive incomel{loss) 41,242 129,661

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 244, B16| 3T

QA0
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

33 Financial inslruements

Redland City Councll is exposed to various nancial risks induding credit risk, interest rate risk and liguigity risk. Overall Council manages
financial risk with the alm of ménimising potential adverse bnpacts on the performance of Council,

Exposure to financiz risks B managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial sk management, These policies focus on
managing the volatildy of financial markets and seek to ménimise potential adverse effects on the financial perfcemance of Cowncd. Council
manimises its exposure o financial nsk, descibed below.

investmenis in ingncial assets are only made whare those assels are with a bank or other financial Institution in Austraka. Councdl does not
invest in derivatives or other high risk Invesiments,

Wiren Council bonrows, it borrews from the Queensland Treasury Corporation. Borrowing by Council is constrained by the provisions of the
Slatutory Bodies Financlal Arrangamants Act 1982

Counel measures risk exposure using a vanely of methods as follows:

Risk sxposure Measurement method
Credil risk . |Ageing analysis
Liguidity rsk Malurity analysis
Interest rate risk |S¢:-.s-|ivih- anahkis

Council's obpctives, policies and processes for managing risk and the mefhods used to measure the rsk have not changed since 2008.
Council does net hald funds in foreign currency and so does not have exposure to currency rigk.

(a) Credit risk axposure
Credit risk expasura rafars to the situation where Gowncl may incur financial loss as a reault of anather party ta a financial instrumeant failing
t2 discharge their obligations,

In the case of rates recaivables, Council has the power to sell the property 1o recover any defzulted amounts, In effect this power prolecls
Council against credit risk in the case of these debits.

11 other cases, Council assesses the credil risk before providing goods o services and applies normal business credil prolection procedures
o minimisa the risk.

Council is exposed fo credil sk frough ifs investments with the Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC). Funds ae held in a managed
portholio that nwesls in a wide range of hgh raling counterparbes. QTC's long-term credil raling of A8+ is i line wilh the Stele Government's
credit rating of A4, Funds deposied with QTC present relafivedy iow risk expozure and are capdal guaranieed,

The tolal credit risk exposure on financial assels is generally the canrying amount, net of allowance for impairment which is represented in tha
fair values table below {refer Note 34 (D))

Council has no major cancentration of credit fsk to any single deblor or group of deblors however, due o the natwe of Council's operations
there is a geographical conceniration of risk in the Councis area,

No assats have bean pladged as coliateral for Eabiliies or confingent (iabilities.
Past due or impaired;

Ho financial assefs have been renegotiated lo prevent them from being past due o impaired and are staled al their carying value. The
following table represents an analysis of the ageing of Councils financ al assets thal a= either fully performing, past due or impaired,

Fully Past due Sut nof impained impairad Tetl
Ageing Analysis e R
A1-00 days| 6130 days| =90 days

$000 5000 000 §000 2000 $000
2014
Trade and other recsivables 18,280 162 3,189 4,571 {73} 25.'.34
2013
Trade and cther receivables 13,714 233 3238 3836 {91) 20930
{b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to tha sRuation where Council may encounter difficulty in mealing cbligations associaled with finandial liabiities that ane
sefled by dedivering cash or another financial azset. Councl is exposed 1o Bguldity risk through its trading in the nommal course of business
and borrowings from the QTC for capital works.

Louncil reviews Bguidity risk indicators regularly and maintains sufficien! cash on damand to meeat operating and financing obbgations Tor
between 90 and 120 cays, exciuding the impact of extreme circurnstances that cannol be reasonsbly predicted, such as natural disasters.
Council can recad funds invastad with OTC within 8 working day o cover unexpacied volablity in cash flows,

certified state
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Annual Financial Statements

REDLAMND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

33 Financial instruments - conlinwed

The folkowing 1able sets oul e hguidily nsk of e financial Eabldies held by Councad as il might be provided to management. The amounds
disciesed i the maturity analysis represent the conbractual undiscounted cash flows al balance date.

Gt 1 pear T8 Cver & Tota] Camtng
YA yaam| contracha aneul
Al Neras

5003 30 §000 £a00 S000
014 |
Trada and ofher payables 15.248 - 7 15248  15.248]
Loans - OTC 7ea?]  sigi0]  aegey|  megsal  sesas)

23z00]  31810] 38097  eso00v] 7423

:b‘s SE— ——
Trade and olher paysiies 10,580 - - | togso] 10980
Loans - QTC 79s8]  ai1mw|  4aramr]  e72ss|  e3102

18.938)  3180]  avesr]  oe2as| 74

(¢} interost Rate Risk

Council [ exposad o imerest rate risk through borrowings and irvestimerts with QTC. The nsk in bommsings (s managed by borrowing
through QTC and thesafare having access to & mix of funding sources. The invesimanis Council has made through QTC ane capital aszured
and 30 there i3 no risk exposure to capital imvested. Councd does not anter inlo any hedging of imarest rabe rik

intaras! Rade Sonathty Analyss ;
The following sensitiily analysis shows the increase to profit from invesiments should there be A 1% increase in marke! interesi ralzs. The
cabturations assume (et ine rate would be held constant over the net finsncial yaar, with the change eccurring a1 the baginning of tha year
It & a3aumed that intereat rates on overdus rates would not change. if the rates decreassd by 1% the impact would be equal in amount in the
reverse dirachan, Interest on financial Gabiites is foced, so Eabddies have no sensitnity to fluctuatons in interesi rates. There has bean no

changi in ths AsIurmations trom the prior year,

Sensitity analysis Nl Carmying Amount Prafil I Expity l
2014 213 T z.'nal FTET) 2013]
[E0UD e HE L Ly L) OO0
Financial assets BG2) 826 £62 825 852 826
Financial kabilies - - - - a _
Increase lo profd with a 1% mcrease o Interest 962 B26 LT v 962 826
{d) Fair valua
Tre nst fair valus of cash, cash equivalents and nondntarest baarng monetary financial assets and labilites of Council approximates their

carrying amounts,

Financial nstnimants Flaating irerast rats Min-irdarest bearing
014 FLRE 20 F-=RE]
B 5000 AL 00

Financial assais
Caah and cash equivaients D6.218 | H#2578 - 17 1w
Receivables - - 3386 | 3833
95,218 | 82578 3413 3,540
Effective interest rate 31.a% A6%
Financial Habilities il ]
Fayatles il - : i 16248 )  10.880

Loang - QTC - 63,102 - -

3 63,102 15248 10,380

Weighted average inferast rale } 6.4%
|Mst financial assets {45,785)) (11,835 (7340

QACQ
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

34 [a) Fair value measurements

Redland City Cownci measures the folywing assets at fair value on a recuring basis:
Land
Buikdings
Infrastructure assels ncluding roads, stormwater, water and waslawaler. parks, ather infrastructure and wasie
Investmem progemy
In accordence with AASE 13, fair value maasuremants are categorised on the following basis:
Faif valus based on quoled prices [unadjusted) in active markets for idanbical assets or liabiliies (Level 1)
Fair value hased an inputs thal are dirsctly or indssecily ohsanvabls for the asset or liabikty (Lawel 2)
Fair valua based on unobservable inputs for the asset and Rabdity (Level 3)

Al fair value measurements are recurrent and categanised as either Level 2 or Leved 3. Council does not hold any assets valued using Level 1
inputs. VWhere all significant inputs used to vakue the assel are observable, the assetis valued at Level 2. However, If one or more of the
significant inputs are unobsarvabla, the asset ia valued as Leved 3.

Council's valuation polizy and procedures are sel by fhe Chisf Executive Officer and the Executive Leadarship Team and reviewad avary three
years. Annual reviews of depraciation, impairmeant, asset ives and asset balances are conducted by the Executive Managament Team. Councils
currant policy for the recurent valuation of property, plant and equipmant and invesimant property is documanted n Mote 2.0 and Note 2 j Non-
récurfing valuabons ane complelsd as necessary on reclassificabon. The valuabon methodolegy maomises absenable inputs,

Recognised falr value measurements
The following lable represenis ihe assets measured and recognised at fair value &t 30 June 2014. Comparison information has not been provided

% allowed by the transional provisions of AASE 12 Fair Value Measwrement .

Lavel 2 L:v::l
Description [Significan other (5ig
Gross value] Wiritlen down value ohaervalile m.pu:._: unobseryvabls inputs)
5000] 000 SO0 §o00
Land 257538 25753 12,729 244809
Buildings 116,332 62,945 - 52,945
Roads 765,884 587,113 - 587,113
Sharmwaler dramags 520638 397 338 - 39?'.335
Waler and wastewater 1,006,363 634,896 - 534,596 |
Farks 67518 35,854 - 35,854
Other infraslnuciure T i01gBE | “5'.?,293 T = L. G7,283
Waste 14,258 9,481 - 9,481
Investment proparty 893 893 - 803
2.851,232 2033448 12,729 2,020,720

Thera were no ransfers between Level 2 and Level 3 dunng the year. Couwncif's policy is to recognise transfers in and cut of the fair value
higranchy levels [f any] at the end of the reporBing period.

Disclosed falr values

Coancll borrowings ane measured at amortized et with inferest recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when incured, The fair
value of borrowings is disciosed in Note 22 and is provided by Quesnsiand Treasury Corporation and raprasents the contracteal undiscounied
caszh fiows al balance date,

The carrying ameunts of rade receivables and frade payables are assumed fo approximate their fair values due lo their short teom nature.

Valuation techniques uvsed to derlve fair values

The specific valuation lechniques used 10 value Council's assels are documented below. Fair value represents the highest and best use of the
asgals having regard io the oplimal financial, physical and legal vse of the asset.

The sensitivity of the fair value to the Level 3 inputs is provided in a table following each class. There is a clear inter-ralationship betwean the
ass21 condition, the assumed level of consumed service potential and remaining Ble for a8 assets vaked o deprecialed replacement cost. in these
casas, the lower tha assal condiion; the higher the laval of consumed senice potential; and the lowear the remaining fife. No other relationships

between the Level 3 inputs are noted.

Land
Al council freehold land was comprehensively valued as a 30 June 2017 by gualified independant external valuers, Asselval Ply Lid (regesiened

valuers - since 1839). The valustion was based on publicly available data on sales of similar land in nearby localities. Subsequently, an
independant desklop valuation was performed by AssefVal Ply Lid as at 30 June 2012 and 2014, as the movemeant in land values across the city

indicated a malerial adjustment,
Land re-transfermed to Coune tram Alicann e Water was independantly valued by qualificd extemal valuers, Assefval Pty Lid (registered valuers

since 1829), for determination of the fair value as al 1 July 2012,
QAD
Page 37 of 50 cefified stataments




Annual Financial Statements

RECFLAND CITY COLMNEIL
NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended 30 June 2014

3 |a) Farr value measurements - continued

A direct comparison melhod was used a3 al 1 July 2014 lo value all counci freshold land. Divect compansan involves the analrsis of sales
evidencs and companson wilh the subjec) land, taking into accourd such matiers s anes, locatian and cther genaral sie charsclenstics. Wnere
an active maset sxisty and thers s no unreasenablo restrictions as to use andior sale, the and was deamad io be valusd as Leved 2

Whire o peiive manke! existed, or (here were resiriclions on the use andfor sale, the land was assessed as Level 3. Land camying a parkiand
zone, or land utiksed for fosipath or access mesiiclion purposes, of due to its general characteristics, land that has no observable active market,

has been assessed as Level 3.
Significant uncbsenabde input Range of inpuls Ralationship to fair value
An increase in the value per sguare meltre
of 10% will resull in a movement to fair
VRIS P01 2GUe5 IR $0.01 - §510.31 velue of 2.58% equating to a revised total
of $263.218 milken
Buildings

Al buildings were valued as al 30 June 2011 by independanily qualilied extamal vatuers Assefval Pty Lid (registered valuers - since 1833). Cue lo
the specialist nalure of these assets and the absence of an active markel, fair value was sesassaed to be depreciated replacement cost

Replacerment cosi was delermined by applying an sbbrevialed bl of quantilies methodslogy. Reference was made v consiruction costing data
conained in Rewlings Ausiralia Consfruction Handbook and databases bul from research by esdemal veluers Asselvial Ply Lid. Major buildings
have baan split ino componantz, and thess companants wens valued separalaly to reflect differing sxpectatons of conditizn and wseful e
Assexsment of economie and remaining e was tasad on histoncal asaessmen) of similar assets and drawing on expenence of the valuer, and
this wias the basis for determining the depreciated value. All buldings were assessed as nal raguining residual valuss ta be applisd.

(V2]
-+
(e Althaugh soeme inpuis would be condidered as Level 2 (roplacement cost valuation], significam assumptions wene apoiad [0 the assessment of
Q condition and remaining life and (herefove these assels are considered to be valued as Leve! 3,
GE.) The movemant in the ABS Assel Valuation Non-residential Construclion Index (March Quarler 2014), has not impacted mateial movemant since
+— this valuation and as & result, furthed indexalion has no! been appiad.
M
a The significant unctsenvable inpuls used o determine fair value are shown below
© _ =t .
‘O Significant unsbs ervabile input Fange of inpuls Relationship bo tar vilue
- Thee higher the assessmeant ol remain
. . g
g ramining usefd ke 1-70years ife, the higher the far value of the asset
[ Tha higher
sxpecied usel feiscenoTic ite 10- 75 yoars TS Wi S loh Ssnctod . 1he
Road infrastructure assets

Foad assels were independantty valued as at 1 July 2013 by Cardne (QLDY Ply Lid, As these are speciaist public sendce assels thal ace rarely
independently sold, Jepreciated replacement cos! was delermined as the mos! appropriste valualion method. These assels were considerad to
hieve been valued using Level 3 inputs. Unit rates were delenmined with reference to recent Councl conatrucion data, Carono developed
databases and coal curvas, Rawtinsan's Conatiuchon Manual, and cther published building indexes, Thess rales wera applied io the asae
specifications Incheding depth, length and width. Linit rates take intd consideration material, labour, service and overhead costs (Survey 6%,
Design 5%, Engineening supandision 3%. Project Managemant 6%). All roads are divided ins sagments and componentised into carthworks,
besa, sub-base and surface to raflect different Fves jo sach component

Usaful fves wers developed by Cardno with refarance ta comman engineering and industry practice standards and Council’s historical visence.
The expected Hves of major culver essels were reduced by 20% if locatad within 50m of the coast and 40% if lncated in poor soils. A review of the
pevemnent rehabllitaion history suggested longer base cowse useful Bves for low raffic roads kees than 20 years old and as a result longer dves
were adopled for thege assels.

The conditon of bus shellers was asseassed by Council officers with reference to predelermined condilion crileria. These resulls were used to
ceiive the remaining useful lives based on the table belgw.

Bug Shelter Condition and Remaining Lite Assessment Criteria I

P ! e avnin
Description amw; e Ju'-"gl

Very Good Concitian - only planned maintenance reguired 58.5%

Minor Defects Only - minor maintenance required plus planned mainfenance 75 0%
Maintenance Requined ?slgnrﬁmm maintcnance required 50.0%
Requires Renewal - significant rener:ahw'ada required ’ S T Z50%
Asset Unservicaable - unsarvicaable 0.0%

Page 38 of 50 QA
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year anded 30 June 2014

34 (a] Fair value maasuremants - continued

Pavement condition was determined by Council officers assessing the following crteria: cracks, raveling, potholes, roughness, ndting and SMEC
FPavement Conditon index. Comelation bebween condiion data and age could mo! be determined and therefore an age based model was adopled
o determing remaining wseful Bfe and accumulated depreciation. Remaining Bfe and therefore accumulated depreciation was determined on an
age basis for all other roads assels.

Residual values have been adopted for road surfaces and pavemen) assels, and car parks fo reflect the value of malerials reused whean the assel
is renewed or rehabilitatad.

The sigrificant uncbservable inpuls used 1o determine fair value are shown below.

Significant unobsenable input Range of mputs Relationship 1o fak value
= ' The higher the tetal expeded kfz, the
remaining wsaful fitefaconomic i 10 - 100 years higher the fair value of the assats
The higher the assessment of remaining
remaining useful life 5- 100 yaars life, the higher the fair value of ihe assel
The higher the condition raling, the lowsr
conddion (bus shebers only) 1 Wery good - 5 LUnsenviceabls the expected life and therefore the fair
value
residual valuss (road pavemant and surfaca, and The higher the residual value, the aer the

10% - 100% of replacement cosls

car parks) annual depreciation expenss
Stormwater drainage infrastructure assels

Slormwater drainage assels were independanily valued as at 1 July 2013 by Cardno (QLD) Pty Lid, As lhese are specialist public senice assels
tha: are rarely infependently sold, depreciated replacement cost was delarmined as (he most appropriate valuation methed, These assels wene
considerad io have been valued using Level 3inputs. Unil rates and replacement cosis wera determinad with reference to recent Council
construction data, Cardno developed databases and cost curves, Rawin's Construction Manual, and other buslding indexes. These rales were
applizd to the asset specifications including depth. length and width, Unit rates take into consideration material, labowr, service and overhead
costs (Survey 63, Des'gn 5%, Engincaring supervision 3%, Proloct Managemeant 5%).

Crther cast factors considened when developing replacement costs for passive assels wars:

a) Soil Factor - The soi type applicable to each assel was determined by ovedaying the Quesnsland geclogical map layer aver Counci's
nfrastructure netwark. The Soil Factor considers the ease of excavalion provided when replacing underground assets

b} Development Faclor - The land use type applicable to the assel was delermined by overlaying Council's planning scheme over the infrastructure
natwork. Application of Development Factor considers the differing cost mplications of additional transportation, restoration of associaled assets
and traffic control where required. Development types referenced are Urban, Rural, CBD and lsland,

¢ An Econcmies of Scale Faclor - This factor was used in calculating the replacement costs for end sbuclures. The unil rales apply for one cell
and are adjusied by the faclor to calculate the value of structures with multiple cells.

d) Depih Factor - The base rates for Fipes, manhcles and pits are based on an averegae depth of 1.5m to Jm. Depth factors were apobed fo acjusi
those rates ta reflect the costs of instaltations al the relevam depth.

Useful dves were developed by Cardno with reference to comemon engineering and indusiry practice siandards and Council's historical evidence.
The lives of assets loceted within 50m of the coast or in poer soils were adjusted with referance to the following table:

Adjustments to Design Life Within 50m Coast Located in
End Structures B BO%
Slormwater Piges ) 0% B0%
Surtace Drains . 80% ] 8%
SPT Complex . I . R
GFT Simple B80% 0%
Manholes and pils B0% 0%

Conmdition assessments of GPT Simple and GPT Comgalex assets were conducted by Councll officers wath reference to predetermined condition
criteria. Remaining useful Iives of hase assets were darived with reference to the following table.

GFT Zmple and Complex Conddlion and Remaining Life Assessment

Percen lage ol

ramadning (ife

__Asnaw %
5%
BT
42%

10%
~ QAD
Page 39 of 50 certified statements

Hating Description




Annual Financial Statements

REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 20 June 2014

34 (a) Fair valuz measurements - continued

The remaining useful ie of all other Stormwaler assets was determined on an aged basis with reierence 1w tre 11 expacted life of the asset and
a& a resull the accumulated depreciation was cakculated on a straight line basis. Assets ane componantised o reflect varying expacted fvas and
consumption pattenns.

Residual values were applied to parially and unlined drains to reprasani the value of excavation cosis that would not be required agan on

repipcament,

The signdficant unobsenabie inputs used to daterming fair value are show balow.
Significant unobservable input - Ran?_i_-:_:-‘-j_inp.m_; ) - Relationship to fair value _ o
development and ol type co-efficlent 0.74-3.01 L?f:;ﬂi:?:eii:itﬁml th g M

_ ;Iﬂcchd l.-:-.sfu' Efefaconomic ke 20 - 150 years zlﬁm':?:vt:ﬁ m::‘:ﬁ e
remaining useful Be 5- 140 years L?;::ﬁ;?ﬁ?ﬁ;ﬂﬂ::ﬁ:ﬂ
- BCOnNCMigs nf.sr_‘afa faclor 1.00-7.50 E:r:g:;:::r::ﬂ:;ﬁ:::;ﬂm fachor,

condition (GPT's only) 1 as new = 5 very poor The higher the condition ratng, the lower
depih faco 067-1.58 et saset gt he Hgher 14 Fa value
residual values (parially and unlined drains onily) 6% - 100% a:fm::;;;ﬁ::gﬁ:: the lower the

Water and wastewater infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assels re-Iransfamed from Allconnes Waler were vaived as al 1 July 2012 by regislered valuers GHO to determing their fair value for
initial recognition. Depreciated replacemeni cosl was calermaed 35 the most appropriale valuation method as these are specialisi public service
assels hal are rarely independently soid and as such were dassified as being valued using Level 3 inputs. Significant companents. with dilfering
expected useful fves and replacement cosis were valued separataly.

Replacerment costs ware based on the replacement of the assats wilh a modam, engineering equivalent with cost factor adjustments applied to
refiect the iocation and site conditions Ekely on replacement. Costs of supply and Instad were derived from GHD'S recard of past canstrucilon
oftjects, the Rawfinson's Construction handbock and GHO's infrastructure cost estimating database. These costs were verified against Redland
City Couned irformation where available and melude 15% oncosts (Sursey 3%, Design 5%, Construction supenvision 4%, Project management
3%).

(Y]
+
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Zosi factors taken inta consideration when datermining replacement cost of underground asssts were:

Sl Factor - The soil type applicable lo each assel was determined by overlaying the Queensland geologica’ map layer over Councils
Infrastruciure network. The Soll Factor considers the ease of excavalion provided whan replacing underground assets.

Develoament Sactor - The land use fype applicable to 1he asset was deterrmined by overfaying Councils planning schame over the infrastructure
retwork. Application of the Development Factor considers the differing cost implications of restoration of associated assets and traffic contrel
whee required.

The relationship befween the Soll and Development Factors delermines a valuation co-sfficiant o be applied o the assat base cost.

Island Caost Factor - Those assets located on tha S outharm Moreston Bay Islands and Morth Stradbrose Island were assigned a cost adjustment to
consider the addibonal costs associated with trangporiabon and construchon on the glands,

Remaining life of the assets was delermined with considerabion o ihe age and performance of the component assels with reference 1o design ives
developed by GHD using common engineering and industry practice standards, Asset conditfon and performance were assassed by GHD and
used fo derive a Condition and Perdormance Faclor.

The condition of underground assels was determaned with reference to the age of the assets, while the condition of above cround assels was
determined from wsuwal inspeclion aganst predelermined condiion crileria. Performance scores for above ground assels were based on dala
provided by RCC operator staff on cument raliabdity and currend loadings against design capabity, Performance scores for passive assels was
desmed 1o be 1.

Bath the condition and performance scores reference the Condilion and Performancs Factors as shown in the table below. These ara applied as
factors against remaining economic ife to calcuate indicative remaining useful ives. The lower vaiue of (e two remaining ives was adagted o

determine accumulated depracation and fair value.

- QAOD
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

M (a) Falr value measurameants - continued

CodelRating |

Condition Factors

Buildings
Landscaping
Dam Structures

1.00

090

060

0.53 0.50

Elacincal
Mezhanical

1.00

0.90

0.65

053 0.50

Communications

Tebematry
Swilchboards

1.00

0.85

0.70

0.55 0.50

Tanks
Qdaur Conliral

1.00

0.95

0.75

Pipes
Fillings

1.00

0.95

080

0.58 .55

Pumps
Valves

1.00

085

0.80

063 060

Performance Factors

Tanks

100

0.20

005 0.00

Cableing
Elactrical
Reservoins
Swilchboards

Building Compresscrs
Flow Meters

Linings

Motors

Labaratory Eguipment
Othar ltems

1.00

0.80

0.30

nos 0.00

0.90

040

0.0 0.00

Fipes

.00

0.80

0.50

0.20 0.05

Fittings
Valves
Pumps

1.00

0.50

0.60

0.30 0.10

Fences

1.00

0.50

070

0.40 0.20

The significant uncbservable inputs used o determine fair value ars show below.

Significant unchsenvable inpul

Range of inputs

Relationship to fair value

assat condition

perfommance rating

1 new - 5and of IHa

The lower the assel condiion, the higher
the remaining ife and therefore a higher
fair valua

divelopment and soil type co-efficient

1 good - § poor

The lower the performance rating, the
figher the remaining e and therafors a
higher fair valug

0.8-3.54

The higher the co-efficient, the higher the
falr value of he asas

Island factar

100-1.39

The higher the co-aficient, the higher the
fair value of the asset

expected useful ifefeconomic life

10 - 134 years

The higiher the lotal expected ile, the
haghar the fair value of the asseis

refmaining useful e

1-734 years

The higher the assessment of remaining
life, the highar the fair value of the asset

condition factor

0.20 - 1.00

The higher the condition facior, the higher
the expecied remaining |#e, therefore the
higher the fair value

parformance factor

0.20-1.02

Thea higher the performance factor, the
highar the expactad remaining life,
tharefgre the higher the fair value

certified statements
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REDLAMD CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad 30 June 2014

34 (a) Fair value measurements - cantinued

Parks infrastruciure assets

Pariks infrastruciure assets wane independantly valued as at 30 June 2010 by qualified extemal valuers AssefVal Pty Lid [registered valuers - since
1833). Depreciated raplacemert cost was determined as the most appropriste valuation methad as these ane specialist public service assats that
ara raraly independantly aold and as a resull wera considensd lo have basn valued using Lavel 3 valuation inputs.

Replacement cost was determinad with refarance to Council's historical construchon records, AssetVal's own database of construchon costs and
other publshed cost gundes. Transporiation and ciher costs unique o work completed on the Bay Islants has been taken inlo consideration by
adding 15% alowance 1o the replacement costs of these assels.

Remaining lives were assignad based on physical assessment of ihe condition of the assels incleding factors such as the age of the asset, overall
condition as noted by the Valuer during inspection, aconomsc andfor functional obsclescence. The assets were depreciated with reference to
expecied useful lives determined throwgh application of industry standard ranges (including InsEule of Publc Weirks Engineering Australia),
histaric assessment of similar assels, and experence gained from simdar valeations by AssalVal Ply Lid. The condition assessmem direclly
translates o the level of the depreciation applied ag ncled in the table below.

Rakng Drescriplion F&w*u-p:: Ternainig
0 Brand new or rehabilitated to new 100%
1 MHear maw with no visible deterioration 90%
2 Excallent overall condition with early stages of deterioration BO%
3 Very good overall condition with obvious detenioralion evident 70%
4 Good overall condtion, obvious delenaration, senviceability impasred very shighlly 1 E0%
ﬂ 5 Fair overall condition, obvious delercration, some serviceability loss 50%
(- -] Fair {2 poor cverall condition, obvious deterioralion, some serviceability loss Aa0%
(D) T Foor overall condiion, obvious debericration, some serviceability loss, high maintenance costs B .
E 3 ery poor overall condition, severe deterioration, very high mainbenance costs, consider renewal 20%
g 9 Extremely poor condflion, severe serviceability problems, renewal required immediately 10%
S o Failed asset, no longer serviceabla, should not remain in service 0%
(V]
. [t was datermired that any selvage value wold be |&5s than any costs of sala or remaval, therafore reaiduals have not béeen applied
4°)
‘O The mavernertin the ABS Assel Reveluation - Engineering Construction index Queensand (March Quarter 2014) haz not 'ndicated maserial
(- mavameant since this valuation and A8 a resull, further indaxation has not been apphed
o
. E Tre significant unobseniabls inputs used b delermming far valye are shown balow
L - e PE— . S
Significart unobsarvable inpa Range of inputs Relationship ta fair value
The lower the asset condition rating, the
asset condition 1 wmry good - 10 unseniceabla highar the remaining ke and therefore a
higher fair value

Y | 0-58 The higher the assessment of remaining
PREENIR Cam e = T e, the higher the fair value of the asset

2 . The higher the assessment of expecied
mapected useful iifefeconomic ife 16 - B0 ywars e ttl:ighum I fair value niel}ﬁ asat

Other infrastructure assets

These assets inchude maning, jetty facilities and seawalis and were independarntly valued as at 30 June 2010 by qualfied extemal valiers Assetval
Pty Ltd (registensd valiuers - since 15839). Depreciated replacemeant cosl was delerminad as the most appropriate valuation method as these are
speciaksi public service 3ssels thal are rarely independenty sokd.

Replacement cosl was delermined with reference 1o RCCs hestoncal construchion reconds, AsselVals own database of construction costs and
other published cost guides, Transportation and other costs unigue to work completed on the Bay |slands has been taken into consideration by
adding 15% allowance to the replacement costs of these assels.

Remaining ives ware assigned based on physical assessment of the condition of the assets ag noted by the Valuer during inspection induding
factors such as the age of the assel, overall condiion. economic and/or functional obsclescence. The assels were depracialed with reference lo
expecied useful lives delermined fhrowgh application of industry slandards (including IPWEA), historic assessment of similar assels, and
experience gained from similar valuations by AssetVal Pty Lid. The condfion assessment direclly ranslates to the level of degreclation applied as
reflected in the table below,

QAD
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

34 {a) Fair value meaasurements - continued

Rating Descrption PHMWTIIZ““"**“
a Brand new or rehabiitated to new 100% ]
1 Mear new with no visitle deleroration - - 0% o
2 Excallant overall condition wilh early stages of deteriorabon B0%
L Wery good overad condition with obvicus delerioration evident B T0%
| 4 Good euemllc,nndltm obwious detenoration, s&naceability moained u'ery' shghlrr B60%
5 Falr everall candition, abvious deteraration, soma senviceabiity 233 50%
] Fair to poor ovearall condiion, cbyious deterioration, some sendceability loss 40%
7 Poar nmil condition, shwious deterioration, some serviceability loss, high maintenance costs k]
1 WVery poor averall condition, severs delerloration, ey high maintenance costs, mnsudﬁ mmam' 0%
g Exlremely poor cardilicn, severs serviceability problems, renewal required immediately | 10%
10 Failed assat, na longer serviceakble, should not rémain in Senvice 0%

It was determined that amy sabvage value would be less than any costs of sale or remaval, thesefore residuals have nol been appled,

Although some inputs would be considesad as Lavel 2 {replacement cosl valuation), significant assumptions were applied in the assessment of
condition and remaining e and thenafore these assets are consldared to be valued as Level 3.

The movement in the ABS Asset Revaluation - Enginasnng Construction Index Queansiand (March Quaner 2014} has not indicated material
mavemant since this vakation and as a rasull, further indexation has not baen applied.

The significant unobsesvable inputs used to determing fair value are shown below.

Sigrificant unobasnsable mput Range of inputs Reiationship to fair value
' The lower the asset condition raling, the
asset condtion 1 wery gocd - 10 unsenviceable higher the remaining Be and therefore a
higher fair valse
e The higher the assessmant of remaining
remalning usshd Bvas 0-9yeans life, the higher the fair value of the 2sset
ot - The hagher the assessment of expected
expecied useful feleconomic e 15-100 years e, the higher the fair value of the assel
Waste infrastructure assots

Al waste assets were indepandantly valued as at 30 June 2011 by qualfied extemal valusrs Asseival Pty Ltd (registered valuers - since 1833).
Depreciated raplacement cost was determined as the most appropriate valuation method as these are specialist publiz service assets that ara

rarely independently sa'd.
Replacemant cosl was cerdved using an abbraviatead bill of quantities methodology with reference to Rawlinson's Australia Handbook and Asset\al
Py Lid databases of buikiing and site improvemeant casts buld up through previous engagemeants.

Remaining lives were assigned based on physical assessment of the condition of the assets by the Valuer. The assets were depreciated on a
siraight line basis wilth raference to expected useful ives determined through application of industry standard ranges (including IPWEA), histaric
assessment of similar assels, and experience gained from similar valualions by Assetval Phy Ltd,

Alhough some inpuls would be considered as Leved 2 {replacement cosl valuation), signilicant assuemplions were agplied in e assessment of
condition and remaining Ife and therefere these assels are considered to be valeed as Lavel 3.

The movement in the ASS Assel Revaluation - Enginesring Construction Index Queensland (March Quarter 2014) has not indicated material
moweman sinca 1his valuation and as a resull, further indexation has rot been applied.

QAQC
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For Ihe year ended 30 June 2014
M {a) Fair value measurements - continued
Riting Drescriplion Pemmmc: remaining
a Brand new cr rehabilitated to new 1&0‘%
1 MNear new with no visible deterioration B0%
i 2 _En:ulruimral_cmﬂrlin_r! wilh ua_l_ry_'?liaﬁ ufdﬂlum_}r',l.ljm o ) i B e meallee B0%
kN Veary good overall condition with obvious deferioration evident _ 0% i
4 Good overall condition, oovious deterioration, senviceability impaired very slightly a5
5 Falr overall condition. cbvious ceterloration, seme serviceabiity loss 50
8 Fair 1o poor overaill condition, cbvivus delerioration. some serviceabiiity loss - 1= -ll:!lf:i_
T Foor overall cordition, obvicus deterioration, some serviceabdity loss, high maintanance costs )
-3 Wry poor gverall condition, severe detenipration, wery high mainienance costs, congider renewal 20%
8 Exiramely poor condition, severe serviceability problems, renewal required immediately 10%
10 Faied assel, no longer serviceable, should not remain in service 0%
Signaficant unobservable input FHange of inputs Relabonahip 1o far value
The lywer the assel condition raling. the
agset condition 1 vary good - 10 unserviceable righer the remaining ife and therefore a
haghar fair vahe
i - Thwa higher the assessment of remaining
PR L e life, the higher the fair value of the assel
wn
-+
i - The higher the assessman! of expacted
qc) expecied useful ife/economic ife 5-T0years life, the higher the fair value of the asset
()] investment property
"(-_'U Invesiment property assets were vaiued on acquisition as &t 30 June 2012 by qualified extarnal valuers Cardno. Assets ware valued using a
+ depraciated replacement cast methadslogy. Replacemant cost was derived using an abbreviated Bill of quantias approach with referanca fo
wn Rewlinaon's Australia Hendbook and Cardno databases of building and site mprovement costs build up through previous sngagemsants.
= Asset condiion was determined through rdependent inspection with the remaining life being derived through the application of & degradabon
E percentage based on the assessed condition rating.
©
C - T ;
i Rating ' Percentage of remaining ke
1] 1000 %
1 B0
2 E0%
3 A0%
4 2%
5 0%

Although some inputs would be considered as Level 2 (replacement cost valuation), significant agsumplions were applied in he assessmen| of
condition and remaining fife and therefora these assets are considerad to be valved as Level 3.

The movement in the ABS Asset Revaluation - Engineering Consbruction Index Queensland (March Crearter 2014) hae not ndicated material
mavernent since this valuation and as a regult, further indexation has nol been appled,

The significant uncbservable inpuls used 10 determing fair value arg shown below,

Significant unobservable input Range of inpuis Relationship lo fair value

- - The lower the asset candition rating, the
assel condition :z ﬁﬁﬂ?'""ﬁnﬁ i higher the remaining ife and tharafore a
g higher fair value

. The higher the assessment of remaining
:rraning usehd lives = 36 ye
Gl u a o Me, 1he higher he fair valee of the assel

' . The higher the assessment of axpected
axpected wsaful life/econemic kfa 10 - 50 y=ars ifis, 1he highar bhe fair valus of the asset

QAD
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REQLAND CITY COUMNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

35 Nalional Com pgliliqrr Pn]ic]r
Code of Competitive Conduct
Business activitles to which the code of competitive conduct Is applied

A govemmin] business activity is one which competes with private businesses and exceeds threshotos sei by Department of Local Gowernmeant,
Community Recovery & Resifence. In order lo remove any advaniages or disadvantages, the competiive neutrality principle must be appiled.

The Coge of Competitve Conduct seeks to ensure government businesses compete on the same basis as it competitors by

{8)  the application of the compelilive nevlrality principle, by removing or laking inte accounl any compelitive advantage or
disadvariage when deciding charges for goods of senvices,

(8] apphying il cost pricing when deciding charges for goods or sanaces, or changing for commarcial reasans;

(€} Ireating the net cost of parforming community service obligations as revenue, excepl for particuiar roads activities;

(d)  aspan of a local governmenlt's financial reporing:
(1) that the local govemment's budged contains an astimated activity statement for each business actvity; and
(i) that the local government's annual financial statement contains an activity sialement far each business activity,

Thie activity stabemeant for each business activity must stale:
(8)  the revenve from the business activity; and
(B} the sxpenses for the business activily, and
(e} the surplus or defict for the financial year; and
(dy ¥ community serdce obligations were carrled on:
(i) & description of the community sarvice oblgations; and

1%) (i} the cost of carying out the community sorice obligations, minus the reverue from the community sendce abligations.

c

) Council resalved to apply the Cade of Competitive Condudt ta the following business acivilles during 2013-14

GEJ Waler and washewater Cemeleres

+— Wasle Management Bufiding Cenification

S Fedland An Gallery Rediand Peforming Arts Centre (RPAL)

(V)

“© Financizl performance of activitles subject to code of competitive conduet:

O Water and Wasin

% Significant Business Activities i ver] Management

2014 2014

= - I
Revenue for services provided to Counecil 1,881 528
Revenus for senvices provided 1o external cents 94,351 18 BS0
Community service obligations 445 1.723
Less: Expenditure
Operafing surphus

anclal parforman ce of activitios subject te code of compatitive conduct:

Prescribed Business Activities Radland Ari
Gallery

2014

Rewvanue for services provided to Counc
Revenue for services provided 10 extemal clents
Community service obligations

Contribution from general fund

Less: Expenditure
erating surplusi{defict)

Page 46 of 50 QAO
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

15 Mational Com petitlon Policy - continued

Dyscription of Community Service Obligations (C50s) and Contribution from General Fund te business activitios:

Activitles CS0 Description Achual
000
‘Water and wastewater C50s
Water not-for-profit 117
‘Waslewaler nol-for-profl 328
448
Waste Managameani CS0s
Glean Uip Australia Day 1
Birkdale Sanilary Landfll - Gale Waiver Fees 3
Marth Stradbroke |sland Transfar Station 445
Kerbside Recyciing 2
Kerbside Waste Collection 12
Bulky Itam Cobecton for HAS clients .}
Russel |sland Trarsfer Station 423
Maclzay izland Transter Statlon anz
Lamhb Island Transfer Slation 114
Karragama lsland Transfar Statlon 102
Coachiemudio Island Transfar Station 188
1,723
Redland Ar Galery C50s
Cast fo provide the opporfunity to community groups to display and seE thedr af works 142
Contribution from General Fund 442
S84
Cemeleries Conlribufion from Genarsl Fund EE:]
18
Building Cetification Services CS0s 24
Delivery of professional advice 8l customar senice points
Professionai advize by phone or in wiitten form 1o the community
Discounted cerifications on the iskands
Professional support 1o other Councll sreas
Contmbution from General Fund 8
zﬂ_
Redland Performing Arts Cenlre C50s
Discounts offered on commercial ticketing 134
Canirbution from General Fund 1,554
Council's invaslment in the cullural Kfe of the city and its community via;
- developing pericrming ans practics ko community organisations
- providing @ venue Lo enabie growth in skils and performance cagability
- proveding different artislic formalgennes o enhance access o performing arts
- providing a focal place for the community to celebrate Rs diversity and undertake
civic functions
1,683

Quigoing Business Activities
For the 2014-15 financial year, Councl has determined that Redlsnd A Gallery will no lenger be considersd o be subject o the code of

compeflive conduct as they no longer meet the criteria.

Anticipated changes o Business Activities
It |3 expecied that there will be no néw Business Activities to which the Code of Competitive Conduct {CCC) will be applied for the 2014-15 year.

36 Events after the repaorting period

The carbon lax repeal begistation received the Royal Assent on 17 July 2014 and as such the Australian Government has abolished the carbon
tax, with the effect from 1 July 2014, Carbon l2x Rabilities and equivalent carbon price Rabiles ncurred uvp o 30 June 2014 musl be mel in 2l
[refer Male 2 ).

Rediand City Council was nol a liable entity under the Carbon Pricing Mechanism howeaver, under Coungils disposal agreement with Brisbane CRy
Council (BCC), the associated carbon tax cosls for each tonne of waste sent lo BCC was passed on 1o Councl. During the 2012-13 and 2013-14
finandal years, Councll was charged an adddlional 320 per tonne for mixed waste disposed al Brisbane City Councl facBies. Following the repeal
ofthe Carbon Price Mechanism, Brisbane Clty Councd has confirmed that the carbon lax libility witl no kenger be appbied o the waste disposal
agresment ethective 1 July 2014 and the addifonal charge per lonne will be refunded to Council.

This matter is concidered lo be a non-adjusting event after the reporting perlod. theretere no adjusiments required to the Anancial inform ation as at

30 June 2014,
Page 47 of 50
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Thesa general purpose finencial statements have been prepared pursuant to Sections 176 and 177 of the Local
Govemment Reguiation 20712 (the Regulation} and other prescribed reguiremants.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

{i} the prescribed requirements of the Local Governmant Act 2009 and Local Governmen! Reguiation 2012 for the
establishment and keeping of accounts have been complisd with in all material respects; and

(i} the generzi purpose financizl statemants present a true and fair view, in accordance with Ausiralian Accounting
Standards, of Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Redland City Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Redland City Council, which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Locsal
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
BIror.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Auditior-General of Queensland Audiling Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selectsed depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities
and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considerad appropnate and is nol
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant.

Opinion
In accordznce with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2008 -
(a) | have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and

(b}  inmy opinion -

() the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i}  the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Redland City
Council for the financial year 1 July 2013 fo 30 June 2014 and of the financial
position as at the end of that year.

Other Matters - Eiectronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report
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Those viewing an electronic presentzation of these financial statements should note that audit
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented elecironically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concamed with the inherant risks
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented
information.

= QUEENSLANA ™,
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P J FLEMMING CPA Queensland Audit Office
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) Brisbane

Redland City Council Annual Report 2013-14



REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
CURRENT-YEAR FINANCIAL SUSTAINAEILITY STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2013

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Courcils performance at 30 June 2014 against key financial ratios and targets:

How the measure is calculaled

Operating surplus ratio Mat result (excluding capital items})
divided by total operaling revenue
{excluding capital items)

Asset sustainabiiy ratio Capital expendiure on the replacament
of assets {renewals) divided by
depreciation expense

et financial liaoides rabic Telal labiies less curent assels

divided by total cperating revenue
(excluding capital ifems)

MNote 1 - Basis of Preparation

Actual Targe!
6.37% Betwean 0% and
10%

45 B5% Greater than
a0%

-2.22% Below 6%

The cument year financial sustainabilty statement 15 a special pupose saement prepared in accordance with the

requirements of the Local Govermmen! Reguiafion 2072and the Firancial Management

(Sustalinatyity) Guideline 2013,

The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures ane prepared on an accrual basls and a drawn from the

Council's avdited general purpose financial staterments for the year ended 30 Jung 2014,

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 Jure 2014

This current-year financial sustainabliity statement has been prepared pursuand to Section 178 of the Local Governmend

Reguiation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulatizn we cartify thal this current-year financial sustainability staterment has

been accuralely calculated. :

AY)
Mayor
Karen Williams

Date: ﬁ.‘_‘rc k. / S‘L

LH—

Chief Execuljve Officer
William Hargld Lyon

Date: ﬂﬁ';o!-"_?

QAQ
certified statements
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QAD
cerlified statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Redland City Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

| have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Redland City Council for the year ended 30 June 2014,
comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief
Exacutive Officer.

The Council's Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainabilily Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Reqgulation 2012,
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines Is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of
Queensland Audiling Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selecled depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the statement.

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately
calculated based on the Council's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor
on the Council's future sustainability.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities
and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are
significant.

Opinion

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current-year financial sustainability statement of Redland City Council,
for the year ended 30 June 2014, has been accurately calculated.

Emphasis of Matler — Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of
accounting. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of
fulfilling the Council's reperting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012.
As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Auditad Statament
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Those viewing an elecironic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note that
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does nol provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the financial
statements. If users of the financial statements are concemed with the inherent risks arising
from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the
audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information.
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P J FLEMMING CPA Queensland Audit Office
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) Brisbane
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